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Independent Auditors’ Report
TO THE MEMBERS OF HINDUSTAN PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of HINDUSTAN PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED (‘the 
Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 
income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information in which, is incorporated Ind AS financial statements of the branch office viz. 
Visakh Refinery, audited by the branch auditor, whose report dated May 18, 2018 has been considered in preparing this report.

Management’s Responsibility
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with 
respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 
financial performance (including other comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 
of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.
We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be 
included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
standalone Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the standalone Ind AS 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements 
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by Company’s 
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as on March 31, 2018, and its profit (including 
other comprehensive income), the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Other Matter
We refer to note no. 49 in connection with 21 Un-incorporated Jointly Controlled Entities (‘UJCEs’) involved in exploration activities, 
of which majority of UJCEs are under relinquishment. The standalone Ind AS financial statements include Company’s proportionate 
share in Assets and Liabilities as on March 31, 2018 and Income and Expenditure for the year ended on March 31, 2018 amounting to 
` 22.62 crores and ̀  16.90 crores, ̀  10.15 crores and ̀  7.63 crores respectively. In respect of these UJCEs, the audited accounts are not 
available with the Company. The financial information has been incorporated based on data received from the respective operators.
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The standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017 were auditedby the joint auditors of 
the Company, one of which is the predecessor audit firm, and have expressed an unmodified opinion dated May 26, 2017 on such 
financial statements.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order’), issued by the Central Government of India in terms 

of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure I a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, 
to the extent applicable.

2. As required by the section 143(5) of the Act, we give in the Annexure II a statement on the directions / sub-directions issued by 
the Comptroller and Auditor-General of India.

3. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
 a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 

necessary for the purposes of our audit;
 b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 

examination of those books;
 c) The reports on the accounts of the branch office of the Company viz. Visakh Refinery audited under section 143(8) of the 

Act by the branch auditor have been sent to us and have been properly dealt with by us in preparing this report;
 d) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of changes in 

Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;
 e) In our opinion, the attached standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified 

under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 as amended;
 f ) As per notification no. G.S.R 463(E) dated June 5, 2015, the Government companies are exempted from the provisions of 

section 164(2) of the Act, accordingly, we are not required to report whether any directors of the Company are disqualified 
in terms of provisions contained in the said section;

 g) With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements of the Company and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure III; and

 h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with rule 11 of the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us:

  i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone Ind AS financial 
statements - Refer Note 55 to the standalone Ind AS financial statements;

  ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable 
losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts; and

  iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company

For G. M. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.:104767W

For M. P. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 101851W

Sd/-
Atul Shah
Partner
Membership No.: 039569

Sd/-
Anagha Thatte
Partner
Membership No.: 105525

Place : New Delhi
Dated : May 22, 2018

Independent Auditors’ Report
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Independent Auditors’ Report
AnnexuRe I - referred to in paragraph 1 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our 
report of even date

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, Including quantitative details and situation of Property 
Plant and Equipment (fixed assets).

 (b) The Property Plant and Equipment of the Company, other than LPG cylinders and pressure regulators with customers are 
physically verified by the Management in a phased program of three to five years cycle. In our opinion, the programme is 
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In our opinion and as per the information 
given by the management, the discrepancies observed were not material and have been appropriately accounted in the 
books of account.

 (c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on verification of records on random basis, we report 
that the title deeds of immovable properties held as Property Plant and Equipment, other than self-constructed properties, 
are held in the name of the Company, except for the following:

(` In Crores)

Particulars No. of 
Cases

Gross Block as on 
March 31, 2018

Net Block as on 
March 31, 2018

Remarks

Freehold Land 3 0.02 0.02 Title deeds / other evidence not available for verification

Leasehold Land 1 0.01 – Lease deed / other evidence not available for verification

  For the purpose of reporting under this clause, where ever title deeds of immovable properties were not available, we have 
relied on substantive evidences such as property tax payment receipts, noting in municipal records conveying title to the 
Company over the property.

(ii) During the year, the inventories have been physically verified at reasonable intervals by the management. The discrepancies 
noticed on physical verification, as compared to the book records, were not material having regards to size and nature of 
operations and have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

(iii) As per notification no. G.S.R 463(E) dated June 5, 2015, the Government companies are exempted from the provisions of section 
188 of the Act in respect of contracts or arrangements entered into between the Government companies. The Company has not 
granted loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register 
maintained under section 189 of the Act. Hence, the question of reporting under sub-clauses (a), (b) & (c) of the clause 3(iii) of 
the Order does not arise.

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or security to the parties covered under section 185 of 
the Act. The Company has complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of investments made or loans or 
guarantee or security provided to the parties covered under section 186 of the Act.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public, within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules 
framed there under. We are informed by the Management that no order has been passed by the Company Law Board or National 
Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other tribunal in this regard.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed accounts and records maintained by the Company pursuant to rules made by the Central Government 
for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, in respect of Company’s products to which the said rules are 
made applicable and are of the opinion that, prima facie the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. 
We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate.

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the records of the Company examined by us, 
in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues 
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including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Goods & Service Tax, duty of 
Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues, wherever applicable.

  According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of aforesaid dues 
were outstanding as on March 31, 2018 for a period of more than 6 months from the date they became payable.

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the particulars of statutory dues that have not been deposited 
on account of disputes are as under:

Statute Forum pending Period to which 
amount relates

Amount 
(` in Crores)

Customs Appellate Authority* 2007-2013 2.15
Tribunal** 1998-2013 9.64
Total 11.79

Central Excise Appellate Authority* 1994-2017 17.74
Tribunal** 1994-2017 353.56
Adjudicating Authority*** 2004-2014 26.39
Revision Authority 1999-2012 1.10
High Court 1994-2014 4.76
Total 403.55

Sales Tax/Entry Tax Board of Revenue 1999-2014 5.05
Appellate Authority* 1976-2016 1,685.32
Tribunal** 1976-2015 2,592.87
Adjudicating Authority*** 1976-2015 1,679.52
High Court 1979-2015 956.96
Objection Hearing Authority 2008-2012 17.89
Supreme Court 2002-2004 6.68
Total 6,944.29

Service Tax Appellate Authority* 2005-2015 1.59
Tribunal** 2002-2015 75.91
High Court 1981 - 2013 3.75
Total 81.25

Income tax Tribunal** 2006-2011 0.17
Total 0.17

  * Appellate Authority represents Assistant Commissioner (A), Deputy Commissioner (A), Joint Commissioner (A), Additional 
Commissioner (A)

  ** Tribunal represents Sales Tax Appellate Tribunal, Central Excise and Service tax Appellate Tribunal (CESTAT), Income Tax 
Appellate Tribunal (ITAT)

  *** Adjudicating authority represents Assessing Officer, Additional Commissioner, Deputy Commissioner, Joint Commissioner, 
Additional Commissioner, Chief Commissioner

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing 
to financial institutions, banks, government or dues to debenture holders.

Independent Auditors’ Report
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(ix) The Company has not raised money by way of Initial Public Offer or Further Public Offer (including debt instruments). According 
to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the records examined by us, the Company has prima facie 
applied the term loan for the purpose for which it was obtained.

(x) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the generally 
accepted auditing practices in India and according to the information and explanations given to us, no instances of material fraud 
by the Company or on the Company by its officers and employees have been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) As per notification no. G.S.R 463(E) dated June 5, 2015, the Government companies are exempted from the provisions of section 
197 of the Act, accordingly, the question of reporting whether the payment of managerial remuneration by the Company is in 
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act does not 
arise.

(xii) The Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi company. Hence, the question of reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order does not 
arise.

(xiii) As per notification no. G.S.R 463(E) dated June 5, 2015, the Government companies are exempted from the provisions of section 
188 of the Act in respect of contracts or arrangements entered into between the Government companies. The Company has 
complied with the provisions of section 177 and section 188 of the Act in respect of transactions with the related parties and 
the details have been disclosed in the standalone Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting 
Standards.

(xiv) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures 
during the year under audit.

(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him covered under the 
provisions of section 192 of the Act.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For G. M. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.:104767W

For M. P. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 101851W

Sd/-
Atul Shah
Partner
Membership No.: 039569

Sd/-
Anagha Thatte
Partner
Membership No.: 105525

Place : New Delhi
Dated : May 22, 2018

Independent Auditors’ Report
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Independent Auditors’ Report
AnnexuRe II - referred to in paragraph 2 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our 
report of even date

Based on the verification of records of the Company and based on information and explanations given to us, we give below a report 
on the directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India in terms of the section 143(5) of the Act.

Sr. no. Areas to be examined Observation/finding

1 Whether the Company has clear 
title/lease deeds for freehold 
and leasehold land respectively? 
If not please state the area of 
freehold and leasehold land for 
which title/lease deeds are not 
available.

Based on the verification of the records of the Company on random basis and as reported 
in para 1(c) of the Annexure I of this report, the Company does not have the original 
clear title deeds in respect of 4 freehold land/lease hold land. The details of area of such 
land as compiled by the management are as under:

Particulars no. of cases Acres Remarks
Freehold Land 3 0.75 Title deeds not available for verification
Leasehold Land 1 0.31 Lease deeds not available for verification
Total 4

2 Whether there are any cases 
of waiver / write off of debts 
/ loans / interest etc., if yes, 
the reasons there for and the 
amount involved

As per the process followed by the Company, any waiver of debt is accounted only with 
the approval of Competent Authority in line with the Delegation of Authority. Interest 
on delayed payments from Customers is waived on merit of each case by approving 
authority. During the year, the Company has written off ` 65.96 crores being the 
provisions made in earlier years on account of legacy and migrated balances, customers' 
balances, legal cases including disputed cases, investments.

3 Whether proper records are 
maintained for inventories 
lying with third parties & assets 
received as gift / grant(s) 
from Government or other 
authorities.

a. Proper records are maintained for inventories lying with third parties.

b. During the year, the Company has not received any assets as gifts from Government 
or other authorities.

For G. M. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.:104767W

For M. P. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 101851W

Sd/- 
Atul Shah
Partner
Membership No.: 039569

Sd/- 
Anagha Thatte
Partner
Membership No.: 105525

Place : New Delhi
Dated : May 22, 2018
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Independent Auditors’ Report
AnnexuRe III - referred to in paragraph 3(g) under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of 
our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements of HINDUSTAN PETROLEUM CORPORATION 
LIMITED (‘the Company’) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial 
Statements established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding 
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our audit of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements includes assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor ’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A Company’s Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone Ind AS Financial Statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting includes 
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparation of standalone Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management 
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements to future periods 
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are subject to the risk that the Internal Financial Control with reference to Financial Statements may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 
and such Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements were operating effectively as on March 31, 2018, based 
on the criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Internal Financial Controls 
with reference to Financial Statements insofar as it relates branch office of the Company viz. Visakh Refinery audited by the branch 
auditor, appointed under section 143(8) of the Act is based on the report of the branch auditor which has been sent to us and has 
been properly dealt with by us in preparing this report.

For G. M. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.:104767W

For M. P. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 101851W

Sd/-
Atul Shah
Partner
Membership No.: 039569

Sd/-
Anagha Thatte
Partner
Membership No.: 105525

Place : New Delhi
Dated : May 22, 2018

Independent Auditors’ Report



Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited

116

Balance Sheet as on 31st March, 2018 (` / Crores)
notes 31.03.2018 31.03.2017

ASSeTS
(1) Non-Current Assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 37,519.03 35,711.00
(b) Capital Work-in-Progress 4 3,985.39 1,810.48
(c) Intangible Assets 5 452.68 420.88
(d) Financial Assets

(i) Investment in Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates 6 5,352.40 5,052.28
(ii) Other Investments 7 753.32 757.58
(iii) Loans 8 461.61 456.43

(e) Other Non-Current Assets 9 1,409.08 1,338.88
Total Non Current Assets 49,933.51 45,547.53
(2) Current Assets

(a) Inventories 10 18,420.22 18,576.28
(b) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 11 4,999.38 5,108.74
(ii) Trade Receivables 12 5,572.91 4,064.21
(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 13 10.67 8.85
(iv) Bank Balances other than (iii) above 14 1,183.44 24.82
(v) Loans 15 89.34 163.21
(vi) Other Financial Assets 16 5,918.94 4,324.44

(c) Other Current Assets 17 675.32 647.81
36,870.22 32,918.36

(d) Assets classified as held for Sale / Disposal 3.49 3.96
Total Current Assets 36,873.71 32,922.32
Total Assets 86,807.22 78, 469.85
eQuITY AnD LIABILITIeS
Equity

(a) Equity Share Capital 18 1,524.21 1,016.27
(b) Other Equity
 Reserves and Surplus 19 22,409.78 19,298.03
 Other Reserves 20 14.23 33.11

Total Equity 23,948.22 20,347.41
Liabilities
(1) Non Current Liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 21 8,830.78 6,278.15
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 22 0.47 0.44

(b) Provisions 23 77.22 182.32
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) (refer note 41) 6,569.19 5,895.59
(d) Other Non-Current Liabilities 24 3.99 7.67

Total Non Current Liabilities 15,481.65 12,364.17
(2) Current Liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 25 10,762.18 10,892.41
(ii) Trade Payables 26 15,703.87 12,664.56
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 27 14,504.84 15,751.98

(b) Other Current Liabilities 28 3,602.05 3,968.21
(c) Provisions 29 2,508.25 2,408.50
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 30 296.16 72.61

Total Current Liabilities 47,377.35 45,758.27
Total Equity and Liabilities 86,807.22 78,469.85
Significant Accounting Policies 1 & 2
Si gnificant Accounting Policies and Notes Forming Part of Accounts are integral part of the Financial Statements

FOR AnD On BehALF OF The BOARD
Sd/-
Mukesh Kumar Surana
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN - 07464675
Sd/-
J Ramaswamy FOR G.M. Kapadia & Co. FOR M. P. Chitale & Co.
Director - Finance Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
DIN - 06627920 FRN - 104767W FRN - 101851W
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Shrikant M. Bhosekar Atul Shah Anagha Thatte
Company Secretary Partner Partner
 Membership No. 039569 Membership No. 105525
Place : New Delhi
Date : May 22, 2018
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FOR AnD On BehALF OF The BOARD
Sd/-
Mukesh Kumar Surana
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN - 07464675
Sd/-
J Ramaswamy FOR G.M. Kapadia & Co. FOR M. P. Chitale & Co.
Director - Finance Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
DIN - 06627920 FRN - 104767W FRN - 101851W
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Shrikant M. Bhosekar Atul Shah Anagha Thatte
Company Secretary Partner Partner
 Membership No. 039569 Membership No. 105525
Place : New Delhi
Date : May 22, 2018

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2018 (` / Crores)
notes 2017 - 18 2016 - 17

Revenue
Revenue From Operations

Gross Sale of Products 31 243,226.66 213,488.95
Other Operating Revenues 32 858.46 380.87

244,085.12 213,869.82
Other Income 33 1,849.46 1,448.08

Total Revenue 245,934.58 215,317.90
exPenSeS

Cost of Materials Consumed 34 51,186.30 45,137.66
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 142,455.74 122,731.74
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in -Trade and Work-in-Progress 35 804.54 (4,454.06)
Excise Duty 24,752.52 26,779.28
Transportation Expenses 5,862.52 5,316.76
Exploration cost 8.57 15.23
Employee Benefits Expense 36 2,858.52 2,946.08
Finance Costs 37 566.71 535.65
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 3&5 2,752.75 2,535.28
Other Expenses 38 5,484.48 4,753.44

Total Expenses 236,732.65 206,297.06
Profit Before exceptional items and Tax 9,201.93 9,020.84
Exceptional Items – –
Profit Before Tax 9,201.93 9,020.84
Tax expense:

Current tax 2,570.98 2,236.24
Deferred tax 419.56 628.28
Provision for tax for earlier years written back (net) (145.68) (52.48)

Total Tax Expenses 2,844.86 2,812.04
Profit/(loss) for the period 6,357.07 6,208.80
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Re-measurements of the defined benefit plans 86.66 (23.69)
Fair value changes on Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income (18.88) 175.61
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (29.99) 8.20

Other Comprehensive Income for the period (net of tax) 37.79 160.12
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (net of tax) 6,394.86 6,368.92
Earning per share [Basic and Diluted earnings per share (`)] 43 41.72 40.74
Significant Accounting Policies 1 & 2
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes Forming Part of Accounts are integral part of the Financial Statements
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Statement of Changes in equity as on 31st March, 2018

A. Statement of Changes in equity

no. of Shares ` / Crores
Balance at 31st March 2016 33,86,27,250 339.01
Changes in Equity Share Capital 67,72,54,500 677.26
Balance at 31st March 2017 1,01,58,81,750 1,016.27
Changes in Equity Share Capital 50,79,40,875 507.94
Balance at 31st March 2018 1,52,38,22,625 1,524.21

B. Other equity (` / Crores)

Reserves & Surplus Equity 
instruments 

through 
OCI

Total 
Other 
Equity

General 
reserve

Share 
premium 
Account

Debenture 
redemption 

reserve

FCMITDA Retained 
earnings

Balance at 31 March 2016 1,809.07 1,153.77 265.13 (194.80) 14,740.12 (142.50) 17,630.79
Profit or Loss for the year – – – – 6,208.80 6,208.80
Other Comprehensive income for 
the year

– – – – (15.49) 175.61 160.12

Proposed dividend for 2015 - 16 
(` 16.00 per share)

– – – – (541.80) – (541.80)

Dividend Distribution Tax on above – – – – (110.30) – (110.30)
First Interim Dividends 2016 - 17 
(` 22.50 per share)

– – – – (2,285.73) – (2,285.73)

Dividend Distribution Tax on above – – – – (465.32) – (465.32)
Second Interim Dividends 2016 - 
17 (` 6.40 per share)

– – – – (650.16) – (650.16)

Dividend distribution Tax on above – – – – (132.37) – (132.37)
Issuance of Bonus shares (2 equity 
shares for each existing share)

(677.25) – – – – (677.25)

Net Addition / amortization in 
FCMITDA

– – – 194.36 – – 194.36

Balance at 31 March 2017 1,809.07 476.52 265.13 (0.44) 16,747.75 33.11 19,331.14
Profit or Loss for the year – – – – 6,357.07 – 6,357.07
Other Comprehensive income for 
the year

– – – – 56.67 (18.88) 37.79

Transfer from Debenture 
Redemption Reserve

– – (265.13) – 265.13 – –

Proposed dividend for 2016 - 17 
(` 1.10 per share)

– – – – (111.75) – (111.75)

Dividend distribution Tax on above – – – – (22.75) – (22.75)
Interim Dividends 2017 - 18 
(` 14.50 per share)

– – – – (2,209.54) – (2,209.54)

Dividend distribution Tax on above – – – – (449.81) – (449.81)
Issuance of Bonus shares (1 equity 
share for 2 existing share)

(31.42) (476.52) – – – (507.94)

Net Addition / amortization in 
FCMITDA

– – – (0.20) – (0.20)

Balance at 31 March 2018 1,777.65 – – (0.64) 20,632.77 14.23 22,424.01
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 Note:

 General Reserve : General reserve forms part of the retained earnings and is permitted to be distributed to shareholders as part 
of dividend.

 Share Premium Account: Premium collected on issue of securities are accumulated as part of securities premium. Utilisation of 
such reserve is restricted by the Companies Act, 2013.

 Debenture Redemption Reserve : Debenture redemption reserve represents amounts set aside by the Company for future 
redemption of debentures.

 Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account (FCMITDA) : Reserve recognised on account of translation 
of long term foreign currency denominated borrowings related to non - depreciable Property, Plant & Equipment. Amounts 
recognised as a part of such reserve is recognised in the statement of profit or loss over remaining maturity of related borrowing.

 Retained Earnings : The balance held in this reserve is the accumulated retained profits and is permitted to be distributed to 
shareholders as part of dividend.

 Equity instruments through OCI : The Corporation has chosen to recognise the changes in the value of certain investments 
in equity securities in other comprehansive income. These changes are accumulated within the Equity instruments through OCI 
reserve.

FOR AnD On BehALF OF The BOARD

Sd/-
Mukesh Kumar Surana
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN - 07464675

Sd/-
J Ramaswamy FOR G.M. Kapadia & Co. FOR M. P. Chitale & Co.
Director - Finance Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
DIN - 06627920 FRN - 104767W FRN - 101851W

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Shrikant M. Bhosekar Atul Shah Anagha Thatte
Company Secretary Partner Partner
 Membership No. 039569 Membership No. 105525

Place : New Delhi
Date : May 22, 2018

Statement of Changes in equity as on 31st March, 2018
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2018

(` / Crores)
2017 - 18 2016 - 17

A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities

Net Profit/(Loss) before Tax and Extraordinary Items 9,201.93 9,020.84

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash used in operating activities:

Depreciation/ impairment on property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets 2,752.75 2,535.28

Interest income from HBL Preference Shares (14.64) (13.43)

(Gain)/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 4.55 6.54

Remeasurement of Defined benefit plans Gain / (Loss) 56.67 (15.49)

Amortisation of Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference 0.36 354.38

Spares Written off 0.57 12.14

Impairment in Value of Investments (16.10) 8.41

Fair value gain on Current Investments carried at fair value through Profit and Loss account 25.09 (221.77)

(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Current Investment 60.24 (32.36)

Finance Costs 566.71 535.65

Un realised Exchange Rate Difference 11.66 (200.07)

Provision for Doubtful Debts & Receivables 51.30 1.94

Bad Debts written off 49.86 5.26

Interest Income (364.87) (366.75)

Share of Profit from Petroleum India International 0.02 (0.94)

Dividend Received (352.55) (80.36)

Operating Profit before Changes in Assets & Liabilities {Sub Total - (i)} 12,033.55 11,549.27

(Increase) / Decrease in Assets and Liabilities :

Trade Receivables (1,526.95) (307.91)

Loans and Advances and Other Assets (1,775.05) 358.85

Inventories 155.51 (5,377.02)

Liabilites and Other Payables 4,128.18 5,938.11

Sub Total - (ii) 981.69 612.03

Cash Generated from Operations (i) + (ii) 13,015.24 12,161.30

Less : Direct Taxes / FBT refund / (paid) - Net 1,997.00 2,178.57

Net Cash from Operating Activities (A) 11,018.24 9,982.73

B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment (including Capital Work in Progress / excluding interest 
capitalised)

(6,702.47) (5,889.01)

Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 12.41 37.18

Purchase of Investments (Including share application money pending allotment/Advance towards Equity) (1,642.29) (42.12)

Fixed Deposit (Earmarked for project purpose from Foreign Currency Bonds proceeds) (1,150.00) –

Sale Proceeds of current investments 1,375.26 136.84

Interest received 363.35 366.91

Dividend Received 352.55 80.36

Net Cash Flow generated from / (used in) Investing Activities (B) (7,391.19) (5,309.84)
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(` / Crores)
2017 - 18 2016 - 17

C. Cash Flow From Financing Activities

Long term Loans raised 6,437.92 –

Long term Loans repaid (6,668.45) (6,980.04)

Short term Loans raised / (repaid) (844.58) 7,661.61

Capital Grant Received 1.75 2.16

Finance Cost paid (458.46) (521.87)

Dividend paid (including dividend distribution tax) (2,791.90) (4,177.14)

Net Cash Flow generated from / (used in) Financing Activities (C) (4,323.72) (4,015.28)

Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A + B + C) (696.67) 657.61

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,732.88 2,390.49

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (2,429.55) (1,732.88)

Details of cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year:

Cash and cash equivalents as on 31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Balances with Banks:

- on current accounts 2.69 1.14

- on non-operative current accounts 0.01 0.01

Cheques, drafts on hand – 0.06

Cash on hand 7.97 7.64

Fixed Deposits with Original Maturity Less than 3 months –

Less : Cash Credits (2,440.22) (1,741.73)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (2,429.55) (1,732.88)

FOR AnD On BehALF OF The BOARD

Sd/-
Mukesh Kumar Surana
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN - 07464675

Sd/-
J Ramaswamy FOR G.M. Kapadia & Co. FOR M. P. Chitale & Co.
Director - Finance Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
DIN - 06627920 FRN - 104767W FRN - 101851W

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Shrikant M. Bhosekar Atul Shah Anagha Thatte
Company Secretary Partner Partner
 Membership No. 039569 Membership No. 105525

Place : New Delhi
Date : May 22, 2018

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2018
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2018

1. Corporate Information
 Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited referred to as “HPCL” or “the Corporation” was incorporated on 5th July, 1952. HPCL 

is a Government of India Enterprise listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited, 
with ONGC holding 51.11% of Equity Shares w.e.f. 31st January, 2018. The Corporation is engaged, primarily in the business 
of refining of crude oil and marketing of petroleum products. The Corporation has, among others, refineries at Mumbai and 
Vishakhapatnam, LPG bottling plants and Lube blending plants. The Corporation’s marketing infrastructure includes vast network 
of Installations, Depots, Aviation Service Stations, Retail Outlets and LPG distributors.

 Authorization of financial statements
 The Financial Statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on 22nd May 2018.

1.1. Basis for preparation:
 The Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015; and other relevant provisions 
of the Act and Rules thereunder.

 The Financial Statements are prepared under historical cost convention basis, except for certain assets and liabilities measured at 
fair value.

 The Corporation has adopted Ind AS and the adoption was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101 (First time adoption of 
Indian Accounting Standards). The transition was carried out from Accounting Standard as prescribed under Section 133 of the 
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, (previous GAAP). The Corporation’s Presentation currency and 
Functional currency is Indian Rupees (`). All figures appearing in the Financial Statements are rounded to the nearest crores (` 
Crores), except where otherwise indicated.

1.2. Use of Judgement and Estimates
 The preparation of the Corporation’s Financial Statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions 

that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets, liabilities and the accompanying disclosures along with contingent 
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require material adjustments to the 
carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. The Corporation continually evaluates these estimates and 
assumptions based on the most recently available information.

 In particular, information about significant areas of estimates and judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most 
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are as below:

 • Financial instruments;
 • Estimates of useful lives and residual value of Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets;
 • Valuation of inventories;
 • Measurement of recoverable amounts of cash-generating units;
 • Measurement of Defined Benefit Obligation, key actuarial assumptions;
 • Provisions and Contingencies; and
 • Evaluation of recoverability of deferred tax assets;

 Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in the Financial Statements in the period in which the estimates 
are revised and in any future periods affected.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
2.1. Property, Plant and Equipment
2.1.1. Freehold lands are carried at cost. All other items of Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated 

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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2.1.2. The initial cost of an asset comprises its purchase price or construction cost (including import duties and non-refundable 
taxes); any costs directly attributable to bring the asset into the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of 
operating in the manner intended by management; initial estimated present value of any of any contractual decommissioning 
obligation; and borrowing cost for qualifying assets (i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready 
for their intended use).

2.1.3. Technical know-how / licence fee relating to plants / facilities are capitalized as part of cost of the underlying asset.

2.1.4. Expenditure during construction period: Direct expenses incurred during construction period on capital projects are capitalised.

2.1.5. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure 
will flow to the Corporation.

2.1.6. Spare parts which are meeting the requirement of Property, Plant and Equipment are capitalized as Property, Plant and 
Equipment in case the unit value of the spare part is above the threshold limit. In other cases, the spare parts are inventorised 
on procurement and charged to Statement of Profit and Loss on consumption.

2.1.7. An item of Property, Plant and Equipment and any significant part initially recognised separately as part of Property, Plant and 
Equipment is derecognised upon disposal; or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal; or when 
the Property, Plant Equipment has been re-classified as ready for disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the 
asset is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

2.1.8. The residual values and useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and changes are 
accounted for as a change in accounting estimates on a prospective basis.

2.1.9. The Corporation has chosen the carrying value of Property, Plant and Equipment existing as per previous GAAP as on date of 
transition to Ind AS i.e. 1st April 2015 as deemed cost.

2.2. Depreciation / amortization
2.2.1. Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment is provided on straight line method. In accordance with requirements prescribed 

under Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013, the Company has assessed the estimated useful lives of its Property, Plant & 
Equipment and has adopted the useful lives and residual value as prescribed in Schedule II except for the following which are 
based on internal technical assessment:

Plant and Machinery relating to Retail Outlets (other than Storage tanks and related equipment) 15 years
Cavern Structure 60 years
LPG cylinders & regulators 15 years

2.2.2. The Company depreciates significant components of the main asset (which have different useful lives as compared to the main 
asset) based on the individual useful life of those components. Useful life for such components is assessed by considering 
historical experience, internal technical inputs and any other relevant factor.

2.2.3. Items of Property, Plant and Equipment costing not more than the threshold limit are depreciated at 100 percent in the year 
of acquisition except LPG Cylinders and Pressure Regulators which are depreciated over a useful life of 15 years based on the 
technical assessment.

2.2.4. Depreciation on spare parts specific to an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is based on life of the related Property, 
Plant and Equipment. In other cases, the spare parts are depreciated over their estimated useful life based on the technical 
assessment.

2.2.5. Depreciation is charged on additions / deletions on pro-rata monthly basis including the month of addition / deletion.

2.3. Intangible assets
2.3.1. Intangible assets are carried at cost net of accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally 

generated intangibles, excluding development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in Statement 
of Profit and Loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. Development costs are capitalised if technical and 
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commercial feasibility of the project is demonstrated, future economic benefits are probable, the Corporation has an intention 
and ability to complete and use or sell the asset and the costs can be measured reliably.

2.3.2. Assets where entire output generated is committed to be sold to a public sector entity (including Government body) for almost 
entire useful life of the asset are classified as intangible assets as per the requirements of Ind AS and are amortised (after 
retaining the residual value, if applicable) over their useful life.

2.3.3. In cases where, the Corporation has constructed assets and the Corporation has only a preferential right to use, these assets 
are classified as intangible assets and are amortised (after retaining the residual value, if applicable) over their useful life or the 
period of the agreement, whichever is lower.

2.3.4. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

2.3.5. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on straight line basis over their useful life and assessed for impairment whenever 
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an 
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at each financial year end. The amortisation expense on intangible assets 
with finite lives and impairment loss is recognised in the statement of Profit & Loss.

2.3.6. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, such as ‘right of way’ which is perpetual and absolute in nature, are not amortised, 
but are tested for impairment annually. The useful lives are reviewed at each period to determine whether events and 
circumstances continue to support an indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If not, the change in useful life from 
indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis. The impairment loss on intangible assets with indefinite life is recognised in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.3.7. Technical know-how / license fee relating to production process and process design are recognized as Intangible Assets.

2.3.8. Estimated lives of intangible assets (acquired) are as follows:
• Software: 2 to 4 years
• Technical know-how/license fees: 2 to 10 years
• Right to use - wind mills: 22 years

2.3.9. The Corporation has chosen the carrying value of Intangible Assets existing as per previous GAAP as on date of transition to 
Ind AS i.e., 1st April 2015 as deemed cost.

2.4. Borrowing Cost
2.4.1. Borrowing cost consists of interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also 

includes exchange rate variation to the extent regarded as an adjustment to interest cost.

2.4.2. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of 
time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset till the month in which the asset is ready 
for intended use. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

2.5. Non-currents assets held for sale
2.5.1. Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered through a sale transaction rather 

than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met, only when the sale is highly probable and the asset is available 
for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sale of such assets.

2.5.2. Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

2.5.3. Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortized.

2.6. Leases
2.6.1. Finance Lease
 Lease arrangements are classified as finance leases, if substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the 

leased asset is transferred to the lessee.
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 Lease arrangements in respect of land for lease period above threshold limit are classified as a finance lease

2.6.2. Operating Lease
 Lease arrangements which are not classified as finance leases are considered as operating lease.

 Payments made under operating leases are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss with reference to lease terms and other 
relevant considerations. Lease incentives received / lease premium paid (if any) are recognised as an integral part of the total 
lease expense, over the term of the lease. Payments made under Operating Leases are generally recognised in Statement of 
Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, unless such payments are structured to increase in line with 
expected general inflation.

2.7. Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
 Non-financial assets other than inventories, deferred tax assets and non-current assets classified as held for sale are reviewed at 

each Balance Sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.

 An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of assets of cash generating unit (CGU) exceeds their recoverable 
amount.

2.8. Inventories
2.8.1. Valuation of inventories (including in transit) of different categories is as under: -
 a) Crude oil is valued at cost on First in First Out (FIFO) basis or at net realisable value, whichever is lower. Crude oil is not 

written down below cost except in cases where their prices have declined subsequently and it is estimated that the cost of 
the finished goods will exceed their net realisable value.

 b) Raw materials for lubricants are valued at weighted average cost or at net realisable value, whichever is lower.
 c) Stock-in process is valued at raw material cost plus cost of conversion or at net realisable value, whichever is lower.
 d) Finished products other than Lubricants are valued at cost (on FIFO basis month-wise) or at net realisable value, whichever 

is lower.
 e) Finished products (lubricants) are valued at weighted average cost or at net realisable value, whichever is lower.
 f ) Empty packages are valued at weighted average cost.
 g) Stores and spares which do not meet the recognition criteria under Property, Plant and Equipment are valued at weighted 

average cost. Surplus, obsolete and slow moving stores and spares, if any, are valued at cost or net realizable value 
whichever is lower. Surplus items, when transferred from completed projects are valued at cost / estimated value, pending 
periodic assessment / ascertainment of condition. Stores and Spares in transit are valued at cost.

2.8.2. Customs duty on Raw materials/Finished goods lying in bonded warehouse are provided for at the applicable rates except 
where liability to pay duty is transferred to consignee.

2.8.3. Excise duty on finished stocks lying at manufacturing locations is provided for at the assessable value applicable at each of the 
locations based on applicable duty.

2.8.4. The net realisable value of finished goods and stock in trade are final selling prices for sales to oil marketing companies and 
depot prices applicable to the locations. For the purpose of stock valuation, the proportion of sales to oil marketing companies 
and consumer sales are determined on location wise and product wise sales of subsequent period.

2.9. Revenue recognition
2.9.1. Sale of goods
  Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when:

 a) significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are passed to the buyer,

 b) the Corporation retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor 
effective control over the goods sold,
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 c) revenue can be measured reliably,

 d) it is probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Corporation, and

 e) the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

  Revenue from the sale of goods includes excise duty and is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or 
receivable, net of returns, taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government and applicable trade discounts or rebates.

  Revenue is allocated between loyalty programs and other components of the sale. The amount allocated to the loyalty 
program is deferred, and is recognised as revenue when the Corporation has fulfilled its obligation to supply the products 
under the terms of the program or when it is no longer probable that the points under the program will be redeemed.

  Where the Corporation acts as an agent on behalf of a third party, the associated income is recognised on a net basis.

  Claims, including subsidy on Liquified Petroleum Gas (LPG) and Superior Kerosene Oil (SKO), from Government of India are 
booked on in-principle acceptance thereof on the basis of available instructions / clarifications, subject to final adjustments as 
stipulated.

2.9.2. Interest income is recognised taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable effective interest rate.

2.9.3. Dividend is recognised when right to receive the payment is established.

2.10. Accounting / classification of expenditure and income
2.10.1. Income / expenditure in aggregate pertaining to prior year(s) above the threshold limit are corrected retrospectively.

2.10.2. Prepaid expenses upto threshold limit in each case, are charged to revenue as and when incurred.

2.10.3. Insurance claims are accounted on acceptance basis.

2.10.4. All other claims / entitlements are accounted on the merits of each case.

2.10.5. Raw materials consumed are net of discount towards sharing of under-recoveries.

2.11. Employee benefits
2.11.1. Short-term employee benefit
 Short term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit & Loss of the 

year in which the related services are rendered by the employees.

2.11.2. Post-employment benefits
 Defined Contribution Plans:
 Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed in the Statement of Profit & Loss of the year in which 

the related services are rendered by the employees.

 Defined Benefit Plans:
 Post-employment benefits
 Liability towards defined employee benefits (gratuity, pension, post - retirement medical benefits, ex-gratia and resettlement 

allowance) are determined on actuarial valuation by independent actuaries at the year-end by using Projected Unit Credit 
method.

 Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprises of actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets 
(excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised in Other Comprehensive 
Income.

 Other long-term employee benefits
 Liability towards other long term employee benefits (leave encashment, long service awards, provident fund contribution to 

trust and death benefits) are determined on actuarial valuation by independent actuaries using Projected Unit Credit method.

 Re-measurements gains and losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.
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2.11.3. Termination benefits
 Expenditure on account of Voluntary Retirement Schemes, are charged to Statement of Profit & Loss, as and when incurred.

2.12. Foreign currency transactions
2.12.1. Monetary items
 Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the respective exchange rates prevailing at the date of transaction.

 Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at spot rates of exchange at the reporting 
date.

 Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items (except for long term foreign currency monetary 
items outstanding as of 31st March 2016) are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss either as ‘Exchange Rate Variation’ or 
as ‘finance costs’ (to the extent regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs), as the case maybe.

 In case of long term foreign currency monetary items outstanding as of 31st March 2016, foreign exchange differences arising 
on settlement or translation of long term foreign currency monetary items relating to acquisition of depreciable assets are 
adjusted to the carrying cost of the assets and depreciated over the balance life of the asset and in case of other long term 
foreign currency monetary items, if any, accumulated in ‘Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account’ and 
amortised over the balance period of the asset / liability.

2.12.2. Non - Monetary items
 Non-monetary items, other than those measured at fair value, denominated in foreign currency, are valued at the exchange 

rate prevailing on the date of transaction.

2.13. Investment in Subsidiary, associates and joint ventures
 Investments in equity shares of Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures & Associates are recorded at cost and reviewed for impairment at 

each reporting date.

 The Corporation has chosen the carrying value of the investment in Subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures existing as per 
previous GAAP as on date of transition to Ind AS i.e. 1st April 2015 as deemed cost.

2.14. Government Grants
2.14.1. Government grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached 

conditions will be complied with.

2.14.2. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over the 
periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

2.14.3. When the grant relates to property, plant and equipment, the cost of property, plant and equipment is shown at gross value 
and grant thereon is treated as liability (deferred income) and are credited to statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis 
over the useful life of the asset.

2.15. Exploration & production expenditure
 “Successful Efforts Method” of accounting is followed for Oil & Gas exploration and production activities as stated below:

2.15.1. Cost of surveys, studies, carrying and retaining undeveloped properties are expensed out in the year of incurrence.

2.15.2. Cost of acquisition, drilling and development are treated as Capital Work-in-Progress when incurred and are capitalised when 
the well is ready to commence commercial production.

2.15.3. Accumulated costs on exploratory wells in progress are expensed out in the year in which they are determined to be dry.

2.15.4. The proportionate share in the assets, liabilities, income and expenditure of joint operations are accounted as per the 
participating interest in such joint operations.
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2.16. Provisions and contingent liabilities
2.16.1. Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of 

resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation.

2.16.2. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using an appropriate discount rate. When 
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

2.16.3. Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will only be confirmed by future events not wholly within the 
control of the Corporation, or present obligations where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the 
amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

2.16.4. Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of 
economic resources is considered remote.

2.16.5. Contingent liabilities and Capital Commitments disclosed are in respect of items which in each case are above the threshold 
limit.

2.16.6. Contingent Liabilities are considered only when show-cause notice is converted into demand.

2.17. Fair value measurement
2.17.1. Fair value is the price that would be received/ paid to sell an asset or to transfer a liability, as the case may be, in an orderly 

transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous 
market to which the Corporation has access at that date. The fair value of a liability also reflects its non-performance risk.

2.17.2. While measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the Corporation uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair 
values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation technique as 
follows:

 Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

 Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liability, either directly (i.e., as 
prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices)

 Level 3: inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

 Financial Instruments
2.18. Financial Assets
2.18.1. Initial recognition and measurement

 All financial assets (not measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss) are recognised initially at fair value plus 
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

2.18.2. Subsequent measurement
 Subsequent measurement is determined with reference to the classification of the respective financial assets. The Corporation 

classifies financial assets (other than equity instruments) as under:
 (a) subsequently measured at amortised cost;
 (b) fair value through other comprehensive income; or
 (c) fair value through profit or loss

 on the basis of its business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial 
asset.

 Amortised cost
 A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
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 The asset is held within a business model whose objective is

 • To hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

 • Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

 After initial recognition, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate 
(EIR) method and such amortization is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 Debt instruments at Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

 Fair value through profit and loss is a residual category for measurement of debt instruments.

 After initial measurement, any fair value changes including any interest income, impairment loss and other net gains and 
losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 Equity investments
 All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading 

are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Corporation decides to classify the same either as at FVOCI 
or FVTPL. The Corporation makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial 
recognition and is irrevocable.

 For equity instruments classified as FVOCI, all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in 
other comprehensive income (OCI).

 Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all fair value changes being recognized 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.18.3   Impairment of financial assets
 In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Corporation applies Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) model for measurement and recognition 

of impairment loss on the financial assets measured at amortised cost.

 Loss allowances on trade receivables are measured following the ‘simplified approach’ at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL 
at each reporting date.

2.19. Financial Liabilities
2.19.1. Initial recognition and measurement

 All financial liabilities (not measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss) are recognised initially at fair value net of 
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the respective financial liabilities.

2.19.2. Subsequent measurement
 The Corporation classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost by using the Effective Interest Rate 

Method (“EIR”) and such amortisation is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.20. Financial guarantees
 Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequently on each reporting date, the liability is measured 

at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the fair value 
initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.

2.21. Derivative financial instruments
 Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into 

and are subsequently measured at each measurement date at fair value with the fair value changes being recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities 
when the fair value is negative.
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2.22. Offsetting of financial instruments
 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet, if there is a currently 

enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the 
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.23. Taxes on Income
2.23.1. Provision for current tax is made in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

2.23.2. Deferred tax liability/asset on account of temporary difference is recognised using tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively 
enacted as at the Balance Sheet date.

2.23.3. Deferred tax assets are recognised and carried forward for all deductible temporary differences only to the extent that it is 
probable that taxable profit will be available in future against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized.

2.23.4. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets/Liabilities is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

2.23.5. Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, is considered as an asset when it is probable that the future 
economic benefits associated with it, will flow to the Corporation.

2.24. Earnings per share
2.24.1. Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after 

deducting preference dividends, if any, and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the period.

2.24.2. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders 
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential 
equity shares.

2.25. Cash and Cash equivalents
 Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, balances with banks, other short-term, highly liquid investments with 

original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.26. Cash Flows
 Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions 

of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or 
expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities 
are segregated. For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalent consist of cash, as defined above, 
net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Corporation’s cash management.
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3: Property, Plant and equipments

The following are the carrying values of Property, Plant & Equipments:
(` / Crores)

Particulars Land 
-Freehold

Leasehold 
Property - 

Land

Buildings Plant & 
Equipment

Furniture 
& 

Fixtures

Transport 
Equipment

Office 
Equipment

Roads and 
Culverts

Railway 
Siding & 

Rolling 
Stock

E&P 
Assets

Total

Gross Block

As on 01.04.2017 731.01 43.51 4,885.90 30,286.32 166.63 79.69 1,900.81 2,305.13 284.83 – 40,683.83

Additions/ Reclassifications 163.33 21.56 505.43 3,056.48 37.43 22.31 451.43 248.98 27.75 5.77 4,540.47

Deductions/ Reclassifications 0.29 – 5.39 63.62 2.79 0.40 8.85 0.22 0.44 – 82.00

As on 31.03.2018 894.05 65.07 5,385.94 33,279.18 201.27 101.60 2,343.39 2,553.89 312.14 5.77 45,142.30

Depreciation/ Amortisation –

As on 01.04.2017 – 0.06 259.94 3,312.17 36.69 23.76 636.31 660.66 43.24 – 4,972.83

For the year – 0.14 149.85 1,895.79 22.93 11.80 296.10 316.21 22.51 0.35 2,715.68

Deductions/ Reclassifications – – 3.07 53.07 0.69 0.15 7.73 0.14 0.39 – 65.24

As on 31.03.2018 – 0.20 406.72 5,154.89 58.93 35.41 924.68 976.73 65.36 0.35 7,623.27

Net Block as on 01.04.2017 731.01 43.45 4,625.96 26,974.15 129.94 55.93 1,264.50 1,644.47 241.59 – 35,711.00

Net Block as on 31.03.2018 894.05 64.87 4,979.22 28,124.29 142.34 66.19 1,418.71 1,577.16 246.78 5.42 37,519.03

3.1 Includes assets costing ` 0.007 crores /- (2016-2017 :` 0.007 crores) of erstwhile Kosan Gas Company not handed over to the 
Corporation. In case of these assets, Kosan Gas Company was to give up their claim. However, in view of the tenancy right sought 
by third party, the matter is under litigation.

3.2 Includes ` 501.45 Crores (2016-2017: ` 464.72 Crores) towards Building, Other Machinery, Pipelines, Railway Sidings, Right of 
Way etc. being the Corporation’s Share of Cost of Land & Other Assets jointly owned with other Companies.

3.3 Includes ` 35.23 Crores (2016-2017 : ` 35.28 Crores) towards Roads & Culverts, Transformers & Transmission lines, Railway 
Sidings & Rolling Stock, ownership of which does not vest with the Corporation . The Corporation is having operational control 
over such assets. These assets are amortized at the rate of depreciation specified in Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013.

3.4 a) Includes following assets which are used for distribution of PDS Kerosene under Jana Kalyan Pariyojana against which 
financial assistance was provided by OIDB.

Description Orignal Cost (` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Roads & culverts 0.13 0.13
Buildings 1.62 1.62
Plant & Equipment 2.49 2.55
Total 4.24 4.30
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 b) Includes assets held under PAHAL (DBTL) scheme against which financial assistance is being provided by MOP&NG.

Description Orignal Cost (` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Computer Software 7.49 6.93
Computers/ End use devices 5.64 4.45
Office Equipment 0.01 0.01
Automation, Servers & Networks 1.55 1.55
Total 14.69 12.94

3.5 Deduction/ reclassification includes assets ̀  3.49 crores as on 31.03.18 (31.03.17 : ̀  3.97 crores) for which management has given 
consent for disposal & hence classified as Assets held for sale.

3.6 Leasehold Land includes ` 27.57 Crores (2016-17: ` 27.57 Crores) for land acquired on lease-cum-sale basis from Karnataka 
Industrial Area Development Board (KIADB) which is capitalized without being amortised over the period of lease. Lease shall be 
converted into Sale on fulfillment of certain terms and conditions, as per allotment letter.

3.7 In accordance with Para 7AA of Ind AS 21 read with Para D13AA of Ind AS 101, the Corporation has adjusted the exchange 
differences arising on long term foreign currency monetary items to the cost of assets and depreciated over the balance useful 
life of the assets.

3.8 The Corporation has considered the ISBL (Inside boundary Limit) pipeline directly associated as an integral part of Plant and 
Machinery / Tanks and has depreciated such pipelines based on the useful life of respective plants, which is considered as 25 years 
in line with the Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

4: Capital Work-in-Progress
Unallocated Capital Expenditure and Materials at Site 3,615.49 1,613.52
Capital Stores lying with Contractors 14.44 6.25
Capital goods in transit 49.19 24.95

A 3,679.12 1,644.72
Construction period expenses pending apportionment (Net of recovery) :
Opening balance 165.76 236.71
Add:Expenditure during the year

Establishment charges including Salaries and Wages 117.58 79.73
Interest 92.35 68.16
Loss / (gain) on foreign currency transactions and translations 5.02 (193.78)
Others 0.03 0.03

380.74 190.85
Less: Allocated to assets capitalised during the year / charged off 74.47 25.09
Closing balance pending allocation B 306.27 165.76

A + B 3,985.39 1,810.48



66th Annual Report 2017-2018

133

Notes to the Financial Statements as at 31st March 2018

5: Intangible Assets

 The following are the carrying values of Intangible assets :

(` / Crores)

Particulars Right of Way Technical 
/ Process 
Licenses

Software Wind Energy 
Equipments

Total

Gross Block
As on 01.04.2017 170.85 61.69 59.72 188.56 480.82
Additions/ Reclassifications 38.55 1.43 28.90 – 68.88
Deductions/ Reclassifications – 0.93 – – 0.93
As on 31.03.2018 209.40 62.19 88.62 188.56 548.77
Depreciation/ Amortisation –
As on 01.04.2017 – 16.21 23.41 20.32 59.94
For the year – 10.34 16.41 10.33 37.08
Deductions/ Reclassifications – 0.93 – – 0.93
As on 31.03.2018 – 25.62 39.82 30.65 96.09
Net Block as on 01.04.2017 170.85 45.48 36.31 168.24 420.88
Net Block as on 31.03.2018 209.40 36.57 48.80 157.91 452.68

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

6: Investment in Subsidiaries, Joint ventures and Associates
Investments in Equity Instruments
Subsidiaries

Un - Quoted
HPCL - Biofuels Ltd.
20,55,20,000 (31.03.2017 : 20,55,20,000) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up 205.52 205.52
Less : Provision for Impairment 161.00 161.00
Prize Petroleum Co. Ltd (refer note 6.1)
24,50,00,000 (31.03.2017 : 24,50,00,000 Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up 246.28 245.38
Less : Provision for Impairment 129.41 129.41

Associates
Quoted

Mangalore Refinery and Petrochemicals Ltd.
29,71,53,518 (31.03.2017 : 29,71,53,518) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up 471.68 471.68

Un - Quoted
GSPL India Transco Ltd
4,19,10,000 (31.03.2017 : 2,25,50,000) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up 41.91 22.55
GSPL India Gasnet Ltd
4,25,72,128 (31.03.2017 : 3,04,72,128) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up 42.57 30.47
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(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Joint Ventures
Un - Quoted

CREDA HPCL Biofuel Ltd. (refer note 6.2)
Nil (31.03.2017 : 1,60,99,803) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up – 16.10
Less : Provision for Impairment – 16.10
HPCL Rajasthan Refinery Ltd (refer note 6.3)
18,87,37,000 (31.03.2017 : 37,000) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid-up 188.74 74.00
HPCL Shapoorji Energy Pvt. Ltd.
2,00,00,000 (31.03.2017 : 1,30,00,000) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up 20.00 13.00
HPCL-Mittal Energy Ltd.
3,93,95,55,200 (31.03.2017 : 3,93,95,55,200) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up 3,939.56 3,939.56
Hindustan Colas Pvt. Ltd.
47,25,000 (31.03.2017 : 47,25,000) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid-up 4.73 4.73
Petronet India Ltd.
1,60,00,000 (31.03.2017 :1,60,00,000) Equity Shares of ` 0.10 (31.03.2017 : ` 10) each 
fully paid up

0.16 16.00

Petronet MHB Ltd.
17,95,11,020 (31.03.2017 : 17,95,11,020) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up 183.93 183.93
South Asia LPG Co. Pvt. Ltd.
5,00,00,000 (31.03.2017 : 5,00,00,000) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up 50.00 50.00
Bhagyanagar Gas Ltd.
4,36,50,000 (31.03.2017 : 2,25,00,000) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up 128.25 22.50
Aavantika Gas Ltd
2,95,48,663 (31.03.2017 : 2,25,00,000) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up 49.99 22.50
Mumbai Aviation Fuel Farm Facility Pvt. Ltd.
4,18,88,750 (31.03.2017 : 3,82,71,250) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up 41.89 38.27
Godavari Gas Pvt. Ltd.
26,00,000 (31.03.2017 : 26,00,000) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up 2.60 2.60
Ratnagiri Refinery and Petrochemicals Ltd.
2,50,00,000 Equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid up 25.00 –

5,352.40 5,052.28

6.1 : The Net worth of M/s Prize Petroleum Company Limited (PPCL), a 100% subsidiary of the Corporation was partially eroded. The 
Management had considered ̀  24.41 crores as an impairment loss in value of investment. Accordingly, a provision was accounted 
during FY 2016-17. No further impairment is considered necessary during FY 2017-18.

6.2 : M/s CREDA HPCL Biofuel Ltd was dissolved with effect from 08th March 2018. Accordingly, carrying value of investments earlier 
provided for is now written-off.

6.3 : Includes amount of Nil (31.03.2017 : ̀  73.96 crores) towards subscribed, but not paid shares of HPCL Rajasthan Refinery Ltd being 
part of MOA / AOA for which liability is created under Section 10(2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

6.4 : During the FY 2017-18, consequent to reduction in face value of shares Petronet India Ltd (PIL) from ` 10 each share to ` 
0.10, investment in PIL has reduced from ` 16.00 crores as on 31.03.2017 to ` 0.16 crores as on 31.03.2018. Consequently, the 
company has received ` 15.84 Crores during the year.
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6.5 : As per the guidelines issued by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) in August, 2005, the Board of Directors of Navratna Public 
Sector Enterprises (PSEs) can invest in joint ventures and wholly owned subsidiaries subject to an overall ceiling of 30% of the 
net worth of the PSE. The company has requested Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Gas (MOP&NG) to confirm its understanding 
that for calculating this ceiling limit, the amount of investments specifically approved by Government of India (i.e. investment in 
HPCL Mittal Energy Ltd (HMEL) and HPCL Rajasthan Refinery Limited (HRRL)) are to be excluded. The Company has calculated 
the limit of 30% investment in joint ventures and wholly owned subsidiaries, by excluding the investments specifically approved 
by Government of India. As per financial position as on 31st March 2018, the investments in joint ventures and wholly owned 
subsidiaries are well within 30% limit.

6.6 : HPCL Middle East FZCO, a 100% Subsidiary of HPCL was incorporated on 11.02.2018 as a Free Zone Company under Dubai 
Airport Free Zone and Establishment Card was issued on 22.03.2018 for the Company. This foreign subsidiary has been established 
for Trading in Lubricants & Grease, Petrochemicals and Refined Oil Products. HPCL, as a subscriber to the MOA is in the process 
of investing ` 17,742 (AED 1,000) towards share capital and investment upto ` 1 crores on need basis.

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Disclosures towards Cost / Market Value / Impairment
a Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments (Market Value) 3,253.83 3,169.14
b Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments (Cost) 471.68 471.68
c Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments (Cost) 5,171.12 4,887.10
d Aggregate amount of Provision for impairment 290.41 306.51

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

7: Other Investments
Investment in equity instruments carried at fair value through other comprehensive 
income

Quoted
Oil India Ltd. (refer note 7.1)
2,67,50,550 (31.03.2017 : 1,78,33,700) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up 575.94 594.84
Scooters India Ltd. (refer note 7.1)
10,000 (31.03.2017:10,000) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up 0.06 0.04

Investment in equity instruments carried at fair value through Profit and Loss Account
Un - Quoted

Shushrusha Citizen Co-operative Hospital Limited of the face value of ` 0.10 lakhs
100 Equity Shares of ` 100/- each fully paid 0.00 0.00

Total Investments in Equity Instruments 576.00 594.88
Investments in Preference Shares carried at amortized cost
Subsidiaries

Un - Quoted
5% HPCL - Biofuels Ltd. Non-Cumulative Preference Shares
41,96,51,511 (31.03.2017 :41,96,51,511) Preference Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up 177.27 162.63

Total Investments in Preference Shares 177.27 162.63
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(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Investment in Government Securities carried at amortized cost
Government Securities of the face value of ` 0.02 Crores

- Deposited with Others – 0.02
- On hand - Nil (31.03.2017: ` 0.25 lakhs) – 0.00

Government Securities of the face value of ` 0.24 lakhs
- Deposited with Others - Nil (31.03.2017: ` 0.10 lakhs) – 0.00
- On hand - Nil (31.03.2017: ` 0.14 lakhs) – 0.00

Less: Provision for impairment – 0.00
Total Investments in Government Securities – 0.02
Investment in Debentures carried at amortized cost
East India Clinic Ltd.

- 1/2% Debenture of face value of - ` 0.15 lakhs 0.00 0.00
- 5% Debenture of face value of - ` 0.07 lakhs 0.00 0.00

Total Investments in Debentures 0.00 0.00
Other investments carried at fair value through Profit and Loss Account
Structured Entities

Un - Quoted
Petroleum India International (Association of Persons) Contribution towards Seed 
Capital (refer note 7.2)

0.05 0.05

Total Investments in Structured Entities 0.05 0.05
753.32 757.58

7.1 : The Company has designated these investments at fair value through other comprehensive income because these investments 
represent the investments that the corporation intends to hold for long-term strategic purposes. No strategic investments were 
disposed off during the year.

7.2 : Members in Petroleum India International (AOP) : Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Ltd., Bharat Petroleum Corporation Ltd., 
Engineers India Ltd., Indian Oil Corporation Ltd., Indian Petrochemicals Corporation Ltd., Chennai Petroleum Corporation Ltd. 
and Oil India Ltd. Each one is holding 10% share except Indian Oil Corporation which is holding 30% and Bharat Petroleum 
Corporation Ltd. which is holding 20%.

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Disclosure towards Cost / Market Value
a Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments (Market Value) 576.00 594.88
b Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments (Cost) 561.77 561.77
c Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments (Cost) 177.32 162.70
d Aggregate amount of Provision for impairment – 0.00
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(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

8: Loans
Secured, considered good

Employee loans and advances and Interest thereon 306.14 283.58
Unsecured, considered good

Deposits 102.19 89.41
Loans to related parties (refer note 52) 16.80 50.40
Other Loans 36.48 33.04

461.61 456.43

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

9: Other non-Current Assets
Balances with Excise, Customs, etc. 164.20 163.84
Deposits 44.01 42.09
Advance Tax (net of provisions) 200.79 250.86
Capital advances 158.73 220.24
Prepaid employee cost 133.93 129.67
Prepaid Lease Rental 612.93 509.07
Others Prepaid Expenses 94.49 23.11

1,409.08 1,338.88

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

10: Inventories
Raw materials (Including in transit 31.03.2018 : ` 1313.86 crores; 31.03.2017 : ` 1,420.99 Crores) 3,951.88 3,312.86
Work-in-progress 735.94 442.25
Finished goods (Including in transit 31.03.2018 : ` 149.51 crores ; 31.03.2017 : ` 123.78 Crores) 5,776.32 5,988.50
Stock-in-trade (Including in transit 31.03.2018 : ` 1,111.11 crores ;31.03.2017 : ` 907.13 Crores) 7,570.25 8,456.30
Stores and spares (Including in transit 31.03.2018 : ` 10.67 crores; 31.03.2017 : ` 13.90 Crores) 389.15 373.02
Less : provision for stores and spares 9.49 9.49
Packages 6.17 12.84

18,420.22 18,576.28

10.1. The write-down of inventories to net realisable value during the year amounted to ̀  114.35 crores (31.03.2017 : ̀  212.09 crores). 
The write downs and reversal are included in cost of materials consumed, changes in inventories of finished goods and work in 
progress.
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(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

11: Investments
Investments carried at fair value through Profit and Loss Account
Quoted - Government Securities

6.90% Oil Marketing Companies' GOI Special Bonds, 17,36,36,000 (31.03.2017 : 24,71,36,000) 
` 100 each face value (refer note 11.1) 

1,643.84 2,388.88

8.00% Oil Marketing Companies' GOI Special Bonds, 24,41,000 (31.03.2017 : 24,41,000) ` 100 
each face value

24.68 25.13

8.20% Oil Marketing Companies' GOI Special Bonds, 1,23,49,000 (31.03.2017 : 1,23,49,000) 
` 100 each face value 

126.51 128.64

6.35% Oil Marketing Companies' GOI Special Bonds, 18,32,33,000 (31.03.2017 : 25,32,33,000) 
` 100 each face value 

1,699.61 2,364.43

7.59% Government of India, G - Sec Bonds, 1,85,00,000 (31,03.2017 : 1,85,00,000) ` 100 each 
face value (refer note 11.1) 

184.63 193.88

7.72% Government of India, G - Sec Bonds, 8,36,00,000 ` 100 each face value (refer Note 11.1) 848.84 –
8.33% Government of India, G - Sec Bonds, 1,80,00,000 ` 100 each face value (refer Note 11.1) 187.41 –
8.15% Government of India, G - Sec Bonds, 2,75,00,000 ` 100 each face value (refer Note 11.1) 283.86 –

A 4,999.38 5,100.96
Un - Quoted - Equity instruments

Sai Wardha Power Generation Ltd.
Nil (31.03.2017 : 77,83,468) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up – 7.78

B – 7.78
A+B 4,999.38 5,108.74

11.1 : 6.90% Oil Marketing Companies GOI Special Bonds 2026 of ` 1378.64 Crores, 7.59 % G-Sec Bonds 2026 of ` 183.00 Crores, 
7.72 % G-Sec Bonds 2025 of ` 615.00 Crores, 8.33 % G-Sec Bonds 2026 of ` 180.00 Crores and 8.15 % G-Sec. Bonds 2026 of 
` 275.00 Crores, are pledged with Clearing Corporation of India Limited against CBLO Loan.

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Disclosure towards Cost / Market Value
a Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments (Market Value) 4,999.38 5,100.96
b Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments (Cost) 5,267.26 5,343.23
b Aggregate amount of Un - Quoted Investments (Cost) – 7.78
d Aggregate amount of Provision for impairment – –

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

12: Trade Receivables
Unsecured considered good 5,583.01 4,085.90
Doubtful 123.05 143.08
Less: Allowances for Bad and Doubtful Debts 123.05 143.08
Less: Impairment Provision (Expected Credit Loss Model) 10.10 21.69

5,572.91 4,064.21
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(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

13: Cash and Cash equivalents
Balances with Scheduled Banks:

- on Current Accounts 2.69 1.14
- on Non-Operative Current Accounts 0.01 0.01

Cheques Awaiting Deposit 0.00 0.06
Cash on Hand 7.97 7.64

10.67 8.85

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

14: Other Bank Balances
Earmarked balances with banks for unpaid dividend 16.86 14.90
Fixed Deposits with 3 - 12 months maturity (refer note 14.1) 1,166.58 9.92

1,183.44 24.82

14.1: Includes ` 1,150 Crores (31.03.2017 : ` Nil) Earmarked for project purposes. 

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

15: Loans
Secured, considered good

Employee loans and advances and Interest thereon 31.10 33.13
Unsecured, considered good

Loans to related parties (refer note 52) 33.60 108.60
Other Loans (refer note 15.1) 24.64 21.48

89.34 163.21

15.1: Includes ̀  12.00 crores (31.03.2017: ̀  12.00 crores) recoverable from Chembur Hospital Project Trust (CHPT) on demand. In view 
of the management the amount is recoverable and this matter will be taken up with the trust.

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

16: Other Financial Assets
Amounts recoverable under subsidy schemes 524.06 1,211.33
Interest accrued on Investments 88.17 74.39
Derivative Assets 92.09 58.41
Delayed payment charges receivable from customers 285.90 205.68
Less: Provision for doubtful delayed payment charges receivables 97.89 78.85
Receivables from Govt of India towards Direct Benefit Transfer of LPG (DBTL) 3,188.28 1,244.75
Balance with LIC 892.25 826.52
Other Receivables 1,021.58 793.63
Less: Provision for doubtful other receivables 75.50 11.42

5,918.94 4,324.44
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(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

17: Other Current Assets
Advance recoverable other than cash 43.05 9.37
Balances with Excise, Customs, etc. 354.00 481.97
Prepaid employee cost 14.68 13.67
Prepaid Lease Rental 40.47 36.53
Other Prepaid Expenses 105.41 83.85
Gold Coins in Hand 5.83 5.32
Other Current Assets 111.88 17.10

675.32 647.81

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

18: equity Share capital
A. Authorised:

75,000 (31.03.2017 : 75,000) Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of ` 100/- each 0.75 0.75
2,49,92,50,000 (31.03.2017 : 2,49,92,50,000) Equity Shares of ` 10/- each 2,499.25 2,499.25

2,500.00 2,500.00
B. Issued & Subscribed:

1,52,45,25,375 (31.03.2017 : 1,01,65,84,500) Equity Shares of ` 10 each 1,524.53 1,016.58
C. Fully Paid up :

1,52,38,22,625 (31.03.2017 : 1,01,58,81,750) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up 1,523.82 1,015.88
D. Shares Forfeited :

7,02,750 (31.03.2017 : 7,02,750) Shares Forfeited (money received) 0.39 0.39
1,524.21 1,016.27

E. Reconciliation of number of equity shares
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,01,58,81,750 33,86,27,250
Equity shares allotted as fully paid bonus shares (refer note # H) 50,79,40,875 67,72,54,500
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,52,38,22,625 1,01,58,81,750

F. Rights and Restrictions on Equity / preference Shares
 The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having a face value of ` 10/- per share which are issued and subscribed. 

Each Shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the 
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of the 
winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company 
in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders and the amount paid up thereon.

 The Company also has 75,000 6% cumulative Redeemable Non-convertible Preference Shares of ` 100 /- each as a part 
of the Authorised Capital, which were issued earlier by the erstwhile ESSO Standard Refining Co. of India Ltd. (ESRC) . 
Presently the said Preference Shares stand redeemed.
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G. Details of shares held by each shareholder, holding more than 5% shares in the company:
31.03.2018

Name of shareholders % Holding No. of Shares
Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited 51.11 77,88,45,375

31.03.2017

Name of shareholders % Holding No. of Shares
President of India 51.11 51,92,30,250

H. In the period of five years immediately preceding 31st March, 2018:
 The Corporation had issued Bonus Shares during Financial Year 2017-18, in the ratio of 1:2 (2016-17: 2:1) by capitalization of Reserve.
 The total number of Bonus Shares issued is 50,79,40,875 (2016-17 : 67,72,54,500) equity shares having face value of ` 10 each.

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

19: Reserves and Surplus
Share Premium Account (i) – 476.52
Debenture Redemption Reserve (ii) – 265.13
Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account (iii) (0.64) (0.44)
General Reserve (iv) 1,777.65 1,809.07
Retained Earnings (v) 20,632.77 16,747.75

22,409.78 19,298.03
(i) Share Premium Account

As per last Balance Sheet 476.52 1,153.77
Less: bonus shares issue 476.52 677.25

– 476.52
(ii) Debenture Redemption Reserve

As per last Balance Sheet 265.13 265.13
Less: Transfer to Retained Earnings (refer note 19.1) 265.13 –

– 265.13
19.1:During the Financial Year 2017 – 18, consequent to repayment of 8.77% 

Non-Convertible Debentures, Debenture Redemption Reserve created out of 
Retained Earnings earlier is now transferred back to Retained Earnings.

(iii) Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account*
As per last Balance Sheet (0.44) (194.80)
Add : Additions during the year (0.56) (160.02)
Less : Amortised during the year (0.36) (354.38)

(0.64) (0.44)
 * In accordance with the option exercised by the Corporation, balance appearing 

in “Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account” is related 
to non-depreciable assets remaining to be amortized over the balance period 
of loan.
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(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

(iv) General Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet 1,809.07 1,809.07
Less: bonus shares issue 31.42 –

1,777.65 1,809.07
(v) Retained Earnings

As per last Balance Sheet 16,747.75 14,740.12
Add : Profit for the year 6,357.07 6,208.80
Add : Transfer from Debenture Redemption Reserve 265.13 –
Less : Profit appropriated to Interim / Proposed Dividend 2,321.29 3,477.70
Less : Profit appropriated to Tax on Distributed Profits 472.56 707.98
Less : Remeasurment (Gain) / Loss on Defined Benefit Plans (56.67) 15.49

20,632.77 16,747.75
22,409.78 19,298.03

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

20: Other Reserves
Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income
As per last Balance Sheet 33.11 (142.50)
Add : Additions during the year (18.88) 175.61

14.23 33.11

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

21: Borrowings
Bonds or Debentures

Secured
8.77% Non-convertible debentures (refer note 21.1) – 975.00
Un - secured
Foreign Currency Bonds (refer note 21.2) 3,246.88 –

Term loans
Secured
Oil Industry Development Board (refer note 21.3) 188.06 283.75
Un - secured
Syndicated Loans from Foreign Banks (repayable in foreign currency) (refer note 21.4) 6,793.76 9,098.55

10,228.70 10,357.30
Less : Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings 1,397.92 4,079.15

8,830.78 6,278.15
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21.1 : Debentures

 The Company had issued the following Secured Redeemable Non-convertible Debentures:

 8.77% Non-Convertible Debentures were issued on 13th March, 2013 with the maturity date of 13th of March, 2018.The 
Corporation has redeemed the debentures on 13th March 2018. These were secured by first legal mortgage by way of a 
Registered Debenture Trust Deed over immovable property of the company being undivided share of land with the entire First 
Floor in the building High Street 1, situated at Ahmedabad and the first charge of fixed assets mainly certain Plant and Machinery 
at Visakh Refinery. The relevant charge has been satisfied. The value of such assets was ` 1,111.87 Crores as on 31.03.2017

21.2 : Foreign Currency Bonds
Particulars of Bonds Date of Issue Date of Repayment

USD 500 million bonds; Interest Rate: 4% p.a. payable at Half Yearly 12th July 2017 12th July 2027

21.3 : Term Loans from Oil Industry Development Board (Secured)
Repayable during Amount in (` / Crores) as on Range of Interest Rate as on

31.03.2018 31.03.2017 31.03.2018 31.03.2017

2017-18 – 95.69 – 7.86%-9.27%
2018-19 95.69 95.69 7.86%-9.27% 7.86%-9.27%
2019-20 61.19 61.19 7.86%-9.11% 7.86%-9.11%
2020-21 31.18 31.18 7.86%-8.09% 7.86%-8.09%

Total 188.06 283.75

Security has been created with first charge on the facilities of Awa Salawas Pipeline, Manglore Hasan Mysore LPG Pipeline, 
Uran-Chakan / Shikarpur LPG Pipeline and Rewari Project Pipeline. The value of such assets is ` 2,247.24 crores (31.03.2017: ` 
2,199.29 crores). ̀  95.69 crores (31.03.2017: ̀  95.69 crores) is repayable within 1 year and the same has been shown as “Current 
Maturity of Long Term Borrowings” under Note # 27

21.4 : Syndicated Loans from Foreign Banks (repayable in foreign currency)

The Corporation has availed Long Term Foreign Currency Syndicated Loans from banks at 3 months floating LIBOR plus spread 
(spread range: 30 to 155 basis point p.a.). These loans are taken for the period up to 5 years. ` 1,302.23 Crores (31.03.2017: ` 
3,008.46 crores) is repayable within 1 year and the same has been shown as “Current Maturity of Long Term Borrowings” under 
Note # 27.

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

22: Other Financial Liabilities
Other Liabilities 0.47 0.44

0.47 0.44
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(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

23: Provisions
Provision for employee benefits 77.22 182.32

77.22 182.32

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

24: Other non-Current Liabilities
Capital Grant 3.99 7.67

3.99 7.67

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

25: Borrowings
Loans repayable on demand
Secured

from banks
Cash Credit (Secured by hypothecation of Inventories in favour of Banks on pari passu 
basis)

2,440.22 1,741.73

from other parties
Collateral Borrowing and Lending Obligation (refer Note 25.1) 1,489.47 1,489.51

Un - Secured
from banks
Clean Loans 2,600.00 1,200.00
Short term loans 2,737.56 –
from other parties
Commercial papers 1,494.93 6,461.17

10,762.18 10,892.41

25.1 : 6.90% Oil Marketing Companies GOI Special Bonds 2026 of ` 1378.64 Crores, 7.59% G-Sec Bonds 2026 of ` 183.00 Crores, 
7.72% G-Sec Bonds 2025 of ` 615.00 Crores, 8.33% G-Sec Bonds 2026 of ` 180.00 Crores and 8.15% G-Sec. Bonds 2026 of 
` 275.00 Crores, are pledged with Clearing Corporation of India Limited against CBLO Loan.

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

26: Trade Payables
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME) (refer note 47) 170.07 22.76
Other than MSME 15,533.80 12,641.80

15,703.87 12,664.56
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(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

27: Other Financial Liabilities
Current maturities of Long Term Borrowings (refer note 27.1) 1,397.92 4,079.15
Interest accrued but not due on loans 44.48 21.19
Unpaid Dividend (refer note 27.2) 16.86 14.90
Derivative liability 19.94 1.75
Deposits from Dealers /Consumers/Suppliers (refer note 27.3 & 27.4) 12,416.93 10,996.83
Other Financial Deposits 10.23 11.49
Other liabilities 598.48 626.67

14,504.84 15,751.98

27.1 : This includes loans repayable within one year: Syndicated Loans from Foreign Banks (repayable in foreign currency) ` 1,302.23 
crores (31.03.2017 : ` 3,008.46 crores), 8.77% Non - Convertible Debenture Nil (31.03.2017 :` 975.00 crores), Loan from Oil 
Industry and Development Board ` 95.69 crores (31.03.2017 : ` 95.69 crores).

27.2 : No amount is due as at the end of the year for credit to Investors’ Education and Protection Fund.

27.3 : The Corporation, based on the substance and nature of the deposits received from customers/dealers largely towards cylinders, 
had presented such deposits under the head non-current financial liabilities during the Financial year 2016-17. Subsequently 
during the financial year 2017-18, there was a direction by C&AG on the said classification. In view of the same, the said deposits 
have been re-classified as current financial liabilities. This classification has no impact on the profit for the period. Expert Advisory 
Committee of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India has been approached for an opinion in the matter, which is awaited.

27.4 : Includes deposit received towards Rajiv Gandhi Gramin LPG Vitrak Yojana and Prime Minister Ujjavala Yojana of ̀  1,557.86 crores 
(31.03.2017 : ` 941.61 crores) The deposits against these schemes have been funded from CSR fund or by Government of India.

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

28: Other Current Liabilities
Revenue Received in Advance 707.49 726.98
Capital Grant 4.14 3.50
Statutory Payables 2,750.75 3,046.39
Other Liabilities 139.67 191.34

3,602.05 3,968.21

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

29: Provisions
Employee Benefits 1,640.49 1,584.96
Provisions for probable obligations (refer note 59) 867.76 823.54

2,508.25 2,408.50

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

30: Current Tax Liabilities (net)
Provision for tax (net of advance tax) 296.16 72.61

296.16 72.61
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(` / Crores)
2017-18 2016-17

31 : Gross Sale of Products
Sale of Products 2,42,462.78 2,12,196.37
Recovery under Subsidy Schemes 763.88 1,292.58

2,43,226.66 2,13,488.95

31.1 : Net of discount of ` 2,229.17 crores (2016 - 17 : ` 1,920.07 crores) and includes amount towards additional State Specific Cost 
(SSC) of Nil (2016 - 17 : ` 57.21 Crores).

31.2 : During the current financial year 2017-18, Subsidy on PDS Kerosene and Domestic Subsidized LPG from Central and State 
Governments amounting to ` 7.54 crores (2016-17: ` 20.01 crores) has been accounted.

31.3 : Approval of Government of India for Budgetary Support amounting to ` 756.34 crores (2016-17: ` 1,272.57 crores) has been 
received and the same has been accounted under ‘Recovery under Subsidy Schemes’.

(` / Crores)
2017-18 2016-17

32 : Other Operating Revenues
Rent Recoveries 565.02 116.74
Net Recovery for LPG Filling Charges 1.33 2.40
Miscellaneous Operating Income 292.11 261.73

858.46 380.87

(` / Crores)
2017-18 2016-17

33 : Other Income
Interest Income on Financial Assets carried at amortized cost:

On Deposits 0.64 0.87
On Staff Loans 29.44 35.06
On Customers' Accounts 197.99 135.47

Interest On Current Investments carried at fair value through Profit and Loss Account 364.87 366.75
Interest on Others Financial Assets carried at amortized cost 205.86 182.85

798.80 721.00
Dividend Income from Joint Venture/ Associate Companies 319.11 52.72
Dividend Income from non-current equity instruments at FVOCI 33.44 27.64
Gain on Foreign Currency Transaction and Translation (net) 322.39 147.44
Fair value gain on Current Investments carried at FVTPL – 221.77
Profit on Sale of Current Investment – 32.36
Share of Profit/ (Loss) from Petroleum India International (AOP) (0.02) 0.94
Miscellaneous Income 375.74 244.21

1,050.66 727.08
1,849.46 1,448.08
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(` / Crores)
2017-18 2016-17

34 : Cost of Materials Consumed
Cost of Raw Materials Consumed 50,937.67 44,879.42
Packages Consumed 248.63 258.24

51,186.30 45,137.66

(` / Crores)
2017-18 2016-17

35 : Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in / Trade and Work-in-Progress 
(Increase)/ Decrease
Closing Stock:

Work-in-progress 735.94 442.25
Finished Goods 5,776.32 5,988.50
Stock-in-trade 7,570.25 8,456.30

14,082.51 14,887.05
Less: Opening Stock:

Work - in - Progress 442.25 224.33
Finished Goods 5,988.50 6,646.48
Stock - in - Trade 8,456.30 3,562.18

14,887.05 10,432.99
804.54 (4,454.06)

(` / Crores)
2017-18 2016-17

36 : Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries, Wages, Bonus, etc. 2,293.01 1,986.01
Contribution to Provident Fund 141.59 129.70
Pension, Gratuity and Other Employee Benefits 215.59 516.35
Employee Welfare Expenses 208.33 314.02

2,858.52 2,946.08

(` / Crores)
2017-18 2016-17

37 : Finance Costs
Interest 468.70 422.13
Exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs 41.75 –
Other borrowing costs (refer note 37.1) 56.26 113.52

566.71 535.65

37.1 : Includes interest u/s 234B / 234C of Income Tax Act, 1961 for an amount ` 10.20 crores (2016 - 17 : ` 26.73 crores).
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(` / Crores)
2017 - 18 2016 - 17

38 : Other expenses
Consumption of Stores, Spares and Chemicals 244.34 296.22
Power and Fuel 2,613.75 2,255.24
Less : Fuel of own production consumed 2,259.39 2,118.39

354.36 136.85
Repairs and Maintenance - Buildings 49.22 50.52
Repairs and Maintenance - Plant and Machinery 930.91 835.60
Repairs and Maintenance - Other Assets 382.63 323.85
Insurance 58.00 64.18
Rates and Taxes 244.94 174.26
Irrecoverable Taxes and Other Levies 454.37 376.42
Equipment Hire Charges 2.62 1.53
Lease Rentals on Operating Lease 368.10 335.09
Travelling and Conveyance 223.39 202.52
Printing and Stationery 18.82 18.36
Electricity and Water 796.43 733.89
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Expenses 156.87 108.11
Stores and spares written off 0.57 12.14
Loss on Sale of Current Investment 60.24 –
Fair value Loss on Current Investments carried at FVTPL 25.09 –
Impairment/(Reversal of Impairment) in value of Non - Current Investments (16.10) 8.41
Provision for Doubtful Receivables (After adjusting provision no longer required written back 
` 2.61 crores, 2016-17: ` 5.40 crores)

82.91 0.66

Provision for Doubtful Debts (After adjusting provision no longer required written back ` 0.21 
crores, 2016-17: ` 0.52 crores)

(31.62) 1.29

Bad Debts written off 49.86 5.26
Loss on Disposal / write off of Non - Current Investments 16.12 –
Loss on Sale/ write off of Property Plant & Equipments / CWIP / Non current assets held for 
sale (Net)

4.55 6.54

Security Charges 251.55 164.42
Advertisement and Publicity 169.55 156.79
Sundry Expenses and Charges (Not otherwise classified) 527.67 666.50
Consultancy and Technical Services 58.11 73.09
Payments to the auditors for:

- Audit Fees 0.69 0.60
- other Services 0.26 0.25
- Reimbursement of expenses 0.03 0.09

5,484.48 4,753.44
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39: Fair value Measurements

39.A : Classification of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities:

  The following table shows the carrying amounts of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities which are classified as at Fair value 
through Profit and Loss (FVTPL), Fair value through other comprehancive Income (FVTOCI) and Amortized Cost.

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised 
cost

FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised 
cost

Financial assets
(a) Investments
 – Investment in Equity Instruments 576.00 594.88
 – Investment in Preference Shares 177.27 162.63
 – Investment in Debt Instruments 4,999.38 5,100.96
 – Others 0.05 – 7.83 0.02
(b) Loans
 – Employee Loans 337.24 316.71
 – Loans to Related Parties 50.40 159.00
 – Others 163.31 143.93
(c) Trade receivables 5,572.91 4,064.21
(d) Cash and cash equivalents 10.67 8.85
(e) Other Bank Balances 1,183.44 24.82
(f ) Derivative Assets 92.09 58.41
(g) Amounts recoverable under subsidy schemes 524.06 1,211.33
(h) Others 5,302.79 3,054.70
Total 5,091.52 576.00 13,322.09 5,167.20 594.88 9,146.20

Financial liabilities
(a) Borrowings
 – Non-convertible debentures – 975.00
 – Foreign Currency Bonds 3,246.88 –
 – Oil Industry Development Board 188.06 283.75
 – Syndicated Loans from Foreign Banks 6,793.76 9,098.55
 – Cash Credit 2,440.22 1,741.73
 – Short term loans from banks 2,737.56 –
 – Clean Loans 2,600.00 1,200.00
 – Collateral Borrowing and Lending Obligation 1,489.47 1,489.51
 – Commercial papers 1,494.93 6,461.17
(b) Trade Payables 15,703.87 12,664.56
(c) Deposits from Consumers 12,416.93 10,996.83
(d) Derivative liabilities 19.94 1.75
(e) Others 670.52 674.69
Total 19.94 – 49,782.20 1.75 – 45,585.79
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39.B : Fair value hierarchy

  This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities that are recognised and measured at fair value and at amortised cost. To provide an indication about the reliability 
of the inputs used in determining fair value, Corporation has classified its Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities into 
the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. It does not include fair value information for financial assets 
and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value. An 
explanation of each level is provided under Significant Accounting Policy. 

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Investments
- Investment in Equity Instruments 576.00 594.88
- Investment in Preference Shares 223.32 265.21
- Investment in Debt Instruments 4,999.38 5,100.98
- Others 0.05 7.83
Loans & Advances
- Employee Loans 337.24 316.71
Derivative Assets 92.09 58.41

Total 5,575.38 652.70 – 5,695.86 648.16 –
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
- Non-convertible debentures – 990.66
- Foreign Currency Bonds 3,125.75 –
- Oil Industry Development Board Loan 190.39 290.99
Derivative Liabilities 19.94 1.75

Total – 3,336.08 – – 1,283.40 –

39.C : Valuation techniques used to determine Fair Value

Type Valuation technique
Derivative instruments - forward exchange 
contracts

Discounted cash flow i.e. fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts 
is estimated by discounting the difference between the contractual forward 
price and the current forward price for the residual maturity of the contract.

Commodity derivatives Fair value of commodity derivative contracts is estimated by determining the 
difference between the contractual price and the current forward price for 
the residual maturity of the contract.

Derivative instruments - interest rate swap Discounted cash flows i.e. Present value of expected receipt/payment.
Non current financial assets and liabilities 
measured at amortised cost

Discounted cash flows. The valuation model considers the present value of 
expected receipt/payment discounted using appropriate discounting rates.
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40: Financial risk management

40.A : Risk management framework

  Your Corporation has adopted a well-defined process for managing its risks on an ongoing basis and for conducting the 
business in a risk conscious manner. There are defined processes for identification, assessment and mitigation of risks on an 
ongoing basis. Risk assessment is considered as critical input for decision making related to strategy formulation and capital 
allocation. Your corporation has also leveraged technology to integrate and automate the entire process of enterprise risk 
management. The Company has also engaged the services of an independent expert to assist in continued implementation 
of effective Risk Management framework and improve the framework further. These self-regulatory ERM processes and 
procedures form part of our Risk Management Charter and Policy, 2007.

  Risk Management Steering Committee (RMSC) continues to provide its guidance in this regard. Your Corporation has put in 
place mechanism to inform Board Members about the risk assessment and minimization procedures, and periodical review 
to ensure that executive management controls risks by means of a properly identified framework.

40.B : Corporation has identified financial risk and categorised them in three parts Viz. (i) Credit Risk, (ii) Liquidity Risk 
& (iii) Market Risk. Details regarding sources of risk in each such category and how Corporation manages the risk 
is explained in following notes:

40.B.1 : Credit risk

  Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Corporation if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its 
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Corporation’s receivables from customers and investment securities. 
Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness 
of customers to which the Corporation grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The Corporation establishes 
an allowance for doubtful debts and impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other 
receivables and investments.

  The maximum exposure to credit risk in case of all the financial instruments covered below is resticted to their respective 
carrying amount.

  Trade receivables

  The Corporation’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. Credit risk is 
managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers 
to which the Corporation grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

  At 31.03.2018, the Corporation’s most significant customer accounted for ` 1109.30 crores of the trade receivables carrying 
amount (31.03.2017 : ` 1,068.86 crores).

  The Corporation uses an allowance matrix to measure the expected credit losses of trade receivables (which are considered 
good). The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and loss allowance (including expected 
credit loss provision) for trade receivables:

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Gross 
carrying 
amount

Weighed 
average 
loss rate

Loss 
allowance

Gross 
carrying 
amount

Weighed 
average 
loss rate

Loss 
allowance

Past due 0-90 days 5,219.01 0.04% 1.83 3,694.81 0.06% 2.26
Past due 91–360 days 353.37 0.42% 1.47 355.68 1.00% 2.20
More than 360 days 133.68 97.13% 129.85 178.49 89.81% 160.31

5,706.06 133.15 4,228.98 164.77
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  The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows:
(` / Crores)

Balance as at 01.04.2016 163.47
Add : Impairment loss recognised 5.48
Less : Amounts written off 4.18
Balance as at 31.03.2017 164.77
Add : Impairment loss recognised 15.09
Less : Amounts written off 46.71
Balance as at 31.03.2018 133.15

  The amounts written off at each reporting date relates to customers who have defaulted on their payments to the Corporation 
and are not expected to be able to pay their outstanding balances, mainly due to economic circumstances.

  Cash and cash equivalents

  The Corporation held cash and cash equivalents of ` 10.67 crores at 31.03.2018 (31.03.2017 : ` 8.85 crores). The cash 
and cash equivalents are held with consortium banks. Corporation invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit, Govt of 
India T-bills and liquid Schemes of Mutual Funds, which carry no mark to market risks for short duration and exposes the 
Corporation to low credit risk.

  Derivatives

  The forex and interest rate derivatives were entered into with banks having an investment grade rating and exposure to 
counter-parties are closely monitored and kept within the approved limits. Commodity derivatives are entered with reputed 
Counterparties in the OTC (Over-the-Counter) Market.

  Investment in debt securities

  Investment in debt securities are in government securities or bonds which do not carry any credit risk, being sovereign in  
nature.

  Other than trade receivables, the Corporation has no other financial assets that are past due but not impaired.

40.B.2 : Liquidity risk

  Liquidity risk is the risk that the Corporation will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. Corporation 
has a strong focus on effective management of its liquidity to ensure that all business and financial commitments are met on 
time. The Corporation has adequate borrowing limits in place duly approved by its Shareholders and Board. Corporation’s 
sources of liquidity includes operating cash flows, cash and cash equivalents, fund and non-fund based lines from banks 
and liquid investment portfolio. Corporation ensures that there is minimal concentration risk by diversifying its portfolio 
across instruments and counterparties. Cash and fund flow management is monitored daily in order to have smooth and 
continuous business operations.

 (i) Financing arrangements

  The Corporation has an adequate fund and non-fund based lines from various banks. The Corporation has sufficient borrowing 
limits in place duly, approved by its Shareholders and Board. Domestic and international credit rating from reputed credit 
rating agencies enables access of funds both from domestic as well as international market. Corporation’s diversified source 
of funds and strong operating cash flow enables it to maintain requisite capital structure discipline. Corporation diversifies 
its capital structure with a mix of instruments and financing products across varying maturities and currencies. The financing 
products include syndicated loans, foreign currency bonds, commercial paper, non-convertible debentures, buyer’s credit 
loan, clean loan etc. Corporation taps domestic as well as foreign debt markets from time to time to ensure appropriate 
funding mix and diversification of geographies.
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 (ii) Maturities of financial liabilities

  The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Contractual cash flows
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Upto 1 
year

1-3 years more than 
3 years

Upto 1 
year

1-3 years more than 
3 years

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings and interest thereon 12,571.08 6,161.76 4,078.46 15,282.28 4,880.95 1,685.94
Trade payables 15,703.87 – – 12,664.56 – –
Other financial liabilities 670.52 – 12,416.93 674.69 – 10,996.83
Financial guarantee contracts* – – 560.55 – – 570.72
Total 28,945.47 6,161.76 17,055.94 28,621.53 4,880.95 13,253.49
Derivative financial liabilities
Interest rate swaps (31.88) (41.93) – 10.75 9.86 0.54
Commodity contracts (net settled) (19.76) – 5.14 – –
Total (51.64) (41.93) – 15.89 9.86 0.54

  * Guarantee issued by the Corporation on behalf of the Subsidiary is with respect to borrowings raised by its Subsidiary. This 
amount will be payable on default by the concerned Subsidiary. As of the reporting date there has been no default by the 
Subsidiary and hence, the Corporation does not have any present obligation in relation to such guarantee.

40.B.3 : Market Risk - Market Risk is further categorised in (i) Currency risk , (ii) Interest rate risk & (iii) Commodity risk:

40.B.3.1: Currency risk:

  The Corporation is exposed to currency risk mainly on account of its borrowings and import payables in foreign currency. 
Our exposures are mainly denominated in U.S. dollars. The Corporation has used generic derivative contracts to mitigate the 
risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates in line with Corporation’s forex risk management policy. The Corporation 
has a Forex Risk Management Cell (FRMC) which actively review the forex and interest rate exposures. The Corporation does 
not uses derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.
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  Exposure to currency risk - The currency profile of financial assets and financial liabilities is as below:

(` / Crores)
Contractual cash flows

31.03.2018 31.03.2017
INR Exposure in USD 

(INR terms)
INR Exposure in USD 

(INR terms)
Financial assets
Non-current investments 753.32 – 757.58 –
Current investments 4,999.38 – 5,108.74 –
Long-term loans 461.61 – 456.43 –
Short-term loans 89.34 – 163.21 –
Trade receivables 5,427.82 145.09 3,746.34 317.87
Cash and Cash Equivalents 10.67 – 8.85 –
Other Bank Balances 1,183.44 – 24.82 –
Others Non Current Financial Assets – – – –
Others Current Financial Assets 5,918.94 – 4,324.44 –
Net exposure for assets - A 18,844.52 145.09 14,590.41 317.87
Financial liabilities
Long term borrowings 188.06 10,040.64 1,258.75 9,098.55
Short term borrowings 8,024.62 2,737.56 10,892.41 –
Trade Payables 10,112.53 5,591.34 7,659.27 5,005.29
Other Financial Liabilities 13,107.39 – 11,673.27 –
Net exposure for liabilities - B 31,432.60 18,369.54 31,483.70 14,103.84
Net exposure (Assets - Liabilities)(A - B) 12,588.08 18,224.45 16,893.29 13,785.97

  The following exchange rates have been applied during the year:

INR 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
USD 1 65.1800 64.8550

  Sensitivity analysis:

  The table below show sensitivity of open forex exposure to USD/INR movement. We have considered 1% (+/-) change in 
USD/INR movement, increase indicates appreciation in USD/INR whereas decrease indicates depreciation in USD/INR. The 
indicative 1% movement is directional and does not reflect management’s forecast on currency movement.

(` / Crores)

Effect in INR Impact on profit or loss due to % 
increase / Decrease in currency

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

1% movement 1% 1%
USD 182.24 (182.24) 137.86 (137.86)
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40.B.3.2: Interest rate risk

  Corporation has long-term foreign currency syndicated loans with floating rate, which expose the Corporation to cash flow 
interest rate risk. The borrowings at floating rate were denominated in USD. The Corporation manages its cash flow interest 
rate risk by using floating-to-fixed interest rate swaps. Under these swaps, the Corporation agrees with other parties to 
exchange, at specified intervals (i.e quarterly), the difference between fixed contract rates and floating rate interest amounts 
calculated by reference to the agreed notional principal amounts. Corporation monitors the interest rate movement and 
manages the interest rate risk based on the Corporation’s Forex Risk Management Policy. The Corporation also has a Forex 
Risk Management Cell (FRMC) which actively review the forex and interest rate exposures. The Corporation does not uses 
derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

  The Corporation’s fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk 
as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in 
market interest rates.

  Following is the derivative financial instruments to hedge the interest rate risk as of dates:
(` / Crores)

Category Instrument Currency Cross Currency 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Hedges of floating rate foreign currency 
loans ($ 600 mn (31.03.2017: $ 530 mn)

Interest rate 
swaps

USD INR 3,910.80 3,437.32

  Interest rate risk exposure:

  Corporation’s interest rate risk arises mainly from borrowings. The interest rate profile of the Corporation’s interest-bearing 
financial instruments as reported to the management of the Corporation is as follows.

(` / Crores)

 Carrying amount
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Fixed-rate instruments

Financial assets 6,367.87 5,369.99

Financial liabilities 11,459.56 12,151.16

Variable-rate instruments

Financial assets 1,279.89 1,227.23

Financial liabilities 9,531.32 9,098.55

  Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

  A reasonably possible change of 25 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased) 
profit or loss by the amounts shown below. The indicative 25 basis point (0.25%) movement is directional and does not reflect 
management forecast on interest rate movement.
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  This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant.
(` / Crores)

Profit or loss
25 bp increase 25 bp decrease 25 bp increase 25 bp decrease

31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Floating rate borrowings (15.97) 15.97 (20.08) 20.08
Interest rate swaps (notional principal amount) 8.62 (8.62) 8.71 (8.71)
Cash flow sensitivity (net) (7.35) 7.35 (11.37) 11.37

40.B.3.3: Commodity Risk

  The Corporation’s Profitability is exposed to the risk of fluctuation in prices of Crude Oil and Petroleum products in international 
markets. Corporation monitors and reduces the impact of the volatility in International Oil prices based on approved Oil Price 
Risk Management Policy by entering into derivative contracts in the OTC market.

  The Corporation also has Oil Price Risk Management Committee (OPRMC) which actively reviews and monitors risk 
management principles, policies and risk management activities.

  Category-wise quantitative break-up of Commodity derivative contracts entered into by the Corporation and Outstanding 
as at balance sheet date is given below:

Quantity (in Mn Barrels)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Crude/Product Swaps 3.05 0.71

  The sensitivity to a reasonable possible change of 10% in the price of crude/product swaps on the outstanding commodity 
hedging positions as on Balance sheet date would increase/decrease the profit or loss by amounts shown below. This 10% 
movement is directional and does not reflect any forecast of price movement.

(` / Crores)

Effect on Profit before Tax
10% Increase 10% Decrease 10% Increase 10% Decrease

31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Crude/Product Swaps (16.27) 16.27 (0.21) 0.21

40.B.3.4: Price risk

  The corporation’s exposure to equity investment price risk arises from investment held by the Corporation. The Corporation 
has designated these investment at fair value through other comprehensive income because these investments represent 
the investments that the corporation intends to hold for long-term strategic purposes.

  Sensitivity

  The table below summarises the impact of increases/decreases in prices on Other Comprehensive Income for the period.

(` / Crores)

Equity Instruments through OCI
1% Increase 1% Decrease 1% Increase 1% Decrease

31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Equity Investment in Oil India Ltd. 5.76 (5.76) 5.95 (5.95)
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40.C.1 : Offsetting

  The following table presents the recognised financial instruments that are eligible for offset and other similar arrangements 
but are not offset, as at 31.03.2018, 31.03.2017 . The column ‘net amount’ shows the impact on the Company’s balance sheet 
if all set-off rights are exercised.

(` / Crores)
Effect of offsetting on the balance sheet Related amounts not offset

Gross 
amounts

Gross amounts 
set off in the 

balance sheet

Net amounts 
presented in the 

balance sheet

Financial 
Instrument 

collateral

Net 
Amount

March 31, 2018
Financial assets
Trade Receivables 9,259.08 (3,686.17) 5,572.91 (109.30) 5,463.61
Other Current Financial Assets 5,918.94 – 5,918.94 – 5,918.94
Financial liabilities
Trade Payables 19,390.04 (3,686.17) 15,703.87 – 15,703.87
Other Current Financial Liabilities 14,504.84 – 14,504.84 (109.30) 14,395.54
March 31, 2017
Financial assets
Trade Receivables 5,154.42 (1,090.21) 4,064.21 (234.21) 3,830.00
Other Current Financial Assets 4,324.44 – 4,324.44 – 4,324.44
Financial liabilities
Trade Payables 13,754.77 (1,090.21) 12,664.56 – 12,664.56
Other Current Financial Liabilities 15,751.98 – 15,751.98 (234.21) 15,517.77

41: Tax expense

 (a) Amounts recognised in profit and loss (` / Crores)

2017 - 18 2016 - 17

Current tax expense
Current year 2,570.98 2,236.24
Changes in estimates relating to prior years (82.85) (285.21)

Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 419.56 628.28
Changes in estimates relating to prior years (62.83) 232.73

Tax expense recognised in the income statement 2,844.86 2,812.04

 (b) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income

Contractual cash flows
2017-18 2016-17

Before 
tax

Tax expense/ 
(benefit)

Net of 
tax

Before 
tax

Tax expense/ 
(benefit)

Net of 
tax

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurements of the defined benefit plans 86.66 (29.99) 56.67 (23.69) 8.20 (15.49)



Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited

158

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2018

 (c) Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Contractual cash flows
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

% ` Crores % ` Crores
Profit before tax 9,201.93 9,020.84
Tax as per Corporate Tax Rate 34.608% 3,184.60 34.608% 3,121.93
Tax effect of:
Non-deductible tax expenses 0.609% 56.00 0.460% 41.51
Tax-exempt income -1.782% (164.00) -1.428% (128.82)
Interest expense u/s 234B/C not deductible for tax purposes 0.038% 3.53 0.103% 9.25
Deduction for research and development expenditure -0.691% (63.62) -0.953% (85.97)
Investment allowance claim 0.000% – -1.126% (101.58)
Adjustments recognised in current year in relation to the current 
tax of prior years

-1.583% (145.69) -0.582% (52.48)

Increase in rate on account of deferred tax 0.044% 4.03
Amounts directly recognised in OCI -0.326% (29.99) 0.091% 8.20

Income Tax Expense 30.916% 2,844.86 31.173% 2,812.04

 (d) Movement in deferred tax balances

(` / Crores)

Net balance 
01.04.2017

Recognised in 
profit or loss

Recognised 
in OCI

Net balance 
31.03.2018

Deferred Tax Asset
Provision for Employee Benefits 256.04 (104.76) 5.09 156.37
Current investments 89.38 9.82 – 99.20
MAT Credit 316.87 (316.87) – –
Provision for Doubtful Debts & Receivables 88.26 18.78 – 107.04
Disallowance u/s 43B 101.15 121.57 – 222.72
Others 7.33 17.01 – 24.34

859.03 (254.45) 5.09 609.67
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Property, plant and equipment 6,738.83 424.09 – 7,162.92
Others 15.79 0.15 – 15.94

6,754.62 424.24 – 7,178.86
Deferred Tax (Assets) / Liabilities 5,895.59 678.69 (5.09) 6,569.19
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(` / Crores)
Net balance 
01.04.2016

Recognised in 
profit or loss

Recognised 
in OCI

Net balance 
31.03.2017

Deferred Tax Asset
Provision for Employee Benefits 211.83 41.67 2.54 256.04
Current investments 166.78 (77.40) – 89.38
MAT Credit 429.57 (112.70) – 316.87
Provision for Doubtful Debts & Receivables 87.59 0.67 – 88.26
Disallowance u/s 43B 102.42 (1.27) – 101.15
Others 45.39 (38.06) – 7.33

1,043.58 (187.09) 2.54 859.03
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Property, plant and equipment 5,866.68 872.15 – 6,738.83
Others 96.25 (80.46) – 15.79

5,962.93 791.69 – 6,754.62
Deferred Tax (Assets) / Liabilities 4,919.35 978.78 (2.54) 5,895.59

 (e) Current Tax includes MAT Credit utilisation of ` 406.58 Crores (2016-17: ` 327.03 Crores).

 (f) The recognition of MAT Credit Entitlements of ` Nil Crores as at March 31, 2018 (` 316.87 Crores as at March 31, 2017) is on 
the basis of convincing evidence that the Corporation will be able to avail the credit during the period specified in section 
115JAA of the Act.

 (g) Provision for tax for earlier years written back(net) of ` 145.68 Crores (2016-17: ` 52.48 Crores) represents additional 
provision towards current tax of ` 54.71 Crores (2016-17 : ` (216.40) Crores), reversal towards deferred Tax of ` 62.83 Crores 
(2016-17: ` (232.73) Crores) and recognition of MAT credit Entitlements of ` 137.56 Crores (2016-17: ` 68.81 Crores).

42 : Leases

 Operating Lease

 Leases as lessee

 The Corporation enters into cancellable/non-cancellable operating lease arrangements for land, office premises, staff quarters and 
others. Payments made under operating leases are generally recognised in statement of Profit and Loss based on corresponding 
periods contractual terms of the lease, since the Corporation considers it to be more representative of time pattern of benefits 
flowing to it.The lease rentals paid for the same are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 The Lease payments for operating leases have been charged to Statement of Profit and Loss as per Ind AS 17 “Leases”. For the 
purpose of determining the expected inflationary cost increases, the management has assessed the expected general inflation 
rate over the lease periods.

 The future minimum lease payments and payment profile of non-cancellable operating leases are as under:”

 i. Future minimum lease payments

  At March 31, the future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable leases were payable as follows:
(` / Crores)

31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Less than one year 17.36 14.14
Between one and five years 66.69 57.07
More than five years 501.60 401.18

585.65 472.39
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 ii. Amounts recognised in profit or loss

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Lease expense 368.10 335.09

43 : earnings per share (ePS)

 Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average 
number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

 Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of 
Equity shares outstanding during the year. 

 i. Profit attributable to Equity holders

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Profit attributable to equity holders for basic and diluted earnings per share 6,357.07 6,208.80

 ii. Weighted average number of ordinary shares

31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Issued ordinary shares at April 1 1,01,58,81,750 1,01,58,81,750
Effect of shares issued as Bonus shares* 50,79,40,875 50,79,40,875
Weighted average number of shares for basic and diluted earnings per shares 1,52,38,22,625 1,52,38,22,625
Basic and Diluted earnings per share (`) 41.72 40.74

 * During Financial Year 2017-18, the Corporation had issued Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:2 by capitalization of Reserve. The EPS 
for FY 2017-18 and FY 2016-17 has been appropriately adjusted.

44 : Capital management

 The Corporation’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and 
to sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to 
ordinary shareholders.

 The Corporation monitors capital using debt equity ratio. The Corporation’s debt to equity ratio at March 31, 2018 is as follows.

31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Long term borrowings (refer note # 21) (` / Crores) 10,228.70 10,357.30
Total equity (refer note # 19 and 20) (` / Crores) 23,948.22 20,347.41
Debt to Equity ratio 0.43 0.51
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(` / Crores)

31.03.2018 31.03.2017

45 : Dividends

(i) Dividends paid during the year

Final dividend for the year ended 31.03.2017 of ` 1.10 (31.03.2016 ` 16.00) per fully paid 
share. This included Dividend distribution tax of ` 22.75 crores (31.03.2016: ` 110.30 
crores).

134.50 652.10

First Interim dividend for the year ended 31.03.2018 of ` 14.50 (31.03.2017 ` 22.50) per 
fully paid share. This included Dividend distribution tax of ` 449.81 crores (31.03.2017 ` 
465.32 crores)

2,659.35 2,751.05

Second Interim dividend for the year ended 31.03.2017 ` 6.40 per fully paid share. This 
included Dividend distribution tax of ` 132.36 crores

– 782.53

(ii) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period

In addition to the above dividends, since year end the directors have recommended the 
payment of a final dividend of ` 2.50 per fully paid equity share (31.03.2017 – ` 1.10). 
This proposed dividend is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual 
general meeting.

380.96 111.75

Dividend distribution tax on above 78.31 22.75

46 : (a) Inter-Oil company transactions are reconciled on a continuous basis. However, year end balances are subject to confirmation/
reconciliation which is not likely to have a material impact.

 (b) Customers’ accounts are reconciled on an ongoing basis and such reconciliation is not likely to have a material impact on 
the outstanding or classification of the accounts.

47 : To the extent Micro and Small Enterprises have been identified, the outstanding balance, including interest thereon, if any, as at 
balance sheet date is disclosed on which Auditors have relied upon:

(` / Crores)

Sr. No. Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

1. Amounts payable to "suppliers" under MSMED Act, as on 31/03/2018: 
– Principal
– Interest

170.07
–

22.76
–

2. Amounts paid to "suppliers" under MSMED Act, beyond appointed day during F.Y. 
2017 - 18 (irrespective of whether it pertains to current year or earlier years)

– Principal
– Interest

 

–
–

3. Amount of interest due / payable on delayed principal which has already been paid 
during the current year (without interest or with part interest)

–

4. Amount accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of Accounting Year –

5. Amount of interest which is due and payable, which is carried forward from last year –
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48 : Related Party Disclosure:

A. Names of and Relationship with Related Parties

 1. Jointly controlled entities
i. HPCL-Mittal Energy Ltd.
ii. Hindustan Colas Pvt. Ltd.
iii. South Asia LPG Company Pvt. Ltd.
iv. Petronet India Ltd.
v. HPCL Shapoorji Energy Pvt. Ltd.

 2. The Company has not included disclosure in respect of following related parties which are Govt. related entities as 
per Ind AS 24.

  i. Holding Company

   1. Oil & Natural Gas Corporation Ltd. (w.e.f. 31st January 2018)

  ii. Subsidiaries

1. HPCL Biofuels Ltd.
2. Prize Petroleum Company Ltd. (PPCL)
3. Prize Petroleum International Pte. Ltd. (a wholly owned subsidiary of PPCL)
4. HPCL Middle East FZCO (incorporated on 11th February, 2018)

  iii. Jointly controlled entities

1. CREDA-HPCL Biofuels Ltd. (dissolved w.e.f. 08th March, 2018)
2. HPCL Rajasthan Refinery Ltd.
3. Bhagyanagar Gas Ltd.
4. Petronet MHB Ltd.
5. Mumbai Aviation Fuel Farm Facility Pvt. Ltd.
6. Godavari Gas Pvt. Ltd.
7. Aavantika Gas Ltd.
8. Ratnagiri Refinery & Petrochemicals Ltd. (incorporated on 22nd September, 2017)
9. Ujjwala plus foundation

  iv. Associates

1. GSPL India Gasnet Ltd.
2. GSPL India Transco Ltd.
3. Mangalore Refinery and Petrochemicals Ltd.

  v. Fellow Subsidiaries

1. ONGC Mangalore Petrochemicals Ltd.

 3. Key Management Personnel

i. Shri Mukesh Kumar Surana, Chairman and Managing Director
ii. Shri Pushp Kumar Joshi, Director - Human Resources
iii. Shri J. Ramaswamy, Director - Finance
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iv. Shri S. Jeyakrishnan, Director - Marketing
v. Shri Vinod S. Shenoy, Director - Refineries
vi. Shri Shrikant Madhukar Bhosekar, Company Secretary

 4. Independent Directors

i. Shri Ram Niwas Jain
ii. Smt. Asifa Khan
iii. Shri G.V. Krishna
iv. Dr. Trilok Nath Singh
v. Shri Amar Sinha (from 21.09.2017)
vi. Shri Siraj Hussain (from 21.09.2017)

 5. Government Directors

i. Shri Sandeep Poundrik
ii. Smt. Sushma Taishete (from 05.12.2017)
iii. Smt. Urvashi Sadhwani (till 24.11.2017)

B. Details of transactions with related parties

 1. Transaction with Jointly controlled entities 

(` / Crores)
No. Nature of Transactions 2017-18 2016-17

(i) Sale of goods
HPCL-Mittal Energy Ltd. 59.79 86.61
Hindustan Colas Pvt. Ltd. 324.37 332.48
South Asia LPG Company Pvt. Ltd. 0.09 0.17

384.25 419.26
(ii) Purchase of goods

HPCL-Mittal Energy Ltd. 24,443.26 23,101.18
Hindustan Colas Pvt. Ltd. 71.62 115.34

24,514.88 23,216.52
(iii) Dividend income received

Hindustan Colas Pvt. Ltd. 47.25 16.54
South Asia LPG Company Pvt. Ltd. 72.50 32.50
Petronet India Ltd. 0.72 3.68

120.47 52.72
(iv) Services given (Manpower Supply Service)

HPCL-Mittal Energy Ltd. 0.55 0.42
Hindustan Colas Pvt. Ltd. 2.60 2.03
South Asia LPG Company Pvt. Ltd. 1.18 1.21

4.33 3.66
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(` / Crores)
No. Nature of Transactions 2017-18 2016-17

(v) Lease rental received
HPCL-Mittal Energy Ltd. 1.20 1.20
Hindustan Colas Pvt. Ltd. 0.23 0.23
South Asia LPG Company Pvt. Ltd. 1.05 0.87

2.48 2.30
(vi) Others - (Services provided)

HPCL-Mittal Energy Ltd. 18.06 14.25
Hindustan Colas Pvt. Ltd. 3.19 3.02
South Asia LPG Company Pvt. Ltd. – 0.58

21.25 17.85
(vii) Others - (Services availed)

HPCL-Mittal Energy Ltd. 12.25 15.60
Hindustan Colas Pvt. Ltd. 1.16 2.36
South Asia LPG Company Pvt. Ltd. 120.19 125.12

133.60 143.08

(viii) Purchases of Equity shares of Petronet MHB Ltd. from Petronet India Ltd – 26.09

(ix) Investment in equity shares / Converted to Equity Shares
HPCL Shapoorji Energy Pvt. Ltd. 7.00 1.50

7.00 1.50

(x) Receivables as on 31.03.2018 30.07.2017
HPCL-Mittal Energy Ltd. 9.90 8.28
Hindustan Colas Pvt. Ltd. 6.02 10.82
South Asia LPG Company Pvt. Ltd. 0.21 0.12

16.13 19.22
(xi) Payables as on

HPCL-Mittal Energy Ltd. 1,997.46 1,321.25
Hindustan Colas Pvt. Ltd. 19.51 25.74
South Asia LPG Company Pvt. Ltd. 9.58 13.94

2,026.55 1,360.93

C. Transactions with other government-controlled entities

 The corporation is a Government related entity engaged in the business of refining of crude oil and marketing of petroleum 
products. The corporation also deals on regular basis with entities directly or indirectly controlled by the central / state governments 
through its government authorities, agencies, affiliations and other organizations (collectively referred as “Government related 
entities”).
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 Apart from transactions with corporations’ group companies, the corporation has transactions with other Government related 
entities, including but not limited to the followings:

 • sale and purchase of products;
 • rendering and receiving services;
 • lease of assets;
 • depositing and borrowing money; and
 • use of public utilities

 These transactions are conducted in the ordinary course of the corporation’s business on terms comparable to those with other 
entities that are not Government related.

 D. Remuneration paid to Key Management Personnel*

(` / Crores)
No. 2017-18 2016-17

(i) Short - Term Employee Benefits 4.04 3.66
(ii) Post - Employment Benefits – 0.23

4.04 3.89

  * Remuneration to KMP has been considered from / to the date from which they became KMP.

 E. Amount due from Key Management Personnel
(` / Crores)

No. 31.03.2018 31.03.2017

(i) Shri Mukesh Kumar Surana 0.10 0.11
(ii) Shri Pushp Kumar Joshi 0.05 0.06
(iii) Shri J Ramaswamy – 0.01
(iv) Shri S Jeyakrishnan 0.32 0.26
(v) Shri Vinod S Shenoy 0.08 0.09
(vi) Shri Shrikant Madhukar Bhosekar 0.13 0.04

0.68 0.57

 F. Sitting Fee paid to Non-Executive Directors

(` / Crores)
Details of Meeting Shri Ram 

Niwas Jain
Smt. Asifa 

Khan
Shri G.V. 
Krishna

Dr. Trilok 
Nath Singh

Shri Amar 
Sinha

Shri Siraj 
Hussain

Board 0.05 0.05 0.04 0.04 0.03 0.02
Audit Committee 0.03 – 0.02 0.00 – –
HR / Remuneration Committee 0.01 – 0.01 0.00 – –
Investor Grievance Committee – 0.01 – 0.01 – –
Investment Committee 0.02 0.02 – 0.02 – –
CSR Committee 0.01 – 0.01 – – –
Corporate presentation 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.01 – –
Independent Directors Meeting 0.00 0.00 – – 0.00 0.01
Total Sitting Fees paid 0.13 0.08 0.08 0.08 0.03 0.03
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49 : The Corporation has entered into production sharing oil & gas exploration contracts in India in consortium with other body 
corporate. These consortia are:

Name of the Block Participating Interest of HPCL in %

31.03.2018 31.03.2017

In India

Under NELP IV

KK- DWN-2002/2 20 20

KK- DWN-2002/3 20 20

CB- ONN-2002/3 15 15

Under NELP V

AA-ONN-2003/3 15 15

Under NELP VI

CY-DWN-2004/1 10 10

CY-DWN-2004/2 10 10

CY-DWN-2004/3 10 10

CY-DWN-2004/4 10 10

CY-PR-DWN-2004/1 10 10

CY-PR-DWN-2004/2 10 10

KG-DWN-2004/1 10 10

KG-DWN-2004/2 10 10

KG-DWN-2004/3 10 10

KG-DWN-2004/5 10 10

KG-DWN-2004/6 10 10

MB-OSN-2004/1 20 20

MB-OSN-2004/2 20 20

RJ-ONN-2004/1 22.22 22.22

RJ-ONN-2004/3 15 15

Under NELP IX

MB-OSN-2010/2 30 30

Cluster - 7 60 60

 a) Blocks RJ-ONN-2004/3 and MB-OSN-2010/2 are in the process of relinquishment. The audited financial statements for 
these UJVs have been received upto March 31, 2017. The Blocks RJ-ONN-2004/1, KK-DWN-2002/2, MB-OSN-2004/1 and 
MB-OSN-2004/2 are in the process of relinquishment. The audited financial statements for these UJVs have been received 
upto March 31, 2016. Blocks CY-DWN-2004/1,2,3,4, CY-PR-DWN-2004/1&2, KG-DWN-2004/1,2,3,5 and 6 are under 
relinquishment. The audited financial statements for these UJVs have been received upto March 31, 2015. The Company has 
incorporated the share of the assets, liabilities, income and expenditure based on the unaudited financial statements / data 
received from operator as on 31st March, 2018.
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 b) The Blocks AA-ONN-2003/3 and KK-DWN-2002/3 are in the process of relinquishment. The audited financial statements 
for these UJVs have been received upto March 31, 2011 and March 31, 2012 respectively. The Company has incorporated 
the share of the assets, liabilities, income and expenditure based on the unaudited financial statements / data received from 
operator as on 31st March, 2018.

 c) The block CB-ONN-2002/3 was awarded under NELP IV bidding round and the production sharing contract was signed 
on 06.02.2004. The exploration Minimum Work Program has been completed. The block is divided into two areas i.e. 
Miroli and Sanand. Approval of Mining Lease to commence production from Sanand field has been received from Govt. of 
Gujarat. Addendum to Sanand FDP (Field development plan) for additional discovery in Kalol reservoir has been submitted. 
Production from SE#3 and SE#4 wells of the Block has been started during the year. Audited financial statements of the 
block has been received upto March 31, 2017. The Company has incorporated the share of the assets, liabilities, income and 
expenditure based on the unaudited financial statements / data received from operator as on 31st March, 2018.

 d) In respect of Cluster - 7, the matter is under arbitration (refer Note No. 55.1)

50 : In compliance of Ind AS-27 ‘Separate Financial Statements’, the required information is as under:

Country of 
Incorporation

Nature of 
Investments

Percentage of ownership 
interest as on

31.03.2018 31.03.2017

HPCL - Biofuels Ltd. India Subsidiary 100.00 100.00

Prize Petroleum Co. Ltd India Subsidiary 100.00 100.00

HPCL Middle East FZCO** Dubai Subsidiary 100.00 –

HPCL Rajasthan Refinery Ltd India Joint Venture 74.00 74.00

CREDA HPCL Biofuel Ltd.# India Joint Venture – 74.00

Hindustan Colas Private Ltd. India Joint Venture 50.00 50.00

South Asia LPG Company Pvt. Ltd. India Joint Venture 50.00 50.00

HPCL Shapoorji Energy Private Ltd. India Joint Venture 50.00 50.00

HPCL-Mittal Energy Ltd. India Joint Venture 48.99 48.99

Aavantika Gas Ltd. India Joint Venture 49.98 49.97

Petronet MHB Ltd. India Joint Venture 32.72 32.72

Godvari Gas Pvt. Ltd. India Joint Venture 26.00 26.00

Mumbai Aviation Fuel Farm Facility Pvt Ltd. India Joint Venture 25.00 25.00

Bhagyanagar Gas Ltd.* India Joint Venture 24.99 24.99

Petronet India Ltd. India Joint Venture 16.00 16.00

Ratnagiri Refinery & Petrochemicals Ltd India Joint Venture 25.00 –

Mangalore Refinery and Petrochemicals Ltd. India Associate 16.96 16.96

GSPL India Transco Ltd India Associate 11.00 11.00

GSPL India Gasnet Ltd India Associate 11.00 11.00
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 * As of 31st March 2014, paid up equity capital of BGL was ` 5 lacs, in which HPCL and GAIL were holding 24.99% each. Balance 
50.02% of shares were held by Kakinada Seaports Ltd (KSPL) on warehousing basis. In addition, each one of HPCL and GAIL 
had paid ` 22.49 crores as Advance against Equity / Share application money (totaling to ` 44.98 crores) in earlier years. On 
20th August 2014, BGL allotted 2,24,87,500 shares on preferential basis to each of HPCL and GAIL towards the money paid 
earlier. Meanwhile there are certain issues pending adjudication with another shareholder. Accordingly, keeping in view financial 
prudence, HPCL’s share has been considered at 24.99% (considered as 24.99% in F.Y. 2016-17).

 ** HPCL Middle East FZCO, a 100% Subsidiary of HPCL was incorporated on 11.02.2018 as a Free Zone Company under 
Dubai Airport Free Zone and Establishment Card was issued on 22.03.2018 for the Company. This foreign subsidiary has been 
established for Trading in Lubricants & Grease, Petrochemicals and Refined Oil Products. HPCL, as a subscriber to the MOA is in 
the process of investing rupees 17,742 (AED 1,000) towards share capital and investment upto ` 1 crores on need basis.

 # M/s CREDA HPCL Biofuel Ltd was dissolved with effect from 08th March 2018.

 Ujjwala Plus Foundation, a joint venture of Indian Oil Corporation Limited (IOCL), Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited (BPCL) 
and Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Ltd (HPCL) was incorporated on 21st July 2017 as a not for profit Private Company Limited 
by Guarantee (Without Share Capital) under Section 8 of the Companies Act 2013.

51 : Considering the Government policies and modalities of compensating the oil marketing companies towards under-recoveries, 
future cash flows have been worked out based on the desired margins for deciding on impairment of related Cash Generating 
Units. Since there is no indication of impairment of assets as at Balance Sheet date as per the assessment carried out, no 
impairment has been considered. In view of assumptions being technical, peculiar to the industry and Government policy, the 
auditors have relied on the same.

52 : Disclosure as required by Regulation 34(3) and 53(f ) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

(` / Crores)

Particulars Balance as on Maximum amount 
outstanding during the year

31.03.2018 31.03.2017 2017 - 18 2016 - 17

a) Loans and advances in the nature of loans to 
subsidiary Companies (by name and amount)

Inter Corporate Loan to HPCL - Biofuels Ltd. 50.40 84.00 84.00 84.00

b) Loans and advances in the nature of loans to joint 
ventures (by name and amount)

Inter Corporate Loan to Bhagyanagar Gas Ltd. Nil 75.00 75.00 75.00

c) Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/ 
companies in which directors are interested

– – – –

d) Investment by the loanee in the shares of HPCL and 
its subsidiary company, when the Company has 
made a loan or advance in the nature of loan

– – – –

53 : During the year 2017-18, Corporation has spent ̀  156.86 Crores (2016-17: ̀  108.11 Crores) towards Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR) as against the budget of ` 126.38 crores (2016-17: ` 107.90 Crores).
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 Head wise break up of CSR expenses are given below:

(` / Crores)

S.No. Head of Expenses 2017-18 2016-17

1 Promoting Education 56.50 27.24

2 Promoting Preventive Health Care 15.24 11.76

3 Empowerment of Socially and Economically Backward groups 7.10 4.91

4 Promotion of Nationally recognized and Para-Olympic Sports 1.05 0.99

5 Imparting Employment by Enhancing Vocation Skills 13.38 11.48

6 Swachh Bharat Abhiyaan 37.57 10.15

7 Environment Sustainability 25.27 16.58

8 Others 0.75 25.00

Total 156.86 108.11

 Amount spent during the year 2017-18 on:-

(` / Crores)

Details In Cash Yet to be paid in Cash Total

(i) Construction / Acquisition of an assets – – –

(ii) On purpose other than (i) above 153.30 3.56 156.86

 Amount spent during the year 2016-17 on:-

(` / Crores)

Details In Cash Yet to be paid in Cash Total

(i) Construction / Acquisition of an assets – – –

(ii) On purpose other than (i) above 90.37 17.74 108.11

54 : There are no reportable segments other than downstream petroleum, as per Ind AS - 108 on Segment Reporting.

55 : Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

 I. Contingent Liabilities

(` / Crores)

31.03.2018 31.03.2017

A. Disputed demands / claims subject to appeals / representations filed by the 
Corporation

i. Income Tax 75.74 75.74

ii. Sales Tax/Octroi 2,067.68 2,141.88

iii. Excise/Customs 252.67 229.65

iv. Land Rentals & Licence Fees 125.16 132.65

v. Others 48.04 66.95

2,569.29 2,646.87
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(` / Crores)

31.03.2018 31.03.2017

B. Disputed demands / claims subject to appeals / representations filed against the 
Corporation

i. Sales Tax/Octroi 0.77 6.16

ii. Excise / customs 0.13 –

iii. Employee Benefits/Demands (to the extent quantifiable) 220.82 210.11

iv. Claims against the Corporation not acknowledged as Debts(refer note 55.1) 295.73 321.12

v. Others 164.49 218.68

681.94 756.07

C. Guarantees given to others 1,382.79 390.31

55.1: Prize Petroleum Company Limited (PPCL), a subsidiary company of Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Ltd.) with a Participating 
Interest (PI) of 10% along with 2 other consortium members, M/s Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Ltd. (HPCL) (PI-60%) and M/s 
M3nergy Sdn. Bhd (M/s M3nergy) (PI-30%) were awarded service contract in March, 2006 for development of ONGC’s offshore 
marginal oilfields of cluster-7. PPCL was the executing contractor. Parties provided necessary Bank Guarantees to ONGC. Since 
M/s M3nergy could not meet their contractual obligations, the contract was terminated by ONGC and Bank guarantees were 
forfeited. PPCL and HPCL demanded the refund of the monies forfeited towards encashment of Bank Guarantee along with other 
claims from M/s M3nergy. A counter claim of 36.51 Million USD equivalent to ` 237.97 Crores (36.51 Million USD @ Exchange 
rate of 1 USD = ` 65.18) was made by M3nergy on termination of such service contract. This amount is not included above. The 
matter was referred to Arbitration.

 The 1st partial arbitration award was issued in favour of HPCL/PPCL wherein the claim of M3nergy was disallowed. This 1st Partial 
Award has been challenged by M/s M3nergy before the Bombay High Court and the same is pending hearing and disposal. 
During the year, a 2nd Partial award has been received in favour of PPCL and HPCL. M/s M3nergy has challenged the 2nd Partial 
award before the Bombay High Court. HPCL and PPCL are in process of filing the application for enforcement of the 2nd partial 
award before the Court at Malaysia. The Corporation’s share of the award amounts to approximate ` 416.61 crores (78.26 Million 
USD @ exchange rate of ` 48.68 for a US Dollar prevailing on January 6, 2009 plus ` 35.66 Crores) and interest thereon. On a 
conservative basis, the Corporation has decided not to recognize the awards in the Financial Statements.

 II. Commitments

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

A. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account 
not provided for

18,804.48 3,654.26

B. Other Commitments (for Investments in Joint Ventures) – –

55.2 : Company has entered into a long term product off take agreement with M/s HPCL- Mittal Energy Limited (HMEL), its joint 
venture company, for purchase of petroleum products produced by the refinery. This agreement has a take or pay clause and the 
Company is committed to purchase the said petroleum products over the tenure of the agreement.

55.3 : The Company and Mittal Energy Investment Pte. Ltd. (its joint venture partner in HPCL-Mittal Energy Limited) have committed 
that they would jointly hold at least 51 % of share capital of HPCL-Mittal Energy Limited till the repayment of certain bank loans 
/ bonds.
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 III. Corporation’s Share in aggregate of Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments of Jointly Controlled 
Operations (refer Note No.49):

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Jointly Controlled Operations
Contingent Liabilities 237.97 239.77
Capital Commitment Nil Nil

(` / Crores)
2017 - 18 2016 - 17

56 : Expenditure incurred on Research and Development
- Capital 132.62 209.75
- Revenue 100.16 66.79

(` / Crores)
2017 - 18 2016 - 17

57 : Interest on Project borrowings capitalized* 92.38 67.26
*(weighted average cost borrowing rate used for capitalization of general borrowing (other 
than specific borrowings) is 7.15 % during FY 2017 - 18 (FY 2016 - 17 : 7.95%).

(` / Crores)
2017 - 18 2016 - 17

58 : Exchange Differences adjusted in the carrying amount of Assets during the accounting period. 5.03 (191.42)

59 : In compliance of Ind AS - 37 on “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”, the required information is as under:

(` / Crores)
Particulars Opening Balance 

as on 01.04.17
Additions Utilization Reversals Closing Balance 

31.03.18
Excise 0.59 – – – 0.59
Sales Tax 324.65 4.39 10.42 5.79 312.83
Service Tax 12.59 – – – 12.59
Others 548.92 71.59 13.07 2.48 604.96
Total 886.75 75.98 23.49 8.27 930.97
Less: Pre Deposit 63.21 – – – 63.21
Net 823.54 75.98 23.49 8.27 867.76
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(` / Crores)
Particulars Opening Balance 

as on 01.04.16
Additions Utilization Reversals Closing Balance 

31.03.17
Excise 0.59 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.59
Sales Tax 323.29 6.31 0.00 4.95 324.65
Service Tax 12.59 0.00 0.00 0.00 12.59
Others 331.22 220.12 1.97 0.45 548.92
Total 667.69 226.43 1.97 5.40 886.75
Less: Pre Deposit – – – – 63.21
Net 667.69 226.43 1.97 5.40 823.54

 The above provisions are made based on estimates and expected timing of outflows is not ascertainable at this stage.

60 : Consequent to the deferment of the recovery of the loan given to consumers under the Pradhan Mantri Ujwala Yojana (PMUY) 
scheme for next 6 refills effective 1st April 2018, the management expects recovery of outstanding loan to take place beyond a 
period of 1 year. These loans are therefore classified as non-current assets and the fair valuation has been computed accordingly.

61 : On January 31, 2018, Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Ltd. (ONGC) acquired 51.11% stake in paid up equity capital of Hindustan 
Petroleum Corporation Ltd (HPCL) from Govt. of India. (refer note # 18).

62 : On March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has notified the Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contract with Customers. 
The core principle of the new standard is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or 
services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those 
goods or services. Further the new standard requires enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of 
revenue and cash flows arising from the entity’s contracts with customers.

 The standard permits two possible methods of transition:
 • Retrospective approach: Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period 

presented in accordance with Ind AS 8- Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
 • Cumulative catch - up approach: Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the 

date of initial application. The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 115 is financial periods beginning on or after April 1, 
2018.

 The Company will adopt the standard on April 1, 2018 by using the cumulative catch-up transition method and accordingly 
comparatives for the year ending or ended March 31, 2018 will not be retrospectively adjusted. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 
115 is expected to be insignificant.

63 : Threshold limits adopted in respect of financial statements is given below:

Threshold item Unit of 
measurement

Threshold 
limits

Capitalization of spare parts meeting the definition of property plant and equipment. ` Lakhs 10.00
Deprecation at 100% in the year of acquisition except LPG cylinders and pressure 
regulators.

` 5,000.00

Classification as finance lease for land Lease period (years) More than 99
Income / expenditure pertaining to prior year (s) ` Crores 75.00
Prepaid expenses ` Lakhs 5.00
Disclosure of contingent liabilities ` Lakhs 5.00
Disclosure of capital commitments ` Lakhs 1.00
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64 : Employee benefit obligations

 A: Provident Fund

  The Corporation’s contribution to the Provident Fund is remitted to a separate trust established for this purpose based on a 
fixed percentage of the eligible employees salary and charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

  Shortfall, if any, in the fund assets, based on the Government specified minimum rate of return, will be made good by the 
Corporation and charged to Statement of Profit and Loss. The actual return earned by the fund has mostly been higher than 
the Government specified minimum rate of return in the past years. There is no shortfall in the fund as on 31st March 2018 
and 31st March 2017. 

  Present value of benefit obligation at period end is ` 3764.14 crores (31.03.2017 : ` 3,438.00 crores). 

  During the year, the company has recognised ` 141.40 crore (2016-17 : ` 128.90 crore) as Employer’s contribution to 
Provident Fund in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 B: Superannuation Fund

  The company has Superannuatin Scheme - Defined Contribution Scheme maintained by SBFS trust wherein Company 
contributes a certain percentage every month out of 30% of Basic plus DA (in accordance with DPE guidelines) to the credit 
of individual employee accounts maintained with LIC.

  During the year, the company has recognised ` 162.80 crore (2016-17 : ` 152.15 crore) as Employer’s contribution to 
Superannuation Fund in the statement of Profit and Loss.

 C: The amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the 
year are as follows:

(` / Crores)
S. 

No.
Gratuity PRMBS Pension Ex - 

Gratia
Resettlement 

Allowance

1 Present value of projected benefit obligation
Present value of Benefit Obligation at the 
beginning of the period

877.76 646.79 59.03 30.35 12.46
495.06 562.61 64.84 32.14 13.57

Interest Cost 63.73 48.19 4.20 2.15 0.90
39.56 45.35 5.05 2.50 1.08

Current Service Cost 17.01 52.17 – – 2.64
4.90 49.08 – – 2.52

Past Service Cost – – – – –
368.44 – – – –

Benefit paid (42.01) (46.55) (4.40) (5.65) (1.50)
(46.15) (40.06) (3.51) (5.72) (1.51)

Actuarial (gains)/ losses on obligations - due to 
change in financial assumptions

(30.65) (29.37) (0.91) (0.52) (0.51)
36.91 49.40 2.51 0.71 0.62

Actuarial (gains)/ losses on obligations - due to 
experience

(37.17) 40.82 (16.81) 0.98 (2.24)
(20.96) (19.59) (9.86) 0.72 (3.82)

Present value of Benefit Obligation a the 
end of the period

848.67 712.05 41.11 27.31 11.75
877.76 646.79 59.03 30.35 12.46
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(` / Crores)
S. 

No.
Gratuity PRMBS Pension Ex - 

Gratia
Resettlement 

Allowance

2 Changes in fair value of plan assets
Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the 
period

509.42 560.85 NA NA NA
512.75 411.81 NA NA NA

Interest income 36.98 41.78 NA NA NA
40.97 33.19 NA NA NA

Contributions by the employer 0.00 132.49 NA NA NA
0.01 144.21 NA NA NA

Contributions by the employee – 6.37 NA NA NA
– 0.59 NA NA NA

Benefit paid (42.01) (46.55) NA NA NA
(46.15) (40.06) NA NA NA

Return on plan assets, excluding interest income 1.63 8.68 NA NA NA
1.84 11.11 NA NA NA

Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the 
period

506.02 703.62 NA NA NA
509.42 560.85 NA NA NA

3 Included in profit and loss account
Current Service Cost 17.01 52.17 – – 2.64

4.90 49.08 – – 2.52
Past Service Cost – – – – –

368.44 – – – –
Net interest cost 26.75 6.41 4.20 2.15 0.90

(1.41) 12.16 5.05 2.50 1.08
Contributions by the employee – (6.37) – – –

- (0.59) – – –
Total amount recognised in profit and loss 
account

43.76 52.21 4.20 2.15 3.54
371.93 60.65 5.05 2.50 3.60

4 Remeasurements
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income (1.63) (8.68) – – –

(1.84) (11.11) – – –
(Gain)/loss from change in demographic 
assumptions

– – – – –
- – – – –

(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions (30.65) (29.37) (0.91) (0.52) (0.51)
36.91 49.40 2.51 0.71 0.62

Experience (gains)/losses (37.17) 40.82 (16.81) 0.98 (2.24)
(20.96) (19.59) (9.86) 0.72 (3.82)

Change in asset ceiling, excluding amounts 
included in interest expense

– – – – –
- – – – –

Total amount recognised in other 
comprehensive income

(69.45) 2.77 (17.72) 0.46 (2.75)
14.11 18.70 (7.35) 1.43 (3.20)
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D: Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet

(` / Crores)
Gratuity PRMBS Pension Ex-Gratia Resettlement 

Allowance
Present value of benefit obligation as on 31.03.2017 877.76 646.79 59.03 30.35 12.46
Fair value of plan assets as on 31.03.2017 509.42 560.85 – – –
Net Liability / (Asset) recognised in Balance Sheet 368.34 85.94 59.03 30.35 12.46

(` / Crores)
Gratuity PRMBS Pension Ex-Gratia Resettlement 

Allowance
Present value of benefit obligation as on 31.03.2018 848.67 712.05 41.11 27.31 11.75
Fair value of plan assets as on 31.03.2018 506.02 703.62 – – –
Net Liability / (Asset) recognised in Balance Sheet 342.65 8.43 41.11 27.31 11.75

E: Plan assets

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Gratuity PRMBS Gratuity PRMBS

Plan assets comprise the following:
Insurance fund 506.02 703.62 509.42 560.85

506.02 703.62 509.42 560.85

F: Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions and sensitivity

F(i): The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

31.03.2018 Gratuity PRMBS Pension Ex-Gratia Resettlement 
Allowance

Expected Return on Plan Assets 7.88% 7.76% NA NA NA
Rate of Discounting 7.88% 7.76% 7.56% 7.68% 7.88%
Rate of Salary Increase 7.00% 7.00% NA NA 7.00%
Medical Cost Inflation NA 3.00% NA NA NA
Rate of Emloyee Turnover 2.00% 2.00% NA NA 2.00%
Mortality Rate During Employment Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08)
Mortality Rate After Employment Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08)

31.03.2017 Gratuity PRMBS Pension Ex-Gratia Resettlement 
Allowance

Expected Return on Plan Assets 7.26% 7.45% NA NA NA
Rate of Discounting 7.26% 7.45% 7.12% 7.09% 7.26%
Rate of Salary Increase 7.00% 7.00% NA NA 7.00%
Medical Cost Inflation NA 3.00% NA NA NA
Rate of Emloyee Turnover 2.00% 2.00% NA NA 2.00%
Mortality Rate During Employment Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08)
Mortality Rate After Employment Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08)
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F(ii): Sensitivity analysis (` / Crores)

31.03.2018 Gratuity PRMBS Pension Ex-Gratia Resettlement 
Allowance

Delta effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting (44.79) (81.98) (1.91) (0.84) (0.72)
Delta effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting 50.67 102.95 2.13 0.90 0.84
Delta effect of +1% Change in Future Benefit cost inflation – 103.66 – – –
Delta effect of -1% Change in Future Benefit cost inflation – (82.87) – – –
Delta effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 15.10 – – – –
Delta effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase (16.78) – – – –
Delta effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover 15.20 – – – (0.80)
Delta effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover (16.92) – – – 0.93

31.03.2017 Gratuity PRMBS Pension Ex-Gratia Resettlement 
Allowance

Delta effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting (49.76) (77.63) (2.99) (1.00) (0.83)
Delta effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting 56.44 97.93 3.36 1.07 0.95
Delta effect of +1% Change in Future Benefit cost inflation – 98.50 – – –
Delta effect of -1% Change in Future Benefit cost inflation – (78.43) – – –
Delta effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 17.49 – – – –
Delta effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase (19.61) – – – –
Delta effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover 13.41 – – – –
Delta effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover (14.87) – – – –

G: The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted benefits is as follows: (` / Crores)

Less than 1 year 1 - 2 year 2 - 5 year 6 - 10 year
31.03.2018
Gratuity 104.45 72.95 327.25 427.52
PRMBS 33.61 36.82 132.73 234.23
Pension 5.11 5.08 14.98 23.91
Ex - Gratia 4.90 4.84 14.07 21.63
Resettlement Allowance 1.11 0.70 4.22 6.47
Total 149.18 120.39 493.25 713.76

Less than 1 year 1 - 2 year 2 - 5 year 6 - 10 year
31.03.2017
Gratuity 92.85 68.54 308.90 452.75
PRMBS 28.30 30.89 111.09 199.19
Pension 6.82 6.78 20.04 32.19
Ex - Gratia 5.24 5.12 14.95 22.32
Resettlement Allowance 0.96 0.64 3.89 7.02
Total 134.17 111.97 458.87 713.47
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H: Notes:

 Gratuity : All employees are entitled to receive gratuity as per the provisions of Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Defined Benefit 
Plan of Gratuity is administered by Gratuity Trust. The Board of Trustees comparises of representatives from the Corporation who 
are also plan participants in accordance with the plans regulation.

 Pension : The employees covered by the Pension Plan of the Corporation are entitled to receive monthly pension for life. 

 Post Retirement Medical Benefit : The serving and superannuated employees are covered under medical insurance policy taken 
by Corporation. It provides reimbursement of medical expenses for self and dependents as per the terms of the policy.

 Ex-gratia : The ex-employees of Corporation covered under the Scheme are entitled to get ex-gratia based on the grade at the 
time of their retirement. The benefit will be paid to eligible employees till their survival, and after that, till the survival of their 
spouse.

 Resettlement Allowance : At the time of retirement, the employees are allowed to permanently settle down at a place other than 
the location of the last posting.

 The fair value of the assets of Provident Fund Trust as of balance sheet date is greater than the obligation, including interest, and 
also the returns on these plan assets including the amount already provided are sufficient to take care of PF interest obligations, 
over and above the fixed contribution recognized.

 The expected return on plan assets is based on market expectation, at the beginning of the period, for returns over the entire life 
of the related obligation.

 The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other 
relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

 Figures in italics represent last year figures

65 : Previous periods figures are reclassified / regrouped wherever necessary.
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COMMenTS OF The COMTROLLeR AnD AuDITOR GeneRAL OF InDIA unDeR SeCTIOn 143(6)(B) OF The COMPnIeS 
ACT, 2013 On The FInAnCIAL STATeMenTS OF hInDuSTAn PeTROLeuM CORPORATIOn LIMITeD FOR The YeAR 
enDeD 31 MARCh, 2018

The preparation of financial statements of Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited for the year ended 31 March, 2018 in accordance 
with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 is the responsibility of the management of the 
company. The statutory auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 139(5) of the Act is 
responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance 
with standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit 
Report dated 22.05.2018.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary audit under section 143(6)(a) of the 
Act of the financial statements of Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited for the year ended 31 March 2018. This supplementary 
audit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers of the statutory auditors and is limited primarily to 
inquiries of the statutory auditors and company prescribed and a selective examination of some of the accounting records. On the 
basis of my audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge which would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to 
statutory auditors’ report.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Sd/-
Tanuja Mittal

Principal Director of Commercial Audit & 
ex-officio Member Audit Board-II, Mumbai

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 26 July 2018
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Independent Auditors’ Report
TO THE MEMBERS OF HINDUSTAN PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED

Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of HINDUSTAN PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred 
to as “the Group”), its associates and its jointly controlled entities comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, 
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statements of Changes in 
Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements”).

Management’s Responsibility 

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements 
in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) that give a true and fair view of the 
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance (including other comprehensive income), consolidated cash flows 
and consolidated statements of changes in equity of the Group including its Associates and its Jointly controlled entities in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 
133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the 
companies / governing bodies included in the Group, its associates and of its jointly controlled entities are responsible for maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group, associates 
and its jointly controlled entities and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of 
the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements based on our audit. While conducting 
the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters, which are 
required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Ind AS Financial 
Statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the Consolidated Ind AS 
Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Holding Company’s preparation of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial 
Statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made 
by the Holding Company’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial 
Statements. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their 
reports referred to in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of 
reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial information of the subsidiaries, associates and 
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jointly controlled entities, the attached Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Act in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 
consolidated state of affairs of the Group, its associates and its jointly controlled entities as at March 31, 2018, and their consolidated 
profit (including other comprehensive income), the consolidated changes in equity and their consolidated cash flows for the year 
ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note no. 1.3.4 to the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements which describes the reasons for considering joint 
venture interest lower than the percentage of shareholding in a joint venture known as Bhagyanagar Gas Limited. Our opinion is not 
modified in respect of these matters.

Other Matters

a) We refer to note no. 49 in connection with 21 Unincorporated Jointly Controlled Entities (“UJCEs”) involved in exploration 
activities, of which majority of UJCEs are under relinquishment. The attached Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements include 
Group’s proportionate share in Assets and Liabilities as on March 31, 2018 and Income and Expenditure for the year ended 
March 31, 2018 amounting to ` 22.62 crores and ` 16.90 crores, ` 10.15 crores and ` 7.63 crores respectively. In respect of 
these UJCEs, the audited accounts are not available with the Holding Company. The financial information has been incorporated 
based on data received from the respective operators.

b) We did not audit the Ind AS financial statements of 3 subsidiaries (and their step-down subsidiary) included in the Consolidated 
Ind AS Financial Statement, whose Ind AS financial statements reflects total assets of ` 1.157.94 crores and net assets of 
` (245.49) as at March 31, 2018, total revenues of ` 242.77 crores and net cash flows of ` 8.34 crores for the year ended on 
that date, as considered in the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements. This includes the unaudited financial statements of 
one overseas subsidiary whose total assets ` 0.25 Cr, Net Assets ` (0.04) Cr, Total Revenues of ` Nil and Net Cash Flows of 
` Nil is based on management accounts. The Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements also includes Group’s share of net profit 
of ` 1,321.59 crores for the year ended March 31, 2018, as considered in the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, in 
respect of 12 jointly controlled entities (and its step-down subsidiary), and 3 associates (and its step-down subsidiary and jointly 
controlled entities), whose Ind AS financial statements have not been audited by us. These Ind AS financial statements have 
been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the attached 
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these 
subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates, and our report in terms of section 143(3) of the Act, insofar as it relates to 
the aforesaid subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. 

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2017 were audited by the joint auditors of the 
Holding Company, one of which is the predecessor audit firm, and have expressed an unmodified opinion dated May 26, 2017 on 
such financial statements.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is 
not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and 
the financial statements/ financial information certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other auditors on separate 
financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities, as noted in the ‘other 
matter’ paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements;

Independent Auditors’ Report
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b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial 
Statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors;

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), 
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the relevant books of account and workings maintained for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Ind 
AS Financial Statements;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified 
under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 as amended;

e) As per notification no: G.S.R 463(E) dated June 5, 2015, Government companies are exempted from the provisions of section 
164(2) of the Act, accordingly, we are not required to report whether any directors of the Holding Company are disqualified 
in terms of provisions contained in the said section. On the basis of the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiaries, 
associates and jointly controlled companies incorporated in India other than Government companies, none of the directors of 
the subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

f ) With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements of the Holding Company, 
its subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
report in Annexure I; and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditor’s) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us and based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate Financial Statements as also the other financial 
information of the subsidiaries, associates an jointly controlled entities, as noted in the ‘Other matter ’ paragraph :

i. The consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated financial 
position of the Group, its associates and its jointly controlled entities – Refer note 53 to the consolidated Ind AS Financial 
Statements;

ii. The Holding Company and the individual entities have made provision, as required under the applicable law and 
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts; and

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund 
by the Group. 

For G. M. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.:104767W

For M. P. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 101851W

Sd/-
Atul Shah
Partner
Membership No.: 039569

Sd/-
Anagha Thatte
Partner
Membership No.: 105525

Place : New Delhi
Dated : May 22, 2018
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In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company as of and for the year ended March 
31, 2018, we have audited the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements of HINDUSTAN PETROLEUM 
CORPORATION LIMITED (‘the Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries, its associate companies and jointly controlled entities (together 
referred to as ‘the Group’), which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Group are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with 
reference to Financial Statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, 
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements based 
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls with 
reference to Financial Statement and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements, assessing the 
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on 
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor ’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports 
referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company’s Internal Financial Control with reference to Financial Statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for external purposes 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s Internal Financial Control with reference to Financial 
Statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations 
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 

AnnexuRe I - RefeRRed to In pARAgRAph 1(f) undeR “RepoRt on otheR LegAL And ReguLAtoRy 
RequIRements” of ouR RepoRt of even dAt

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under section 143(3)(i)  
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
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unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the Consolidated Ind AS 
Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the Internal Financial Control with reference to Financial Statements may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiaries, its associate companies and jointly controlled entities, which are companies 
incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate Internal Financial Controls system with reference to Financial 
Statements and such Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements were operating effectively as on March 31, 
2018, based on the Internal Control with reference to Financial Statements criteria established by the Holding Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Internal Financial Controls 
with reference to Financial Statements insofar as it relates to 2 subsidiaries, 3 associates, and 11 jointly controlled entities, which are 
companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India. 
Further, the Company has 1 jointly controlled entity and 1 overseas subsidiary where Internal Financial Controls with reference to 
Financial Statements are not applicable.

For G. M. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.:104767W

For M. P. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 101851W

Sd/-
Atul Shah
Partner
Membership No.: 039569

Sd/-
Anagha Thatte
Partner
Membership No.: 105525

Place : New Delhi
Dated : May 22, 2018
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Consolidated Balance sheet as on 31st march, 2018
(` / Crores)

notes 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Assets
(1) Non Current Assets 
 (a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3  38,225.68  36,438.56 
 (b) Capital Work-in-Progress 4  3,989.02  1,794.54 
 (c) Goodwill on Consolidation  16.69  16.69 
 (d) Other Intangible Assets 5  452.77  421.01 
 (e) Intangible Assets under development 5a  21.51  72.95 
 (f ) Investment in Joint Ventures and Associates 6  7,306.57  6,069.75 
 (g) Financial Assets
  (i) Other Investments 7  576.05  594.95 
  (ii) Loans 8  444.84  406.05 
 (h) Other Non Current Assets 9  1,497.66  1,438.46 
total non Current Assets  52,530.79  47,252.96 
(2) Current Assets   
 (a) Inventories 10  18,612.23  18,629.16 
 (b) Financial Assets 
  (i) Investments 11  4,999.38  5,108.73 
  (ii) Trade Receivables 12  5,587.02  4,091.66 
  (iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 13  121.52  111.47 
  (iv) Bank Balances other than (iii) above 14  1,183.66  24.93 
  (v) Loans 15  63.87  125.49 
  (vi) Other Financial Assets 16  5,904.42  4,317.23 
 (c) Other Current Assets 17  665.37  653.45 

 37,137.47  33,062.12 
 (d) Assets classified as held for Sale / Disposal  3.49  3.96 
total Current Assets  37,140.96  33,066.08 
total Assets  89,671.75  80,319.04 
equIty And LIABILItIes
Equity
 (a) Equity Share Capital 18  1,524.21  1,016.27 
 (b) Other Equity 
  (i) Reserves and Surplus 19  23,991.68  20,018.19 
  (ii) Other Reserves 20  16.55  36.97 
total equity  25,532.44  21,071.43 
Liabilities
(1) Non-Current Liabilities
 (a) Financial Liabilities 
  (i) Borrowings 21  9,655.94  7,117.80 
  (ii) Other Financial Liabilities 22  0.47  0.44 
 (b) Provisions 23  79.27  183.33 
 (c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) (refer note 41)  6,804.82  6,149.27 
 (d) Other Non Current Liabilities 24  34.36  23.61 
 total non Current Liabilities  16,574.86  13,474.45 
 (2) Current Liabilities 
 (a) Financial Liabilities 
  (i) Borrowings 25  10,879.42  10,914.38 
  (ii) Trade Payables 26  15,845.91  12,699.66 
  (iii) Other Financial Liabilities  14,567.21  15,841.54 
 (b) Provisions 27  3,605.44  3,974.40 
 (c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) (refer note 41) 28  2,370.31  2,270.57 
 (d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 29  296.16  72.61 
total Current Liabilities 30  47,564.45  45,773.16 
total equity and Liabilities  89,671.75  80,319.04 
Significant Accounting Policies 1 & 2
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes Forming Part of Accounts are integral part of the Financial Statements

foR And on BehALf of the BoARd
Sd/-
Mukesh Kumar Surana
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN - 07464675
Sd/-
J Ramaswamy foR g. m. Kapadia & Co. foR m. p. Chitale & Co.
Director - Finance Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
DIN - 06627920 FRN - 104767W FRN - 101851W
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
shrikant m. Bhosekar Atul shah Anagha thatte
Company Secretary Partner Partner
 Membership No. 039569 Membership No. 105525Place : New Delhi
Date : May 22, 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st march 2018
(` / Crores)

notes 2017-18 2016-17
Revenue 
Revenue From Operations
 Gross Sale of Products 31  2,43,399.40  2,13,904.15 
 Other Operating Revenues 32  862.71  384.50 

 2,44,262.11  2,14,288.65 
 Other Income 33  1,527.88  1,384.39 
Total Revenue  2,45,789.99  2,15,673.04 
ExPENSES 
 Cost of Materials Consumed 34  51,365.48  45,273.13 
 Purchases of Stock-in-Trade  142,455.74  122,731.74 
 Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Trade and Work-in- Progress 35  666.00  (4,362.52)
 Excise Duty  24,752.47  26,795.76 
 Transportation Expenses  5,863.63  5,317.83 
 Exploration Cost  9.29  15.61 
 Employee Benefits Expense 36  2,892.57  2,969.35 
 Finance Costs 37  617.88  609.24 
 Depreciation & Amortization Expense 3&5  2,834.40  2,776.37 
 Other Expenses 38  5,543.98  4,668.09 
Total Expenses  237,001.44  206,794.60 
Profit before share in profit of Joint Ventures and Associates and Tax  8,788.55  8,878.44 
Share in Profit of Joint Ventures and Associates  1,321.59  2,318.98 
Profit Before Exceptional Items and Tax  10,110.14  11,197.42 
Exceptional Items – –
Profit Before Tax  10,110.14  11,197.42 
Tax expense: 
 Current tax  2,570.98  2,236.24 
 Deferred tax  466.57  777.84 
 Provision for tax for earlier years written back (net)  (145.69)  (52.48)
Total Tax Expenses  2,891.86  2,961.60 
Profit / (loss) for the period  7,218.28  8,235.82 
Other Comprehensive Income 
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: 
 Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans  86.58  (23.65)
 Fair value changes on Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income  (18.88)  175.61 
 Share in Other comprehensive Income of Joint Ventures and Associates  0.47  (1.33)
 Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  (29.99)  8.20 

 38.18  158.83 
 Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss: 
 Foreign Currency Translation Reserve  (1.54)  4.24 

 (1.54)  4.24 
Other Comprehensive Income for the period (net of tax)  36.64  163.07 
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (net of tax)  7,254.92  8,398.89 

Earning per share [Basic & Diluted earnings per share (`)] 43  47.37  54.05 
Significant Accounting Policies 1 & 2
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes Forming Part of Accounts are integral part of the Financial Statements

foR And on BehALf of the BoARd
Sd/-
Mukesh Kumar Surana
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN - 07464675
Sd/-
J Ramaswamy foR g. m. Kapadia & Co. foR m. p. Chitale & Co.
Director - Finance Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
DIN - 06627920 FRN - 104767W FRN - 101851W
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
shrikant m. Bhosekar Atul shah Anagha thatte
Company Secretary Partner Partner
 Membership No. 039569 Membership No. 105525Place : New Delhi
Date : May 22, 2018
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A. Statement of Changes in Equity

No. of Shares  Amount  
(` / Crores)

Balance at 31st March 2016  33,86,27,250  339.01 
Changes in equity Share Capital  67,72,54,500  677.25 
Balance at 31st March 2017  1,01,58,81,750  1,016.26 
Changes in equity Share Capital  50,79,40,875  507.94 
Balance at 31st March 2018  1,52,38,22,625  1,524.21 

B. Other equity  (` / Crores)

Particulars

Reserves & Surplus Other Equity

Total EquityRetained 
earnings

 Share 
Premium 
Account 

 Capital 
Redemption 

Reserve 

 Debenture 
Redemption 

Reserve 
General 
Reserve 

Capital 
Reserve

Foreign Currency 
Monetary items 

translation difference 
Account

Equity 
Instruments 

thru OCI

Foreign 
Currency 

Translation 
Reserve 

Balance at 31st March 2016  13,382.37  1,153.77  1.56  265.13  1,859.17  0.44  (194.80)  (142.50)  (0.38)  16,324.76 
Profit or Loss for the year  8,235.82 – – – – – – –   8,235.82 
Other Comprehensive income for the year  (16.78) – – – – – – –  4.24  (12.54)
Total comprehensive income for the year  8,219.04 – – – – – – –  4.24  8,223.28 
Interim / Proposed Dividend  (3,477.70) – – – – – – – –  (3,477.70)
Dividend Distribution Tax (DDT)  (707.98) – – – – – – – –  (707.98)
Transfers / Additions (Net of amortisation) – – – – –  0.08  194.36  175.61 –  370.05 
Issuance of Bonus shares (2 equity shares 
for each existing share)

–  (677.25) – – – – – – –  (677.25)

Balance at 31st March 2017  17,415.73  476.52  1.56  265.13  1,859.17  0.52  (0.44)  33.11  3.86  20,055.16 
Profit or Loss for the year  7,218.29 – – – – – – – –  7,218.29 
Other comprehensive income for the year  57.06 – – – – – – –  (1.54)  55.52 
Total comprehensive income for the year  7,275.35 – – – – – – –  (1.54)  7,273.81 
Interim / Proposed Dividend  (2,321.29) – – – – – – – –  (2,321.29)
Dividend Distribution Tax (DDT)  (472.56) – – – – – – – –  (472.56)
Transfers / Additions (Net of amortisation)  75.78 – –  (75.78) –  0.13  (0.20)  (18.88) –  (18.95)
Issuance of Bonus shares (1 equity shares 
for 2 existing share)

–  (476.52) – –  (31.42) – – – –  (507.94)

Balance at 31st March 2018  21,973.01 –  1.56  189.35  1,827.75  0.65  (0.64)  14.23  2.32  24,008.23 

Notes:
Retained Earnings : The balance held in this reserve is the accumulated retained profits and is permitted to be distributed to shareholders as part of dividend.
Share Premium : Premium collected on issue of securities are accumulated as part of securities premium. Utilisation of such reserve is restricted by the Companies Act, 
2013. 
Capital Redemption Reserve : Capital Redemption Reserve was created on redemption of preference share capital during earlier financial years 
Debenture Redemption Reserve : Debenture Redemption Reserve represents amounts set aside by the Company for future redemption of debentures. 
General Reserve : General reserve forms part of the retained earnings and is permitted to be distributed to shareholders as part of dividend.
Capital Reserve : Capital reserve is created on account of consolidation.
Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account (FCMITDA) : Reserve recognised on account of translation of long term foreign currency 
denominated borrowings related to non-depreciable Property, Plant & Equipment. Amounts recognised as part of such reserve is recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss over remaining maturity of related borrowing.
Equity instruments through OCI : The Group has chosen to recognise the changes in the value of certain investments in equity securities in other comprehensive 
income. These changes are accumulated within the Equity instruments through OCI reserve.
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve : Reserve created on account of translation of financial statements of foreign operations of PPIPL & HMEFZCO.

Statement of Changes in Equity as on 31st march 2018

foR And on BehALf of the BoARd
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st march 2018
(` / Crores)

2017-18 2016-17
A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities
 Net Profit/(Loss) before Tax & Extraordinary Items  10,110.14  11,197.42 
 Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash used in operating activities:
 Depreciation/ impairment on Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible Assets  2,834.40  2,776.37 
 (Gain)/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment  4.55  6.54 
 Remeasurement of Defined benefit plans Gain / (Loss)  56.59  (15.45)
 Amortisation of Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference  0.36  354.38 
 Amortisation of Capital Grant  (4.57)  (4.60)
 Amortisation of Lease premium  1.19  1.50 
 Spares Written off  0.57  12.14 
 Fair value gain on Current Investments carried at FVTPL  25.09  (221.77)
 (Profit)/Loss on Sale of Current Investment  60.24  (32.36)
 Finance Costs  617.88  609.25 
 Unrealised exchange Rate difference  10.12  (195.83)
 Provision for Doubtful Debts & Receivables  51.45  2.23 
 Bad Debts written off  49.86  5.26 
 Interest Income   (370.99)  (374.92)
 Share of Profit from Petroleum India International  0.02  (0.94)
 Dividend Received   (33.44)  (27.64)
 Share of Profit from Associates or Joint Ventures  (1,321.59)  (2,318.98)
 Operating Profit before Changes in Assets and Liabilities {Sub Total - (i)}  12,091.87  11,772.60 
 (Increase) / Decrease in Assets and Liabilities :
 Trade Receivables  (1,513.75)  (317.40)
 Loans and Advances and Other Assets  (1,772.55)  375.75 
 Inventories  16.37  (5,286.48)
 Liabilities and Other Payables   4,212.27  5,890.28 
 Sub Total - (ii)  942.34  662.15 
 Cash Generated from Operations (i) + (ii)  13,034.21  12,434.75 
 Less : Direct Taxes / FBT refund / (paid) - Net   1,997.00  2,180.27 
 Net Cash from Operating Activities        (A)  11,037.21  10,254.48 
B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities
  Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment (including Capital Work in Progress / excluding interest 

capitalised)
 (6,715.36)  (5,907.00)

 Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment  12.41  52.81 
  Purchase of Investments (Including share application money pending  

allotment/Advance towards Equity)
 (1,642.29)  (42.12)

 Fixed Deposit (Earmarked for project purpose from Foreign Currency Bonds proceeds)  (1,150.00)  -   
 Sale Proceeds of current investments  1,375.26  136.84 
 Interest received  369.47  375.08 
 Dividend received from Associate and Joint Venture companies  319.11  52.72 
 Dividend received - Others  33.44  27.64 
 Net Cash Flow generated from / (used in) investing activities     (B)  (7,397.96)  (5,304.03)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st march 2018
(` / Crores)

2017-18 2016-17

C. Cash Flow From Financing Activities

 Long term Loans raised  6,440.69  -   

 Long term Loans repaid  (6,720.79)  (7,053.83)

 Short Term Loans raised / (repaid)  (844.58)  7,579.92 

 Capital Grant Received  1.75  2.17 

 Finance Cost paid  (508.13)  (589.84)

 Dividend paid (including dividend distribution tax)  (2,791.90)  (4,177.14)

 Net Cash Flow generated from / (used in) Financing Activities     (C)  (4,422.96)  (4,238.72)

 Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A + B + C)  (783.71)  711.73 

 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  (1,652.23)  (2,363.96)

 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  (2,435.94)  (1,652.23)

 Details of cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year:  31.03.2018  31.03.2017 

  Cash on hand  7.98  7.70 

  Cheques, drafts on hand  0.00 –

  Balances with Banks:

   on current accounts  21.81  5.85 

   on non-operative current accounts  0.01  0.01 

  Fixed Deposits with Original Maturity Less than 3 months –

  Balances with other banks  91.72  97.91 

 121.52  111.47 

  Less : Cash Credit  (2,557.46)  (1,763.70)

 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  (2,435.94)  (1,652.23)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March, 2018

Corporate Overview
Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited referred to as “HPCL” or “the Corporation” was incorporated on 5th July, 1952. HPCL is 
a Government of India Enterprise listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited, with 
ONGC holding 51.11% of Equity Shares w.e.f. 31st January, 2018. The Group (Comprising the Corporation, its subsidiaries, Joint 
venture entities and associates) is mainly engaged, primarily in the business of refining of crude oil and marketing of petroleum 
products, production of hydrocarbons as well as providing services for management of E&P Blocks.

Authorization of financial statements
The Financial Statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 22nd May 2018.

1. Basis Of Preparation
1.1 The Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS) relates to parent company, Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited (HPCL), its 

subsidiary companies, associates and its interest in Joint Ventures, in the form of jointly controlled entities (collectively referred 
to as the “Group”).

 The Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015; and the other relevant Provisions 
of Companies Act, 2013 and Rules thereunder.

 The Financial Statements have been prepared under historical cost convention basis except for certain assets and liabilities 
measured at fair value.

 The Group’s presentation currency is INR, which is also the functional currency of the Corporation. All values are rounded to 
the nearest crores (` Crores), except where otherwise indicated.

 Use of judgements, estimates & assumptions
 While preparing financial statements in conformity with Ind AS, we make certain estimates and assumptions that require 

subjective and complex judgments. These judgments affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amount of 
assets, liabilities, income and expenses, disclosure of contingent liabilities at the statement of financial position date. Financial 
reporting results rely on our estimate of the effect of certain matters that are inherently uncertain. Future events rarely develop exactly 
as forecast and the best estimates require adjustments, as actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions 
or conditions. We continually evaluate these estimates and assumptions based on the most recently available information.

 Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods 
affected. 

 Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have 
the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are as below:
• Assessment of functional currency;
• Financial instruments;
• Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets;
• Valuation of inventories;
• Measurement of recoverable amounts of cash-generating units;
• Assets and obligations relating to employee benefits;
• Provisions;
• Evaluation of recoverability of deferred tax assets; and
• Contingencies.

 In particular, these CFS are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards on “Consolidated Financial Statements” 
(Ind AS-110), “Joint Arrangements” (Ind AS-111) and “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures” (Ind AS – 28) notified 
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March, 2018

1.2 Principles of Consolidation

 The CFS are prepared, as far as possible, using uniform significant accounting policies for the like transactions and other events 
in similar circumstances and are presented to the extent possible, in the same manner as HPCL’s separate financial statements.

 The Financial Statements of HPCL and its subsidiaries have been consolidated on a line-by-line basis by adding together the 
book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, the intra group balance and intra group transactions and 
unrealised profits or losses resulting from intra group transactions are fully eliminated. 

 The financial statements of Joint Ventures and associates have been consolidated using equity method whereby the investment 
is initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition change in the investor’s share of the investee’s 
net assets. The investor’s profit or loss includes its share of the investee’s profit or loss and the investor’s other comprehensive 
income includes its share of the investee’s other comprehensive income after eliminating unrealized profits or losses.

 Figures pertaining to the Subsidiary Companies/Joint Ventures/ Associates have been reclassified, wherever necessary, to 
conform to the parent company, HPCL’s Financial Statements.

1.3 Companies included in Consolidation

 The CFS comprise the Audited Financial Statements (except as mentioned otherwise) of HPCL, its Subsidiaries, Joint ventures 
and Associates for the year ended 31st March 2018, which are as under;

Name of the Company Country of 
Incorporation

HPCL’s Ownership Interest
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

(i) Subsidiaries (refer note no. 1.3.1)
 HPCL Biofuels Ltd. (HBL) India 100.00% 100.00%
 Prize Petroleum Company Ltd. (PPCL) (refer note no 1.3.2) India 100.00% 100.00%
 HPCL Middle East FZCO (HMEFZCO) 
 (refer note no. 1.3.3 and 1.3.6)

Dubai 100.00% –

(ii) Joint Ventures
 HPCL Rajasthan Refinery Ltd. (HRRL) India 74.00% 74.00%
 HPCL - Mittal Energy Ltd. (HMEL) (refer note no 1.3.2) India 48.99% 48.99%
 Hindustan Colas Pvt. Ltd. (HINCOL) India 50.00% 50.00%
 South Asia LPG Co. Pvt. Ltd. (SALPG) India 50.00% 50.00%
 Bhagyanagar Gas Ltd. (BGL) (refer note no. 1.3.4) India 24.99% 24.99%
 Godavari Gas Pvt Ltd. (GGPL) India 26.00% 26.00%
 Petronet India Ltd. (PIL) India 16.00% 16.00%
 Petronet MHB Ltd. (PMHBL) India 32.72% 32.72%
 Aavantika Gas Ltd. (AGL) India 49.98% 49.97%
 HPCL Shapoorji Energy Pvt Ltd. (HSEL) India 50.00% 50.00%
 Mumbai Aviation Fuel Farm Facility Pvt. Ltd. (MAFFFL) India 25.00% 25.00%
 Ratanagiri Refinery & Petrochemicals Ltd. (refer note no. 1.3.3) India 25.00% -
 CREDA - HPCL Biofuels Ltd. (CHBL) (refer note no. 1.3.3) India - 74.00%
(iii) Associates
  Mangalore Refinery and Petrochemicals Ltd. (MRPL) 

(refer note no 1.3.2)
India 16.96% 16.96%

 GSPL India Gasnet Ltd. (GIGL) India 11.00% 11.00%
 GSPL India Transco Ltd. (GITL) India 11.00% 11.00%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March, 2018

 1.3.1 The company has three subsidiaries: Prize Petroleum Company Ltd. is engaged in the business of exploration and production 
of hydrocarbons as well as providing services for management of E&P Blocks. HPCL Biofuels Ltd is engaged in the business 
of manufacturing sugar and ethanol from crushing of sugarcane and generation of power from the bagasse generated in the 
process. HPCL Middle East FZCO was incorporated as a Free Zone Company under Dubai Airport Free Zone for trading in 
Lubricants & Grease, Petrochemicals and Refined Oil products.

1.3.2 Consolidated Financial Statements have been considered for consolidation of the following:
a) Mangalore Refinery and Petrochemical Limited has one subsidiary namely ONGC Mangalore Petrochemicals limited 

(MRPL is holding 51%) and one joint ventures namely Shell MRPL Aviation Fuels and Services Limited (MRPL is holding 
50%). 

b) Prize Petroleum Company Limited has wholly owned subsidiary namely Prize Petroleum International PTE Limited. 
c) HPCL – Mittal Energy Limited has a 100% subsidiary namely HPCL – Mittal Pipelines Limited.

1.3.3 Companies incorporated / dissolved during the year
a) HPCL Middle East FZCO, a 100% Subsidiary of HPCL was incorporated on 11.02.2018 as a Free Zone Company under 

Dubai Airport Free Zone and Establishment Card was issued on 22.03.2018 for the Company. This foreign subsidiary has 
been established for Trading in Lubricants & Grease, Petrochemicals and Refined Oil Products. HPCL, as a subscriber to 
the MOA is in the process of investing rupees 17,742 (AED 1,000) towards share capital and investment upto ` 1 crores 
on need basis. 

b) Ratanagiri Refinery & Petrochemicals Ltd. was incorporated on 22nd September 2017 with Indian Oil Corporation Limited 
(IOCL), Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited (BPCL) and Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Ltd (HPCL) holding equity in 
the ratio 50%: 25%: 25%.

c) CHBL, a joint venture of HPCL and Chhattisgarh State Renewable Energy Development Agency (CREDA) with equity 
holding in the ratio 74%: 26% was dissolved with effect from 08th March 2018

1.3.4 As of 31st March 2014, paid up equity capital of BGL was ` 5 lacs, in which HPCL and GAIL were holding 24.99% each. Balance 
50.02% of shares were held by Kakinada Seaports Ltd (KSPL) on warehousing basis. In addition, each one of HPCL and GAIL 
had paid ` 22.49 crores as Advance against Equity / Share application money (totalling to ` 44.98 crores) in earlier years. 
On 20th August 2014, BGL allotted 2,24,87,500 shares on preferential basis to each of HPCL and GAIL towards the money 
paid earlier. Meanwhile there are certain issues pending adjudication with another shareholder. Accordingly, keeping in view 
financial prudence, HPCL’s share has been considered at 24.99% (considered as 24.99% in F.Y. 2016-17).

1.3.5 Ujjwala Plus Foundation, a joint venture of Indian Oil Corporation Limited (IOCL), Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited 
(BPCL) and Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Ltd (HPCL) with fund contribution in the ratio 50%: 25%: 25%, respectively 
was incorporated on 21st July, 2017 as a not-for-profit Private Company Limited by Guarantee (without Share Capital) under 
Section 8 of the Companies Act 2013.

1.3.6 Unaudited Financial Statements have been considered. 

2. Significant Accounting Policies

2.1. Property, Plant and Equipment
2.1.1. Freehold lands are carried at cost. All other items of Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated 

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
2.1.2. The initial cost of an asset comprises its purchase price or construction cost (including import duties and non-refundable 

taxes); any costs directly attributable to bring the asset into the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of 
operating in the manner intended by management; initial estimated present value of any of any contractual decommissioning 
obligation; and borrowing cost for qualifying assets (i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready 
for their intended use).
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2.1.3. Technical know-how / licence fee relating to plants / facilities are capitalized as part of cost of the underlying asset.

2.1.4. Expenditure during construction period: Direct expenses incurred during construction period on capital projects are capitalised.

2.1.5. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure 
will flow to the Corporation.

2.1.6. Spare parts which are meeting the requirement of Property, Plant and Equipment are capitalized as Property, Plant and 
Equipment in case the unit value of the spare part is above the threshold limit. In other cases, the spare parts are inventorised 
on procurement and charged to Statement of Profit and Loss on consumption.

2.1.7.  An item of Property, Plant and Equipment and any significant part initially recognised separately as part of Property, Plant and 
Equipment is derecognised upon disposal; or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal; or when 
the Property, Plant Equipment has been re-classified as ready for disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the 
asset is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

2.1.8. The residual values and useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and changes are 
accounted for as a change in accounting estimates on a prospective basis.

2.1.9. The Corporation has chosen the carrying value of Property, Plant and Equipment existing as per previous GAAP as on date of 
transition to Ind AS i.e. 1st April 2015 as deemed cost.

2.2. Depreciation / amortization

2.2.1. Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment is provided on straight line method. In accordance with requirements prescribed 
under Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013, the Company has assessed the estimated useful lives of its Property, Plant & 
Equipment and has adopted the useful lives and residual value as prescribed in Schedule II except for the following which are 
based on internal technical assessment:

Plant and Machinery relating to Retail Outlets (other than Storage tanks and related equipment) 15 years
Cavern Structure 60 years
LPG cylinders & regulators 15 years

2.2.2. The Company depreciates significant components of the main asset (which have different useful lives as compared to the main 
asset) based on the individual useful life of those components. Useful life for such components is assessed by considering 
historical experience, internal technical inputs and any other relevant factor.

2.2.3. Items of Property, Plant and Equipment costing not more than the threshold limit are depreciated at 100 percent in the year 
of acquisition except LPG Cylinders and Pressure Regulators which are depreciated over a useful life of 15 years based on the 
technical assessment.

2.2.4. Depreciation on spare parts specific to an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is based on life of the related Property, 
Plant and Equipment. In other cases, the spare parts are depreciated over their estimated useful life based on the technical 
assessment.

2.2.5. Depreciation is charged on additions / deletions on pro-rata monthly basis including the month of addition / deletion.

2.3. Intangible assets

2.3.1. Intangible assets are carried at cost net of accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally 
generated intangibles, excluding development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in Statement 
of Profit and Loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. Development costs are capitalised if technical and 
commercial feasibility of the project is demonstrated, future economic benefits are probable, the Corporation has an intention 
and ability to complete and use or sell the asset and the costs can be measured reliably.
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2.3.2. Assets where entire output generated is committed to be sold to a public sector entity (including Government body) for almost 
entire useful life of the asset are classified as intangible assets as per the requirements of Ind AS and are amortised (after 
retaining the residual value, if applicable) over their useful life.

2.3.3. In cases where, the Corporation has constructed assets and the Corporation has only a preferential right to use, these assets 
are classified as intangible assets and are amortised (after retaining the residual value, if applicable) over their useful life or the 
period of the agreement, whichever is lower.

2.3.4. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

2.3.5. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on straight line basis over their useful life and assessed for impairment whenever 
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an 
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at each financial year end. The amortisation expense on intangible assets 
with finite lives and impairment loss is recognised in the statement of Profit & Loss.

2.3.6. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, such as ‘right of way’ which is perpetual and absolute in nature, are not amortised, 
but are tested for impairment annually. The useful lives are reviewed at each period to determine whether events and 
circumstances continue to support an indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If not, the change in useful life from 
indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis. The impairment loss on intangible assets with indefinite life is recognised in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.3.7.  Technical know-how / license fee relating to production process and process design are recognized as Intangible Assets.

2.3.8. Estimated lives of intangible assets (acquired) are as follows:
l Software: 2 to 4 years
l Technical know-how/license fees: 2 to 10 years
l Right to use – wind mills: 22 years

2.3.9. The Corporation has chosen the carrying value of Intangible Assets existing as per previous GAAP as on date of transition to 
Ind AS i.e., 1st April 2015 as deemed cost.

2.4. Borrowing Cost

2.4.1. Borrowing cost consists of interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also 
includes exchange rate variation to the extent regarded as an adjustment to interest cost.

2.4.2. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of 
time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset till the month in which the asset is ready 
for intended use. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

2.5. Non-currents assets held for sale

2.5.1. Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered through a sale transaction rather 
than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met, only when the sale is highly probable and the asset is available 
for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sale of such assets.

2.5.2. Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

2.5.3. Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortized.

2.6. Leases

2.6.1. Finance Lease

 Lease arrangements are classified as finance leases, if substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the 
leased asset is transferred to the lessee.

 Lease arrangements in respect of land for lease period above threshold limit are classified as a finance lease
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2.6.2. Operating Lease

 Lease arrangements which are not classified as finance leases are considered as operating lease.

 Payments made under operating leases are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss with reference to lease terms and other 
relevant considerations. Lease incentives received / lease premium paid (if any) are recognised as an integral part of the total 
lease expense, over the term of the lease. Payments made under Operating Leases are generally recognised in Statement of 
Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, unless such payments are structured to increase in line with 
expected general inflation.

2.7.  Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

 Non-financial assets other than inventories, deferred tax assets and non-current assets classified as held for sale are reviewed 
at each Balance Sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.

 An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of assets of cash generating unit (CGU) exceeds their 
recoverable amount.

2.8. Inventories

2.8.1. Valuation of inventories (including in transit) of different categories is as under: -

a) Crude oil is valued at cost on First in First Out (FIFO) basis or at net realisable value, whichever is lower. Crude oil is not 
written down below cost except in cases where their prices have declined subsequently and it is estimated that the cost 
of the finished goods will exceed their net realisable value.

b) Raw materials for lubricants are valued at weighted average cost or at net realisable value, whichever is lower.

c) Stock-in process is valued at raw material cost plus cost of conversion or at net realisable value, whichever is lower.

d) Finished products other than Lubricants are valued at cost (on FIFO basis month-wise) or at net realisable value, whichever 
is lower.

e) Finished products (lubricants) are valued at weighted average cost or at net realisable value, whichever is lower.

f ) Empty packages are valued at weighted average cost.

g) Stores and spares which do not meet the recognition criteria under Property, Plant and Equipment are valued at weighted 
average cost. Surplus, obsolete and slow moving stores and spares, if any, are valued at cost or net realizable value 
whichever is lower. Surplus items, when transferred from completed projects are valued at cost / estimated value, pending 
periodic assessment / ascertainment of condition. Stores and Spares in transit are valued at cost.

2.8.2. Customs duty on Raw materials/Finished goods lying in bonded warehouse are provided for at the applicable rates except 
where liability to pay duty is transferred to consignee.

2.8.3. Excise duty on finished stocks lying at manufacturing locations is provided for at the assessable value applicable at each of the 
locations based on applicable duty.

2.8.4. The net realisable value of finished goods and stock in trade are final selling prices for sales to oil marketing companies and 
depot prices applicable to the locations. For the purpose of stock valuation, the proportion of sales to oil marketing companies 
and consumer sales are determined on location wise and product wise sales of subsequent period.

2.9. Revenue recognition

2.9.1. Sale of goods

 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when:

a) significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are passed to the buyer,
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b) the Corporation retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership 
nor effective control over the goods sold, 

c) revenue can be measured reliably,

d) it is probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Corporation, and

e) the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

 Revenue from the sale of goods includes excise duty and is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or 
receivable, net of returns, taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government and applicable trade discounts or rebates.

 Revenue is allocated between loyalty programs and other components of the sale. The amount allocated to the loyalty 
program is deferred, and is recognised as revenue when the Corporation has fulfilled its obligation to supply the products 
under the terms of the program or when it is no longer probable that the points under the program will be redeemed.

 Where the Corporation acts as an agent on behalf of a third party, the associated income is recognised on a net basis.

 Claims, including subsidy on Liquified Petroleum Gas (LPG) and Superior Kerosene Oil (SKO), from Government of India are 
booked on in-principle acceptance thereof on the basis of available instructions / clarifications, subject to final adjustments as 
stipulated.

2.9.2. Interest income is recognised taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable effective interest rate.

2.9.3. Dividend is recognised when right to receive the payment is established.

2.10. Accounting / classification of expenditure and income

2.10.1. Income / expenditure in aggregate pertaining to prior year(s) above the threshold limit are corrected retrospectively.

2.10.2. Prepaid expenses upto threshold limit in each case, are charged to revenue as and when incurred.

2.10.3. Insurance claims are accounted on acceptance basis.

2.10.4. All other claims / entitlements are accounted on the merits of each case.

2.10.5. Raw materials consumed are net of discount towards sharing of under-recoveries.

2.11. Employee benefits

2.11.1. Short-term employee benefit

 Short term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit & Loss of the 
year in which the related services are rendered by the employees.

2.11.2. Post-employment benefits

 Defined Contribution Plans: 

 Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed in the Statement of Profit & Loss of the year in which 
the related services are rendered by the employees.

 Defined Benefit Plans: 

 Post-employment benefits

 Liability towards defined employee benefits (gratuity, pension, post – retirement medical benefits, ex-gratia and resettlement 
allowance) are determined on actuarial valuation by independent actuaries at the year-end by using Projected Unit Credit 
method.
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 Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprises of actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets 
(excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised in Other Comprehensive 
Income.

 Other long-term employee benefits

 Liability towards other long term employee benefits (leave encashment, long service awards, provident fund contribution to 
trust and death benefits) are determined on actuarial valuation by independent actuaries using Projected Unit Credit method.

 Re-measurements gains and losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.

2.11.3. Termination benefits

 Expenditure on account of Voluntary Retirement Schemes, are charged to Statement of Profit & Loss, as and when incurred.

2.12. Foreign currency transactions

2.12.1. Monetary items

 Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the respective exchange rates prevailing at the date of transaction.

 Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at spot rates of exchange at the reporting 
date.

 Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items (except for long term foreign currency monetary 
items outstanding as of 31st March 2016) are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss either as ‘Exchange Rate Variation’ or 
as ‘finance costs’ (to the extent regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs), as the case maybe.

 In case of long term foreign currency monetary items outstanding as of 31st March 2016, foreign exchange differences arising 
on settlement or translation of long term foreign currency monetary items relating to acquisition of depreciable assets are 
adjusted to the carrying cost of the assets and depreciated over the balance life of the asset and in case of other long term 
foreign currency monetary items, if any, accumulated in ‘Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account’ and 
amortised over the balance period of the asset / liability.

2.12.2. Non – Monetary items

 Non-monetary items, other than those measured at fair value, denominated in foreign currency, are valued at the exchange 
rate prevailing on the date of transaction.

2.13. Investment in Subsidiary, associates and joint ventures

 Investments in equity shares of Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures & Associates are recorded at cost and reviewed for impairment at 
each reporting date.

 The Corporation has chosen the carrying value of the investment in Subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures existing as per 
previous GAAP as on date of transition to Ind AS i.e. 1st April 2015 as deemed cost.

2.14. Government Grants

2.14.1. Government grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached 
conditions will be complied with.

2.14.2. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over the 
periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

2.14.3. When the grant relates to property, plant and equipment, the cost of property, plant and equipment is shown at gross value 
and grant thereon is treated as liability (deferred income) and are credited to statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis 
over the useful life of the asset.
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2.15. Exploration & production expenditure

 “Successful Efforts Method” of accounting is followed for Oil & Gas exploration and production activities as stated below:

2.15.1. Cost of surveys, studies, carrying and retaining undeveloped properties are expensed out in the year of incurrence.

2.15.2. Cost of acquisition, drilling and development are treated as Capital Work-in-Progress when incurred and are capitalised when 
the well is ready to commence commercial production.

2.15.3. Accumulated costs on exploratory wells in progress are expensed out in the year in which they are determined to be dry. 

2.15.4. The proportionate share in the assets, liabilities, income and expenditure of joint operations are accounted as per the 
participating interest in such joint operations.

2.16. Provisions and contingent liabilities

2.16.1. Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation.

2.16.2. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using an appropriate discount rate. When 
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

2.16.3. Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will only be confirmed by future events not wholly within the 
control of the Corporation, or present obligations where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the 
amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

2.16.4. Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of 
economic resources is considered remote.

2.16.5. Contingent liabilities and Capital Commitments disclosed are in respect of items which in each case are above the threshold 
limit.

2.16.6. Contingent Liabilities are considered only when show-cause notice is converted into demand.

2.17. Fair value measurement

2.17.1. Fair value is the price that would be received/ paid to sell an asset or to transfer a liability, as the case may be, in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous 
market to which the Corporation has access at that date. The fair value of a liability also reflects its non-performance risk.

2.17.2. While measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the Corporation uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values 
are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

 Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

 Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liability, either directly (i.e., as 
prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices)

 Level 3: inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

Financial Instruments

2.18. Financial Assets

2.18.1. Initial recognition and measurement

 All financial assets (not measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss) are recognised initially at fair value plus 
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
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2.18.2. Subsequent measurement

 Subsequent measurement is determined with reference to the classification of the respective financial assets. The Corporation 
classifies financial assets (other than equity instruments) as under: 

(a) subsequently measured at amortised cost; 

(b) fair value through other comprehensive income; or 

(c) fair value through profit or loss 

 on the basis of its business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial 
asset.

 Amortised cost

 A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

 The asset is held within a business model whose objective is

· To hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

· Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

 After initial recognition, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate 
(EIR) method and such amortization is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 Debt instruments at Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

 Fair value through profit and loss is a residual category for measurement of debt instruments. 

 After initial measurement, any fair value changes including any interest income, impairment loss and other net gains and 
losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 Equity investments

 All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading 
are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Corporation decides to classify the same either as at FVOCI 
or FVTPL. The Corporation makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial 
recognition and is irrevocable.

 For equity instruments classified as FVOCI, all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in 
other comprehensive income (OCI).

 Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all fair value changes being recognized 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.18.3. Impairment of financial assets

 In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Corporation applies Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) model for measurement and recognition 
of impairment loss on the financial assets measured at amortised cost.

 Loss allowances on trade receivables are measured following the ‘simplified approach’ at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL 
at each reporting date.
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2.19. Financial Liabilities

2.19.1. Initial recognition and measurement

 All financial liabilities (not measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss) are recognised initially at fair value net of 
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the respective financial liabilities.

2.19.2. Subsequent measurement

 The Corporation classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost by using the Effective Interest Rate 
Method (“EIR”) and such amortisation is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.20. Financial guarantees

 Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequently on each reporting date, the liability is measured 
at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the fair value 
initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.

2.21. Derivative financial instruments

 Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into 
and are subsequently measured at each measurement date at fair value with the fair value changes being recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities 
when the fair value is negative.

2.22. Offsetting of financial instruments

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet, if there is a currently 
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the 
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.23. Taxes on Income

2.23.1. Provision for current tax is made in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

2.23.2. Deferred tax liability/asset on account of temporary difference is recognised using tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively 
enacted as at the Balance Sheet date.

2.23.3. Deferred tax assets are recognised and carried forward for all deductible temporary differences only to the extent that it is 
probable that taxable profit will be available in future against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized.

2.23.4. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets/Liabilities is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

2.23.5. Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, is considered as an asset when it is probable that the future 
economic benefits associated with it, will flow to the Corporation.

2.24. Earnings per share

2.24.1. Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after 
deducting preference dividends, if any, and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the period.

2.24.2. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders 
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential 
equity shares.
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2.25. Cash and Cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, balances with banks, other short-term, highly liquid investments with 
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.26. Cash Flows

 Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions 
of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or 
expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities 
are segregated. For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalent consist of cash, as defined above, 
net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Corporation’s cash management. 

2.27. Business combination 

 The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combination by the Group. In this method, acquiree’s 
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet condition for recognition are recognized at their fair values at 
the acquisition date. Non-controlling interest is measured at proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s 
identifiable net assets.

 Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest 
in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer ’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the 
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.

 Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the sum of the consideration 
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer ’s previously held equity 
interest in the acquiree (if any) cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised directly in equity as capital reserve in 
the period in which the investment is acquired. The transaction costs incurred in connection with business combination are 
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

 When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured 
to its acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from 
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive income 
are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed off.
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3: Property, Plant and Equipments

The following are the carrying values of Property, Plant & Equipment: (` / Crores)

Particulars Land - 
Freehold

Leasehold 
Property - 

Land
Buildings Plant & 

Equipment
Furniture 

& Fixtures
Transport 

Equipment
Office 

Equipment
Roads and 

Culverts

Railway 
Siding & 

Rolling 
Stock 

E&P 
Assets Total

Gross Block
As on 01.04.2017  731.21  43.50  4,930.18  30,832.13  167.50  79.70  1,901.18  2,305.13  284.82  564.58 41,839.93 
Additions/ Reclassifications  163.33  21.56  505.43  3,115.11  37.43  22.31  451.47  248.98  27.75  7.91  4,601.28 
Deductions/ Reclassifications  0.29  -    5.39  63.62  2.80  0.40  8.85  0.22  0.44 –  82.01 
As on 31.03.2018  894.25  65.06  5,430.22  33,883.62  202.13  101.61  2,343.80  2,553.89  312.13  572.49 46,359.20 
Depreciation/ Amortisation
As on 01.04.2017 –  0.06  263.39  3,364.40  36.96  23.78  636.48  660.66  43.24  372.40  5,401.37 
For the year –  0.14  151.57  1,933.43  23.07  11.80  296.15  316.21  22.51  42.51  2,797.39 
Deductions/ Reclassifications – –  3.07  53.07  0.69  0.15  7.73  0.14  0.39 –  65.24 
As on 31.03.2018 –  0.20  411.89  5,244.76  59.34  35.43  924.90  976.73  65.36  414.91  8,133.52 
Net Block as on 01.04.2017  731.21  43.44  4,666.79  27,467.73  130.54  55.92  1,264.70  1,644.47  241.58  192.18 36,438.56 
Net Block as on 31.03.2018  894.25  64.86  5,018.33  28,638.86  142.79  66.18  1,418.90  1,577.16  246.77  157.58 38,225.68 

3.1 Includes assets costing ` 0.007 crores (2016-2017 : ` 0.007 crores) of erstwhile Kosan Gas Company not handed over to the 
Corporation. In case of these assets, Kosan Gas Company was to give up their claim. However, in view of the tenancy right 
sought by third party, the matter is under litigation.

3.2 Includes ` 501.45 Crores (2016-2017: ` 464.72 Crores) towards Building, Other Machinery, Pipelines, Railway Sidings, Right of 
Way etc. being the Corporation’s Share of Cost of Land & Other Assets jointly owned with other Companies.

3.3 Includes ` 35.23 Crores (2016-2017 : ` 35.28 Crores) towards Roads & Culverts, Transformers & Transmission lines, Railway 
Sidings & Rolling Stock, ownership of which does not vest with the Corporation . The Corporation is having operational control 
over such assets. These assets are amortized at the rate of depreciation specified in Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013.

3.4 a)  Includes following assets which are used for distribution of PDS Kerosene under Jana Kalyan Pariyojana against which 
financial assistance was provided by OIDB
Description Orignal Cost (` / Crores)

31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Roads & culverts  0.13  0.13 
Buildings  1.62  1.62 
Plant & Equipment  2.49  2.55 
Total  4.24  4.30 

b) Includes assets held under PAHAL (DBTL) scheme against which financial assistance is being provided by MOP&NG

Description Orignal Cost (` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Computer Software 7.49 6.93
Computers/ End use devices 5.64 4.45
Office Equipment 0.01 0.01
Automation, Servers & Networks 1.55 1.55
Total 14.69 12.94

3.5 Deduction/ reclassification includes assets ` 3.49 crores  as on 31.03.18 (31.03.17 : ` 3.97 crores)  for which management has 
given consent for disposal & hence classified as Assets held for sale.
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3.6 Leasehold Land includes ` 27.57 Crores (2016-17: ` 27.57 Crores) for land acquired on lease-cum-sale basis from Karnataka 
Industrial Area Development Board (KIADB) which is capitalized without being amortised over the period of lease. Lease shall 
be converted into Sale on fulfillment of certain terms and conditions, as per allotment letter.

3.7 In accordance with Para 7AA of Ind AS 21 read with Para D13AA of Ind AS 101, the Corporation has adjusted the exchange 
differences arising on long term foreign currency monetary items to the cost of assets and depreciated over the balance useful 
life of the assets.

3.8 The Group has considered the ISBL (Inside boundary Limit) pipeline directly associated as an integral part of Plant and Machinery 
/ Tanks and has depreciated such pipelines based on the useful life of respective plants, which is considered as 25 years in line 
with the Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. 

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

4: Capital Work-in-Progress 
Unallocated Capital Expenditure and Materials at Site  3,619.12  1,597.58 
Capital Stores lying with Contractors  14.44  6.25 
Capital goods in transit  49.19  24.95 

A  3,682.75  1,628.78 
Construction period expenses pending apportionment  (Net of recovery): 
Opening balance  165.76  236.71 
Add: Expenditure during the year 
 Establishment charges including Salaries & Wages  117.58  79.73 
 Interest  92.35  68.16 
 Loss / (gain) on foreign currency transactions and translations  5.02  (193.78)
 Others  0.03  0.03 

 380.74  190.85 
Less: Allocated to assets capitalised during the year / charged off  74.47  25.09 
Closing balance pending allocation B  306.27  165.76 

A + B  3,989.02  1,794.54 

5: Intangible Assets

 The following are the carrying values of Intangible Assets: (` / Crores)

Particulars Right of Way Technical 
/ Process 
Licenses

Software Wind Energy 
Equipments

Total

Gross Block
As on 01.04.2017  170.85  61.70  60.00  188.56  481.11 
Additions/ Reclassifications  38.55  1.43  28.93  -    68.91 
Deductions/ Reclassifications  -    0.93  -    -    0.93 
As on 31.03.2018  209.40  62.20  88.93  188.56  549.09 
Depreciation/ Amortisation  -   
As on 01.04.2017  -    16.21  23.57  20.32  60.10 
For the year  -    10.34  16.48  10.33  37.15 
Deductions/ Reclassifications  -    0.93  -    -    0.93 
As on 31.03.2018  -    25.62  40.05  30.65  96.32 
Net Block as on 01.04.2017  170.85  45.49  36.43  168.24  421.01 
Net Block as on 31.03.2018  209.40  36.58  48.88  157.91  452.77 
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(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

5a: Intangible Assets Under Development *
ONGC onshore marginal fields  1.36  1.36 
Discovered Field (Permit T/18P)  18.57  18.48 
Yolla Field (License: T/L 1)  1.58  53.11 

 21.51  72.95 
 * Pertains to wholly owned subsidiary Prize Petroleum Company Limited (PPCL)

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

6: Investments in Joint Ventures and Associates
Investments in Equity Instruments 
Associates 

Quoted 
Mangalore Refinery and Petrochemicals Ltd.
29,71,53,518 (31.03.2017 : 29,71,53,518) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up  1,731.27  1,606.25 

Un - Quoted 
GSPL India Transco Ltd
4,19,10,000 (31.03.2017 : 2,25,50,000) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up  42.66  23.15 
GSPL India Gasnet Ltd
4,25,72,128 (31.03.2017 : 3,04,72,128) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up  43.29  31.09 

Joint Ventures 
Un - Quoted 

HPCL-Mittal Energy Ltd. 
3,93,95,55,200 (31.03.2017 : 3,93,95,55,200) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up  4,517.30  3,681.42 
Hindustan Colas Pvt. Ltd.
47,25,000 (31.03.2017 : 47,25,000) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully  paid up  124.89  131.18 
HPCL Rajasthan Refinery Ltd (refer note 6.1)
18,87,37,000 (31.03.2017 : 37,000) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up  172.91  72.50 
CREDA HPCL Biofuel Ltd. (refer note 6.2)
Nil (31.03.2017 : 1,60,99,803) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up –  0.01 
Petronet India Ltd.
1,60,00,000 (31.03.2017 :1,60,00,000) Equity Shares of ` 0.10  
(31.03.2017 : ` 10) each fully paid up

 0.44  16.91 

Petronet MHB  Ltd.
17,95,11,020 (31.03.2017 : 17,95,11,020) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up  225.40  217.55 
South Asia LPG Co. Pvt. Ltd.
5,00,00,000 (31.03.2017 : 5,00,00,000) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up  127.86  155.89 
Bhagyanagar Gas Ltd.
4,36,50,000 (31.03.2017 : 2,25,00,000) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up  140.77  32.71 
Aavantika Gas  Ltd
2,95,48,663 (31.03.2017 : 2,25,00,000) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up  85.01  45.39 
HPCL Shapoorji Energy Pvt. Ltd.
2,00,00,000 (31.03.2017 : 1,30,00,000) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up  18.82  12.51 
Godavari Gas Pvt Ltd.
26,00,000 (31.03.2017 : 26,00,000) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up  2.33  2.37 
Ratnagiri Refinery & Petrochemical Limited 
2,50,00,000 Equity shares of ` 10 each fully paid up  20.30 –
Mumbai Aviation Fuel Farm Facility Pvt. Ltd.
4,18,88,750 (31.03.2017 : 3,82,71,250) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up  53.32  40.82 

 7,306.57  6,069.75 



Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited

204

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at 31st  March, 2018

6.1 : Includes amount of ` Nil (31.03.2017 : ` 73.96 crores) towards subscribed, but not paid shares of HPCL Rajasthan Refinery Ltd 
being part of MOA / AOA for which liability is created under Section 10(2) of the Companies Act, 2013

6.2 : M/s CREDA HPCL Biofuel Ltd was dissolved with effect from 08th March 2018.

6.3 : As per the guidelines issued by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) in August, 2005, the Board of Directors of Navratna 
Public Sector Enterprises (PSEs) can invest in joint ventures and wholly owned subsidiaries subject to an overall ceiling of 
30% of the net worth of the PSE. The company has requested Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Gas (MOP&NG) to confirm its 
understanding that for calculating this ceiling limit, the amount of investments specifically approved by Government of India (i.e. 
investment in HPCL Mittal Energy Ltd (HMEL) and HPCL Rajasthan Refinery Limited (HRRL)) are to be excluded. The Company 
has calculated the limit of 30% investment in joint ventures and wholly owned subsidiaries, by excluding the investments 
specifically approved by Government of India. As per financial position as on 31st March 2018, the investments in joint ventures 
and wholly owned subsidiaries are well within 30% limit.

6.4 During the FY 2017-18, consequent to reduction in face value of shares Petronet India Ltd (PIL)  from ` 10 each share to ` 0.10, 
investment in PIL has reduced from ` 16.00 crores as on 31.03.2017 to ` 0.16 crores as on 31.03.2018. Consequently, the 
company has received ` 15.84 Crs during the year.

6.5: HPCL Middle East FZCO, a 100% Subsidiary of HPCL was incorporated on 11.02.2018 as a Free Zone Company under Dubai 
Airport Free Zone and Establishment Card was issued on 22.03.2018 for the Company. This foreign subsidiary has been 
established for Trading in Lubricants & Grease, Petrochemicals and Refined Oil Products. HPCL, as a subscriber to the MOA is 
in the process of investing ` 17,742 (AED 1,000) towards share capital and investment upto ` 1 crores on need basis.

(` / Crores)

31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Disclosure towards Cost / Market Value
a. Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments (Market Value)  3,253.83  3,169.14 
b. Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments (Cost)  471.68  471.68 
c. Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments (Cost)  4,719.32  4,436.21 

(` / Crores)

31.03.2018 31.03.2017
7: Other Investments

Investment in Equity Instruments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income
Quoted 

Oil India Ltd. (refer note 7.1)  575.94  594.84 
2,67,50,550 (31.03.2017 : 1,78,33,700) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up
Scooters India Ltd.(refer note 7.1)  0.06  0.04 
10,000 (31.03.2017:10,000) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up

Investment in Equity Instruments carried at fair value through Profit and Loss Account
Un-Quoted 

 Shushrusha Citizen Co-operative Hospital Limited of the face value of ` 0.10 lakhs  0.00  0.00 
100 Equity Shares of ` 100/- each fully paid

Total Investments in Equity Instruments  576.00  594.88 
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(` / Crores)

31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Investment in Government Securities carried at amortized cost 
Government Securities of the face value of ` 0.02 Crores

- Deposited with Others  -    0.02 
- On hand - Nil (31.03.2017: ` 0.25 lakhs)  -    0.00 

Government Securities of the face value of ` 0.24 lakhs
- Deposited with Others - Nil (31.03.2017: ` 0.10 lakhs)  -    0.00 
- On hand - Nil (31.03.2017: ` 0.14 lakhs)  -    0.00 

Less: Provision for Impairment  -    0.00 
Total Investments in Government Securities  -    0.02 
Investment in Debentures carried at amortized cost 
East India Clinic Ltd.

- 1/2% Debenture of face value of - ` 0.15 lakhs  0.00  0.00 
- 5% Debenture of face value of - ` 0.07 lakhs  0.00  0.00 

Total Investments in Debentures  0.00  0.00 
Other investments carried at fair value thru Profit and Loss Account 
Structured Entities 

Un - Quoted 
 Petroleum India International (Association of Persons) Contribution towards Seed 
Capital (refer note 7.2)

 0.05  0.05 

Total Investments in Structured Entities  0.05  0.05 
   576.05  594.95 

7.1 : The Company has designated these investment at fair value through other comprehensive income because these investments 
represent the investments that the Company intends to hold for long-term strategic purposes. No strategic investments were 
disposed of during the year.

7.2 :  Members in Petroleum India International (AOP) : Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Ltd., Bharat Petroleum Corporation Ltd., 
Engineers India Ltd., Indian Oil Corporation Ltd., Indian Petrochemicals Corporation Ltd., Chennai Petroleum Corporation Ltd. 
and Oil India Ltd. Each one is holding 10% share except Indian Oil Corporation which is holding 30% and Bharat Petroleum 
Corporation Ltd. which is holding 20%.

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Disclosure towards Cost / Market Value
a. Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments (Market Value)  576.00  594.88 
b. Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments (Cost)  561.77  561.77 
c. Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments (Cost)  0.05  0.07 
d. Aggregate amount of Provision for Impairment –  0.00

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

8: Loans
Secured, considered good 
 Employee loans and advances & Interest thereon  306.14  283.58 
Unsecured, considered good 
 Deposits  102.22  89.44 
 Other Loans   36.48  33.03 
   444.84  406.05 
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(` / Crores)

31.03.2018 31.03.2017
9: Other Non Current Assets

Balances with Excise, Customs, etc.  175.58  181.20 
Deposits  44.09  42.17 
Advance tax (net of provisions)  202.99  255.68 
Capital advances   158.73  221.12 
Prepaid Employee Cost  133.93  129.67 
Prepaid Lease Rental  687.85  585.50 
Others Prepaid Expenses  94.49  23.12 
   1,497.66  1,438.46

(` / Crores)

31.03.2018 31.03.2017
10: Inventories

Raw materials (Including in transit 31.03.2018 : ` 1313.86 crores; 31.03.2017 : ` 1,420.99 crores)  3,951.88  3,312.86 
Work-in-progress  740.15  443.67 
Finished goods (Including in transit 31.03.2018 : ` 149.97 crores; 31.03.2017 : ` 124.34 crores)  5,955.96  6,032.39 
Stock-in-trade (Including in transit 31.03.2018 : ` 1,111.11 crores; 31.03.2017 : ` 907.13 crores)  7,570.25  8,456.30 
Stores and spares (Including in transit 31.03.2018; ` 10.67 crores; 31.03.2017 : ` 13.90 crores)  396.87  380.43 
Less : Provision for stores and spares  9.49  9.49 
Packages  6.61  13.00 
   18,612.23  18,629.16

10.1. The write-down of inventories to net realisable value during the year amounted to ` 114.35 crores (31.03.2017 : ` 212.09 
crores). The write downs and reversal are included in cost of materials consumed, changes in inventories of finished goods and 
work in progress.

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

11: Investments
Investments carried at fair value through Profit and Loss account 
Quoted - Government Securities 

6.90% Oil Marketing Companies' GOI Special Bonds, 17,36,36,000  (31.03.2017 : 
24,71,36,000) ` 100 each face value  (refer note 11.1) 

 1,643.84  2,388.88 

8.00% Oil Marketing Companies' GOI Special Bonds, 24,41,000 (31.03.2017 : 24,41,000) 
` 100 each face value 

 24.68  25.13 

8.20% Oil Marketing Companies' GOI Special Bonds, 1,23,49,000 (31.03.2017 : 
1,23,49,000) ` 100 each face value 

 126.51  128.64 

6.35% Oil Marketing Companies' GOI Special Bonds, 18,32,33,000 (31.03.2017 : 
25,32,33,000) ` 100 each face value 

 1,699.61  2,364.43 

7.59% Government of India, G - Sec Bonds, 1,85,00,000 (31.03.2017 : 1,85,00,000) ` 100 
each face value (refer note 11.1) 

 184.63  193.87 

7.72% Government of India, G - Sec Bonds, 8,36,00,000 ` 100 each face value (refer 
note 11.1) 

 848.84 –
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(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

8.33% Government of India, G - Sec Bonds, 1,80,00,000 ` 100 each face value (refer 
note 11.1) 

 187.41 –

8.15% Government of India, G - Sec Bonds,  2,75,00,000 ` 100 each face value (refer 
note 11.1) 

 283.86 –

 4,999.38  5,100.95 
Un-Quoted - Equity instruments 

Sai Wardha Power Generation Ltd. 
Nil  (31.03.2017 : 77,83,468) Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid up –  7.78 

–  7.78 
  4,999.38  5,108.73

11.1: 6.90% Oil Marketing Companies GOI Special Bonds 2026 of ` 1378.64 crores, 7.59 % G-Sec Bonds 2026 of ` 183.00 crores, 
7.72 % G-Sec Bonds 2025 of ` 615.00 crores, 8.33 % G-Sec Bonds 2026 of ` 180.00 crores and 8.15 % G-Sec. Bonds 2026 of 
` 275.00 crores, are pledged with Clearing Corporation of India Limited against CBLO Loan.

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Disclosure towards Cost / Market Value
a. Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments (Market Value)  4,999.38  5,100.96 
b. Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments (Cost)  5,267.26  5,343.23 
c. Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments (Cost) –  7.78 

(` / Crores)

31.03.2018 31.03.2017
12: Trade Receivables 

Unsecured considered good  5,597.12  4,113.35 
Doubtful  123.05  143.08 
Less: Allowances for Bad and Doubtful Debts  123.05  143.08 
Less: Impairment Provision (Expected Credit Loss Model)  10.10  21.69 
  5,587.02  4,091.66

(` / Crores)

31.03.2018 31.03.2017
13: Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balances with Scheduled Banks: 
- on Current Accounts  21.81  5.85 
- on Non-Operative Current Accounts  0.01  0.01 
Cheques awaiting deposit  0.00  0.06 
Cash on hand  7.98  7.64 
Fixed Deposits with original maturity less than 3 months  91.72  97.91 
  121.52  111.47
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(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

14: Other Bank Balances
Earmarked balances with banks for unpaid dividend  17.08  15.01 
Fixed Deposits with 3 - 12 months maturity (refer note 14.1)  1,166.58  9.92 
   1,183.66  24.93 

14.1: Includes ` 1,150 crores (31.03.2017 : ` Nil) Earmarked for project purposes

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

15: Loans
Secured, considered good 

Employee loans and advances & Interest thereon  31.10  33.13 
Unsecured, considered good 

Deposits  0.03  0.03 
Loans to related parties  –  75.00 
Other Loans  32.74  17.33 

   63.87  125.49 

15.1: Includes ` 12.00 crores (31.03.2017: ` 12.00 crores) recoverable from Chembur Hospital Project Trust (CHPT) on demand. In 
view of the management the amount is recoverable and this matter will  be taken up with the trust

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

16: Other Financial Assets
Amounts recoverable under subsidy schemes  527.01  1,218.25 
Interest accrued on investments  88.17  74.39 
Derivative Assets  92.09  58.41 
Delayed payment charges receivable from customers  285.90  205.68 
Less : Provision for doubtful delayed payment charges receivable   97.89  78.85 
Receivables from Govt of India towards Direct Benefit Transfer of LPG (DBTL)  3,188.28  1,195.08 
Balance with LIC  892.25  826.52 
Other Receivables  1,004.42  829.46 
Less : Provision for doubtful other receivables  75.81  11.71 
  5,904.42  4,317.23

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

17: Other Current Assets
Advance recoverable other than cash  24.26  9.65 
Balances with Excise, Customs, etc.  359.25  484.13 
Prepaid Employee Cost  14.68  13.67 
Prepaid Lease Rental  42.22  38.03 
Other Prepaid Expenses  107.23  85.51 
Gold Coins in Hand  5.83  5.32 
Other Current Assets  111.90  17.14 
   665.37  653.45 
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(` / Crores)

31.03.2018 31.03.2017
18: Equity Share capital
A. Authorised: 
 75,000 (31.03.2017 : 75,000) Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of ` 100/- each  0.75  0.75 
 2,49,92,50,000 (31.03.2017 : 2,49,92,50,000) Equity Shares of  ` 10/- each  2,499.25  2,499.25 

 2,500.00  2,500.00 

B. Issued & Subscribed: 
 1,52,45,25,375 (31.03.2017 : 1,01,65,84,500) Equity Shares of  ` 10 each  1,524.53  1,016.58 

C. Fully Paid up: 
 1,52,38,22,625 (31.03.2017 : 1,01,58,81,750)  Equity  Shares of  ` 10 each fully paid up  1,523.82  1,015.88 

D. Shares Forfeited:
 7,02,750 (31.03.2017 : 7,02,750)  Shares Forfeited (money received)  0.39  0.39 
   1,524.21  1,016.27 

E. Reconciliation of number of Equity Shares 
 Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,01,58,81,750  338,627,250 
 Equity shares allotted as fully paid bonus shares (refer note # H)  50,79,40,875  677,254,500 
 Outstanding at the end of the year 1,52,38,22,625 1,01,58,81,750 

F. Rights and Restrictions on Equity / Preference Shares 

 The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having a face value of ` 10/- per share which are issued and subscribed. 
Each Shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject 
to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the 
event of the winding up of the  Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of 
the Company in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders and the amount paid up thereon. 
The Company also has  75,000   6% cumulative Redeemable Non-convertible Preference Shares of ` 100 /- each as a part of 
the Authorised Capital, which  were issued earlier by the erstwhile ESSO Standard Refining Co. of India Ltd. (ESRC) . Presently 
the said Preference Shares stand redeemed.

G. Details of shares held by each shareholder, holding more than 5% shares in the company:
31.03.2018

Name of shareholders % Holding No. of Shares
Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Limited 51.11 77,88,45,375

31.03.2017

Name of shareholders % Holding No. of Shares
President of India 51.11 51,92,30,250

H. In the period of five years immediately preceding 31st March, 2018:

 The Corporation had issued Bonus Shares during Financial Year 2017-18, in the ratio of 1:2 (2016-17: 2:1) by capitalization 
of Reserve. The total number of Bonus Shares issued is 50,79,40,875 (2016-17 : 67,72,54,500) equity shares having face 
value of ` 10 each.
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(` / Crores)

31.03.2018 31.03.2017
19: Reserves and Surplus

Capital Redemption Reserve (i)  1.56  1.56 
Share Premium Account  (ii) –  476.52 
Debenture Redemption Reserve  (iii)  189.35  265.13 
Capital Reserve  (iv)  0.65  0.52 
Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account   (v)  (0.64)  (0.44)
General Reserve   (vi)  1,827.75  1,859.17 
Retained Earnings  (vii)  21,973.01  17,415.73 
   23,991.68  20,018.19 
(i) Capital Redemption Reserve 
 As per last Balance Sheet  1.56  1.56 
(ii) Share Premium  Account  
 As per last Balance Sheet  476.52  1,153.77 
 Less: Bonus shares issue  476.52  677.25 

–  476.52 
(iii) Debenture Redemption Reserve 
 As per last Balance Sheet  265.13  265.13 
 Add: Transfer from Retained Earnings  189.35 –
 Less: Transfer to Retained Earnings  265.13 –

 189.35  265.13 
19.1: During the Financial Year 2017–18, consequent to repayment of 8.77% Non-Convertible 

Debentures, Debenture Redemption Reserve created out of Retained Earnings earlier is 
now transferred back to Retained Earnings.
(iv) Capital Reserve 
 As per last Balance Sheet  0.52  0.44 
 Add: Transfer during the year  0.13  0.08 

 0.65  0.52 
(v) Foreign Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account* 
 As per last Balance Sheet  (0.44)  (194.80)
 Add: Additions during the year  (0.56)  (160.02)
 Less: Amortised during the year  (0.36)  (354.38)

 (0.64)  (0.44)
* In accordance with the option exercised by the Group, balance appearing in “Foreign 
Currency Monetary Item Translation Difference Account” is related to non-depreciable 
assets remaining to be amortized over the balance period of loan.
(vi) General Reserve  
 As per last Balance Sheet  1,859.17  1,859.17 
 Less: Bonus shares issue  31.42 –

 1,827.75  1,859.17 
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(` / Crores)

31.03.2018 31.03.2017
(vii) Retained Earnings 
 As per last Balance Sheet  17,415.73  13,382.37 
 Add : Profit for the year  7,218.29  8,235.82 
 Add : Transfer from Debenture Redemption Reserve  265.13 –
 Less : Profit appropriated to Debenture Redemption Reserve  189.35 –
 Less : Profit appropriated to Interim / Proposed Dividend  2,321.29  3,477.70 
 Less : Profit appropriated to Tax on Distributed Profits  472.56  707.98 
 Add : Share in Other comprehensive Income of equity accounted investees  0.47  (1.33)
 Less : Restatement (Gain) / Loss on Defined Benefit Plans  (56.59)  15.45 

 21,973.01  17,415.73 
   23,991.68  20,018.19 

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

20: Other Reserves
Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income  14.23  33.11 
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve  2.32  3.86 
   16.55  36.97 
(i) Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income 
 As per last Balance Sheet  33.11  (142.50)
 Add : Additions during the year  (18.88)  175.61 

 14.23  33.11 
(ii) Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 
 As per last Balance Sheet  3.86  (0.38)
 Add : Additions during the year  (1.54)  4.24 

 2.32  3.86 

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

21: Borrowings
 Bonds or Debentures  
 Secured 
 8.77% Non-convertible debentures (refer note 21.1) –  975.00 
 Un - secured 
 Foreign Currency Bonds (refer note 21.2)  3,246.88 –
 Term loans 
 Secured 
 Oil Industry Development Board  (refer note 21.3)  188.06  283.75 
 Other Loans (refer note 21.5)  290.84  309.42 
 Un - secured 
 Syndicated Loans from Foreign Banks (repayable in foreign currency)  (refer note 21.4)  7,346.82  9,647.52 

 11,072.60  11,215.69 
 Less: Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings  1,416.66  4,097.89 

 9,655.94  7,117.80 
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In respect of Secured Loans :
21.1 Debentures
 (a) The Group has issued the following Secured Redeemable Non-convertible Debentures: 
  With respect to debentures issued by Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Ltd. (HPCL)

 8.77% Non-Convertible Debentures were issued on 13th March, 2013 with the maturity date of 13th of March, 2018.The 
Corporation has redeemed the debentures on 13th March 2018. These were secured by first legal mortgage by way of a 
Registered Debenture Trust Deed over immovable property of the company being undivided share of land with the entire 
First Floor in the building High Street 1, situated at Ahmedabad and the first charge of fixed assets mainly certain Plant 
and Machinery at Visakh Refinery. The relevant charge has been satisfied. The value of such assets was ` 1,111.87 Crores 
as on 31.03.2017

21.2 Foreign currency Bonds

Particulars of Bonds  Date of Issue  Date of Repayment 
USD 500 million bonds; Interest Rate: 4% p.a. payable at Half Yearly  12th July 2017  12th July 2027 

21.3 Term Loans from Oil Industry Development Board (Secured)

 Repayable during 
Amount in (` / Crores) as on  Range of Interest Rate as on

31.03.2018 31.03.2017  31.03.2018  31.03.2017 
2017-18 –  95.69  7.86%-9.27% 
2018-19  95.69  95.69  7.86%-9.27%  7.86%-9.27% 
2019-20  61.19  61.19  7.86%-9.11%  7.86%-9.11% 
2020-21  31.18  31.18  7.86%-8.09%  7.86%-8.09% 

Total  188.06  283.75 

 Security has been created with first charge on the facilities of Awa Salawas Pipeline, Mangalore Hasan Mysore LPG Pipeline, 
Uran-Chakan / Shikarpur LPG Pipeline and Rewari Project Pipeline. The value of such assets is ` 2,247.24 crores (31.03.2017: 
` 2,199.29 crores). ` 95.69 crores (31.03.2017: ` 95.69 crores) is repayable within 1 year and the same has been shown as 
“Current Maturity of Long Term Borrowings” under Note # 27.

21.4 Syndicated Loans from Foreign Banks (repayable in foreign currency)

 With respect to Loan taken by Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Ltd.
 The Corporation has availed Long Term Foreign Currency Syndicated Loans from banks at 3 months floating LIBOR plus spread 

(spread range: 30 to 155 basis point p.a.). These loans are taken for the period up to 5 years. ` 1,302.23 Crores (31.03.2017: 
` 3,008.46 crores) is repayable within 1 year and the same has been shown as “Current Maturity of Long Term Borrowings” 
under Note # 27.

 With respect to Loan taken by Prize Petroleum International Pte Ltd.
 The secured bank loan bear interest at 1.2% + 6-months LIBOR per annum (2017: 1.2% + 6-months LIBOR per annum), which 

ranged from 2.43% to 2.76% (2017: 2.46% to 2.60%) p.a. for the financial year ended 31st March 2018 . The bank loan is 
repayable on the 7th anniversary of the utilisation date on 28th October, 2023.

21.5 Other Loans

 With respect to Loan taken by HPCL Biofuels Ltd. (HBL)
 Government Of Bihar (GOB) Soft Loan of ` 16.48 crores was availed through SBI during FY 2015-16 with interest subvention 

to the extent of 10%. Four installments amounting to ` 3.30 crores was paid during FY 2017-18 (2016 17: ` 3.30 Crs.) The 
Balance of GoB Soft Loan as on 31.03.2018 was ` 9.86 crores (2016-17: ` 13.14 crores) Term Loan of ` 308.80 crores was 
availed through SBI during FY 2014-15. Three installments amounting to ` 15.44 crores was paid during the current FY 2017-18 
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(2016-17 ` 11.58 crores) The Balance of term loan as on 31.03.2018 was ` 280.99 crores (` 296.28 crores as on 31.03.2017). 
The term loan as well as the soft loans under GOI and GOB schemes are secured by equitable mortgage of Land, Building & 
Fixed Assets. Working Capital loan is from State Bank of India with interest @ one year MCLR + 0.35% fixed spread, and the 
limit is ` 125 crores. The Working Capital loan is secured by hypothecation of Stocks & Debtors of the company. The Working 
Capital Loan balance as on 31.03.2018 was ` 117.24 crores (` 21.97 crores as on 31.03.2017).

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

22: Other Financial Liabilities
Other Liabilities  0.47  0.44 

 0.47  0.44 

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

23: Provisions
Provision for employee benefits  79.20  183.26 
Others  0.07  0.07 

 79.27  183.33 

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

24: Other Non Current Liabilities
Capital Grant  19.04  23.61 
Others  15.32 –

 34.36  23.61 

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

25: Borrowings
Loans repayable on demand 

Secured 
from banks 
Cash Credit (Secured by hypothecation of Inventories in favour of Banks on pari 
passu basis)

 2,557.46  1,763.70 

from other parties 
Collateral Borrowing and Lending Obligation (refer Note 25.1)  1,489.47  1,489.51 

Un-secured 
from banks 
Clean Loans  2,600.00  1,200.00 
Short term loans   2,737.56 –
from other parties 
Commercial papers  1,494.93  6,461.17 

 10,879.42  10,914.38 

25.1: 6.90% Oil Marketing Companies GOI Special Bonds 2026 of `  1378.64 Crores, 7.59% G-Sec Bonds 2026 of `  183.00 Crores, 
7.72% G-Sec Bonds 2025 of ` 615.00 Crores, 8.33% G-Sec Bonds 2026 of ` 180.00 Crores and 8.15% G-Sec. Bonds 2026 of `  
275.00 Crores, are pledged with Clearing Corporation of India Limited against CBLO Loan.
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(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

26: Trade Payables
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME) (refer note 47)  172.81  22.76 
Other than MSME  15,673.10  12,676.90 

 15,845.91  12,699.66 

26.1: To the extent Micro and Small Enterprises have been identified, the outstanding balance, including interest thereon, if any, as at 
Balance Sheet date is disclosed on which Auditors have relied upon.

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

27: Other Financial Liabilities
Current maturities of Long Term Borrowings (refer note 27.1)  1,416.66  4,097.89 
Interest accrued but not due on loans  54.55  30.02 
Unpaid Dividend  (refer note 27.2)  16.86  14.90 
Derivative liability  19.94  1.75 
Deposits from Dealers /Consumers/Suppliers (refer note 27.3 & 27.4)  12,416.93  10,996.83 
Other Financial Deposits  11.35  12.44 
Other Liabilities  630.92  687.71 

 14,567.21  15,841.54 

27.1 : This includes loans repayable within one year: Syndicated Loans from Foreign Banks (repayable in foreign currency) ` 1,302.23 crores 
(31.03.2017 : ` 3,008.46 crores), 8.77% Non - Convertible Debenture Nil (31.03.2017 : ` 975.00 crores), Loan from Oil Industry and 
Development Board ` 95.69 crores (31.03.2017 : ` 95.69 crores). and Other Loans ` 18.74 crores (31.03.2017 : ` 18.74 crores)

27.2: No amount is due as at the end of the year for credit to Investors’ Education and Protection Fund.

27.3: The Group, based on the substance and nature of the deposits received from customers/dealers largely towards cylinders, had 
presented such deposits under the head non-current financial liabilities during the Financial year 2016-17. Subsequently during 
the financial year 2017-18, there was a direction by C&AG on the said classification. In view of the same, the said deposits have 
been re-classified as current financial liabilities. This classification has no impact on the profit for the period. Expert Advisory 
Committee of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India has been approached for an opinion in the matter, which is 
awaited.

27.4: Includes deposit received towards Rajiv Gandhi Gramin LPG Vitrak Yojana and Prime Minister Ujjwala Yojana of ` 1,557.86 
crores (31.03.2017 : ` 941.61 crores) The deposits against these schemes have been funded from CSR fund or by Government 
of India.
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(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

28: Other Current Liabilities
Revenue received in advance  707.44  726.98 
Capital Grant  5.03  4.39 
Statutory Payables  2,752.98  3,051.25 
Other Liabilities  139.99  191.78 

 3,605.44  3,974.40 

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

29: Provisions
Provision for employee benefits  1,640.53  1,585.03 
Provisions for probable obligations (refer note 57)  729.78  685.54 

 2,370.31  2,270.57 

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

30: Current Tax Liabilities (Net)
 Provision for tax (net of advance tax)  296.16  72.61 

 296.16  72.61 
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(` / Crores)

2017-18 2016-17
31: Gross Sale of Products

Sale of Products   242,635.52  212,611.57 
Recovery under Subsidy Schemes   763.88  1,292.58 

 243,399.40  213,904.15 

31.1: Net of discount of ` 2,229.17 crores (2016-17 : ` 1,920.07 crores) and includes amount towards additional State Specific Cost 
(SSC) of Nil  (2016-17 : ` 57.21 Crores).

31.2: During the current financial year 2017-18, Subsidy on PDS Kerosene and Domestic Subsidized LPG from Central and State 
Governments amounting to ` 7.54 crores (2016-17: ` 20.01 crores) has been accounted.

31.3: Approval of Government of India for Budgetary Support amounting to ` 756.34 crores (2016-17: ` 1,272.57 crores) has been 
received and the same has been accounted under ‘Recovery under Subsidy Schemes’.

(` / Crores)

2017-18 2016-17
32: Other Operating Revenues

Rent Recoveries  565.57  116.96 
Net Recovery for LPG Filling Charges  1.33  2.40 
Miscellaneous Operating Income  295.81  265.14 

 862.71  384.50 

(` / Crores)

2017-18 2016-17
33: Other Income

Interest Income on Financial Assets carried amortized cost:
On Deposits  0.64  0.87 
On Staff Loans  29.44  35.06 
On Customers' Accounts  197.99  135.47 

 Interest On Current Investments carried at fair value through Profit and Loss account  370.99  374.92 
Interest on Other Financial Assets carried at amortized cost  185.72  162.29 

 784.78  708.61 
Dividend Income from non-current equity instruments at FVOCI  33.44  27.64 
Profit on Sale of Current Investment –  32.36 
Gain on Foreign Currency Transaction and Translation (net)  322.39  147.44 
Fair value gain on Current Investments carried at FVTPL –  221.77 
Share of Profit / (Loss) from Petroleum India International (AOP)  (0.02)  0.94 
Miscellaneous Income  387.29  245.63 

 743.10  675.78 
 1,527.88  1,384.39 



66th Annual Report 2017-2018

217

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March, 2018

(` / Crores)

2017-18 2016-17
34: Cost of Materials Consumed

Cost of Raw Materials Consumed  51,114.77  45,013.15 
Packages Consumed  250.71  259.98 

 51,365.48  45,273.13 

(` / Crores)

2017-18 2016-17

35:  Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Trade and Work-in-Progress 
(Increase)/ Decrease
Closing Stock: 

Work-in-progress  740.15  443.67 
Finished Goods  5,955.96  6,032.39 
Stock-in-trade  7,570.25  8,456.30 

 14,266.36  14,932.36 
Opening Stock: 

Work-in-progress  443.67  229.40 
Finished Goods  6,032.39  6,778.26 
Stock-in-trade  8,456.30  3,562.18 

 14,932.36  10,569.84 
 666.00  (4,362.52)

(` / Crores)

2017-18 2016-17
36: Employee Benefits Expense

Salaries, Wages, Bonus, etc.  2,316.34  2,007.70 
Contribution to Provident Fund   143.79  130.84 
Pension, Gratuity and Other Employee Benefits  217.03  516.55 
Employee Welfare Expenses  215.41  314.26 

 2,892.57  2,969.35 

(` / Crores)

2017-18 2016-17
37: Finance costs

Interest  518.31  490.05 
Exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs  41.75 –
Other Borrowing Costs (refer note 37.1)  57.82  119.19 

 617.88  609.24 

37.1 : Includes interest u/s 234B / 234C of Income Tax Act, 1961 for an amount ` 10.20 crores (2016-17 : ` 26.73 crores).
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(` / Crores)

2017-18 2016-17
38: Other Expenses

Consumption of Stores, Spares and Chemicals  250.19  304.47 
Power and Fuel  2,618.55  2,260.73 
Less : Fuel of own production consumed  2,259.39  2,118.83 

 359.16  141.90 
Repairs and Maintenance - Buildings  49.39  50.71 
Repairs and Maintenance - Plant & Machinery  934.51  839.05 
Repairs and Maintenance - Other Assets  383.07  324.48 
Insurance  58.83  64.87 
Rates and Taxes  245.05  174.42 
Irrecoverable Taxes and Other Levies  454.37  376.42 
Equipment Hire Charges  2.62  1.53 
Lease Rentals on Operating Lease  371.62  338.72 
Travelling and Conveyance  224.55  203.75 
Printing and Stationery  19.06  18.44 
Electricity and Water  796.67  733.94 
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Expenses  156.87  108.11 
Stores & spares written off  0.57  12.14 
Loss on Sale of Current Investment  60.24 –
Fair value Loss on Current Investments carried at FVTPL  25.09 –
Loss on Disposal / write off of Non - Current Investments  0.03 –
Provision for Doubtful Receivables (After adjusting provision no longer required written 
back ` 2.61 crores, 2016-17: ` 5.40 crores)

 82.91  0.66 

Provision for Doubtful Debts (After adjusting provision no longer required written back 
` 0.21 crores, 2016-17: ` 0.52 crores)

 (31.46)  1.57 

Bad Debts written off  49.86  5.26 
Loss on Sale / write off of Property, Plant & Equipment / CWIP / Non current assets held 
for sale (Net)

 4.55  6.54 

Security Charges  253.64  165.61 
Advertisement & Publicity  169.63  156.92 
Sundry Expenses and Charges (Not otherwise classified)  567.79  570.20 
Consultancy & Technical Services  53.20  66.56 
Exchange Rate Variation (Net)  0.72  0.74 
Payments to the auditor for:
- Audit Fees  0.95  0.75 
- Other Services  0.27  0.24 
- Reimbursement of expenses  0.03  0.09 

 5,543.98  4,668.09 
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Note 39: Fair Value Measurements

39.A Classification of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities:

The following table shows the carrying amounts of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities which are classified as at Fair value through 
Profit and Loss (FVTPL), Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) and Amortized Cost.

(` / Crores)
Carrying amount

31.03.2018 31.03.2017

FVTPL FVTOCI
Amortised 

cost
FVTPL FVTOCI

Amortised 
cost

Financial assets
(a) Investments
 - Investment in Equity Instruments  576.00  594.88 
 - Investment in Debt Instruments  4,999.38  5,100.96 
 - Others  0.05 –  7.83  0.02 
(b) Loans & Advances
 - Employee Loans  337.24  316.71 
 - Loans to Related Parties –  75.00 
 - Others  171.48  139.83 
(c) Trade receivables  5,587.02  4,091.66 
(d) Cash and cash equivalents  121.52  111.47 
(e) Other Bank Balances  1,183.66  24.93 
(f ) Derivative Assets  92.09  58.41 
(g) Amounts recoverable under subsidy schemes  527.01  1,218.25 
(h) Others  5,285.31  3,040.58 
total  5,091.52  576.00 13,213.24  5,167.20  594.88  9,018.45 
Financial liabilities
(a) Borrowings
 - Non-convertible debentures –  975.00 
 - Foreign Currency Bonds  3,246.88  - 
 - Oil Industry Development Board  188.06  283.75 
 - Syndicated Loans from Foreign Banks  7,346.82  9,647.52 
 - Long term loans from banks  290.84  309.42 
 - Cash Credit  2,557.46  1,763.70 
 - Short term loans from banks  2,737.56  - 
 - Clean Loans  2,600.00  1,200.00 
 - Collateral Borrowing and Lending Obligation  1,489.47  1,489.51 
 - Commercial papers  1,494.93  6,461.17 
(b) Trade Payables  15,845.91  12,699.66 
(c) Deposits from Consumers  12,416.93  10,996.83 
(d) Derivative Liability  19.94  1.75 
(e) Others  714.16  745.51 
total  19.94 – 50,929.02  1.75 – 46,572.07 
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39.B Fair value hierarchy

 This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities that are recognised and measured at fair value and at amortised cost. To provide an indication about the reliability of 
the inputs used in determining fair value, Group has classified its Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities into the three levels 
prescribed under the accounting standard. It does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities 
not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value. An explanation of each level is 
provided under Significant Accounting Policy

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Investments
-  Investment in Equity Instruments  576.00  594.88 
-  Investment in Debt Instruments  4,999.38  5,100.96 
-  Others –  0.05  0.02  7.83 
Loans & Advances
-  Employee Loans  337.24  316.71 
Derivative Assets  92.09  58.41 
Total  5,575.38  429.38 –  5,695.86  382.95 –
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
-  Non-convertible debentures –  990.66 
-  Foreign Currency Bonds  3,125.75 –
-  Oil Industry Development Board Loan  190.39  290.99 
Derivative Liabilities  19.94  1.75 
Total –  3,336.08 – –  1,283.40 –

39.C Valuation techniques used to determine Fair Value

Type Valuation technique
Derivative instruments - forward exchange contracts Discounted cash flow i.e. fair value of foreign exchange forward 

contracts is estimated by discounting the difference between the 
contractual forward price and the current forward price for the 
residual maturity of the contract.

Commodity derivatives Fair value of commodity derivative contracts is estimated by 
determining the difference between the contractual price and the 
current forward price for the residual maturity of the contract.

Derivative instruments - interest rate swap Discounted cash flows i.e. Present value of expected receipt/payment.
Non current financial assets and liabilities measured 
at amortised cost

Discounted cash flows. The valuation model considers the present 
value of expected receipt/payment discounted using appropriate 
discounting rates.
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40: Financial risk management

40.A Risk management framework

 Your Group has adopted a well-defined process for managing its risks on an ongoing basis and for conducting the business in 
a risk conscious manner. There are defined processes for identification, assessment and mitigation of risks on an ongoing basis. 
Risk assessment is considered as critical input for decision making related to strategy formulation and capital allocation. Your 
Group has also leveraged technology to integrate and automate the entire process of enterprise risk management. The Group 
has also engaged the services of an independent expert to assist in continued implementation of effective Risk Management 
framework and improve the framework further. These self-regulatory ERM processes and procedures form part of our Risk 
Management Charter and Policy, 2007. 

 Risk Management Steering Committee (RMSC) continues to provide its guidance in this regard. Your Group has put in place 
mechanism to inform Board Members about the risk assessment and minimization procedures, and periodical review to ensure 
that executive management controls risks by means of a properly identified framework.

40.B  Group has identified financial risk and categorised them in three parts viz. (i) Credit Risk, (ii) Liquidity Risk & (iii) 
Market Risk. Details regarding sources of risk in each such category and how Group manages the risk is explained in 
following notes:

40.B.1 Credit risk :

 Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its 
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers and investment securities. Credit risk 
is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers 
to which the Group grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The Group establishes an allowance for doubtful 
debts and impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other receivables and investments.  
The maximum exposure to credit risk in case of all the financial instruments covered below is restricted to their respective 
carrying amount.

 Trade receivables

 The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. Credit risk is managed 
through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the 
Group grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

 At 31.03.2018, the Group’s most significant customer accounted for ` 1109.30 crores of the trade receivables carrying amount 
(31.03.2017 : ` 1,068.86 crores).

 The Group uses an allowance matrix to measure the expected credit losses of trade receivables (which are considered good). 
The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and loss allowance (including expected credit loss 
provision) for trade receivables:

(` / Crores)

31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Gross 
carrying 
amount

Weighed 
average 
loss rate

Loss 
allowance

Gross 
carrying 
amount

Weighed 
average 
loss rate

Loss 
allowance

Past due 0-90 days  5,233.08 0.03%  1.83  3,721.96 0.06%  2.26 

Past due 91–360 days  353.44 0.42%  1.47  355.79 0.62%  2.20 

More than 360 days  133.79 97.05%  129.85  178.67 89.72%  160.31 

 5,720.31  133.15  4,256.42  164.77 
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 The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows:

Balance as at 01.04.2016  163.47 
Add : Impairment loss recognised 5.48
Less : Amounts written off 4.18
Balance as at 31.03.2017  164.77 
Add : Impairment loss recognised 15.09
Less : Amounts written off 46.71
Balance as at 31.03.2018  133.15 

 The amounts written off at each reporting date relates to customers who have defaulted on their payments to the Group and 
are not expected to be able to pay their outstanding balances, mainly due to economic circumstances.

 Cash and cash equivalents

 The Group held cash and cash equivalents of ` 121.52 crores at March 31, 2018 (March 31, 2017: ` 111.47 crores).

 The cash and cash equivalents are held with consortium banks. Group invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit, Govt of 
India T-bills and liquid Schemes of Mutual Funds, which carry no mark to market risks for short duration and exposes the Group 
to low credit risk.

 Derivatives

 The forex and interest rate derivatives were entered into with banks having an investment grade rating and exposure to 
counter-parties are closely monitored and kept within the approved limits. Commodity derivatives are entered with reputed 
Counterparties in the OTC (Over-the-Counter) Market.

 Investment in debt securities

 Investment in debt securities are in government securities or bonds which do not carry any credit risk, being sovereign in  
nature.

 Other than trade receivables, the Group has no other financial assets that are past due but not impaired.

40.B.2 Liquidity risk

 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. Group has a strong 
focus on effective management of its liquidity to ensure that all business and financial commitments are met on time. The 
Group has adequate borrowing limits in place duly approved by its Shareholders and Board. Group’s sources of liquidity includes 
operating cash flows, cash and cash equivalents, fund and non-fund based lines from banks and liquid investment portfolio. 
Group ensures that there is minimal concentration risk by diversifying its portfolio across instruments and counterparties. Cash 
and fund flow management is monitored daily in order to have smooth and continuous business operations.

 (i) Financing arrangements

 The Group has an adequate fund and non-fund based lines from various banks. The Group has sufficient borrowing 
limits in place duly, approved by its Shareholders and Board. Domestic and international credit rating from reputed credit 
rating agencies enables access of funds both from domestic as well as international market. Group’s diversified source 
of funds and strong operating cash flow enables it to maintain requisite capital structure discipline. Group diversifies its 
capital structure with a mix of instruments and financing products across varying maturities and currencies. The financing 
products include syndicated loans, foreign currency bonds, commercial paper, non-convertible debentures, buyer’s credit 
loan, clean loan etc. Group taps domestic as well as foreign debt markets from time to time to ensure appropriate funding 
mix and diversification of geographies.
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 (ii) Maturities of financial liabilities

 The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

(` / Crores)
Contractual cash flows

31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Upto 1 

year
1-3 years

more than 
3 years

Upto 1 
year

1-3 years
more than 

3 years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings and interest thereon  12,771.02  6,277.82  5,349.83  15,400.55  5,038.40  3,022.97 
Trade payables  15,845.91 – –  12,699.66 – –
Other financial liabilities  714.16  12,416.93  745.51 –  10,996.83 
Total 29,331.09  6,277.82 17,766.76 28,845.72  5,038.40 14,019.80 
Derivative financial liabilities
Interest rate swaps  (31.88)  (41.93) –  10.75  9.86  0.54 
Commodity contracts (net settled)  (19.76) – –  5.14 – –
Total  (51.64)  (41.93) –  15.89  9.86  0.54 

40.B.3 Market Risk - Market Risk is further categorised in (i) Currency risk , (ii) Interest rate risk & (iii) Commodity risk:

40.B.3.1 Currency risk:

 The Group is exposed to currency risk mainly on account of its borrowings and import payables in foreign currency. Our 
exposures are mainly denominated in U.S. dollars. The Group has used generic derivative contracts to mitigate the risk of 
changes in foreign currency exchange rates in line with Group’s forex risk management policy. The Group has a Forex Risk 
Management Cell (FRMC) which actively review the forex and interest rate exposures. The Group does not uses derivative 
financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

 Exposure to currency risk - The currency profile of financial assets and financial liabilities is as below:

(` / Crores)
 31.03.2018  31.03.2017 

 INR 
Exposure in 
USD  (INR 

terms)
 INR 

Exposure in 
USD  (INR 

terms)
Financial assets 
Non-current investments  576.05 –  594.95 –
Current investments  4,999.38 –  5,108.74 –
Long-term loans  444.84 –  406.05 –
Short-term loans  63.88 –  125.49 –
Trade receivables  5,441.93  145.09  4,010.85  80.81 
Cash and Cash Equivalents  121.52 –  111.47 –
Other Bank Balances  1,183.66 –  24.93 –
Others Non Current Financial Assets – – – –
Others Current Financial Assets  5,904.43 –  4,317.24 –
Net exposure for assets - A  18,735.69  145.09  14,699.72  80.81 
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 31.03.2018  31.03.2017 

 INR 
Exposure in 
USD  (INR 

terms)
 INR 

Exposure in 
USD  (INR 

terms)
Financial liabilities 
Long term borrowings  478.90  10,593.70  2,117.13  9,098.55 
Short term borrowings  8,141.86  2,737.56  10,914.38 –
Trade Payables  10,254.57  5,591.34  7,694.37  5,005.29 
Other Financial Liabilities  13,151.03 –  11,744.09 –
Net exposure for liabilities - B  32,026.36  18,922.60  32,469.97  14,103.84 
Net exposure (Assets - Liabilities)(A - B)  13,290.67  18,777.51  17,770.25  14,023.03 

 The following exchange rates have been applied during the year:

INR 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
USD 1 65.1800 64.8550 

 sensitivity analysis:

 The table below show sensitivity of open forex exposure to USD/INR movement. We have considered 1% (+/-) change in USD/
INR movement, increase indicates appreciation in USD/INR whereas decrease indicates depreciation in USD/INR. The indicative 
1% movement is directional and does not reflect management’s forecast on currency movement.

(` / Crores)

Effect in INR
Impact on profit or loss due to 1 % increase / decrease in currency

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

1% movement 1% 1%
USD  187.78  (187.78)  140.23  (140.23)

40.B.3.2 Interest rate risk 

 Group has long-term foreign currency syndicated loans with floating rate, which expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. 
The borrowings at floating rate were denominated in USD. The Group manages its cash flow interest rate risk by using floating-
to-fixed interest rate swaps. Under these swaps, the Group agrees with other parties to exchange, at specified intervals (i.e. 
quarterly), the difference between fixed contract rates and floating rate interest amounts calculated by reference to the agreed 
notional principal amounts. Group monitors the interest rate movement and manages the interest rate risk based on the Group’s 
Forex Risk Management Policy. The Group also has a Forex Risk Management Cell (FRMC) which actively review the forex and 
interest rate exposures. The Group does not uses derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

 The Group’s fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind 
AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates. 

 Following is the derivative financial instruments to hedge the interest rate risk as of dates:
(` / Crores)

Category Instrument Currency Cross 
Currency  31.03.2018  31.03.2017 

Hedges of floating rate foreign currency loans 
($ 600 mn (31.03.2017: $ 530 mn)

Interest rate 
swaps

USD INR 3,910.80 3,437.32 
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 Interest rate risk exposure      

 Group’s interest rate risk arises mainly from borrowings. The interest rate profile of the Group’s interest-bearing financial 
instruments as reported to the management of the Group is as follows.

(` / Crores)
Carrying amount 

31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Fixed-rate instruments
Financial assets  6,290.42 5,301.12 
Financial liabilities 11,576.80      12,173.13 
Variable-rate instruments
Financial assets 1,229.49 1,143.23 
Financial liabilities        10,084.38         9,647.52 

 Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

 A reasonably possible change of 25 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased) 
profit or loss by the amounts shown below. The indicative 25 basis point (0.25%) movement is directional and does not reflect 
management forecast on interest rate movement.

 This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant.
(` / Crores)

Profit or loss

25 bp 
increase

25 bp 
decrease

25 bp 
increase

25 bp  
decrease

31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Floating rate borrowings              (17.19)               17.19           (21.15)                     21.15 

Interest rate swaps (notional principal amount)                   8.62               (8.62)                8.71                     (8.71)

Cash flow sensitivity (net)                 (8.58)                 8.58           (12.44)                     12.44 

40.B.3.3 Commodity Risk

 The Group’s Profitability is exposed to the risk of fluctuation in prices of Crude Oil and Petroleum products in international 
markets. Group monitors and reduces the impact of the volatility in International Oil prices based on approved Oil Price Risk 
Management Policy by entering into derivative contracts in the OTC market. 

 The Group also has Oil Price Risk Management Committee (OPRMC) which actively reviews and monitors risk management 
principles, policies and risk management activities.

 Category-wise quantitative break-up of Commodity derivative contracts entered into by the Group and Outstanding as at 
balance sheet date is given below:

Quantity (in Mn Barrels)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Crude/Product Swaps 3.05 0.71 

 The sensitivity to a reasonable possible change of 10% in the price of crude/product swaps on the outstanding commodity 
hedging positions as on Balance sheet date would increase/decrease the profit or loss by amounts shown below. This 10% 
movement is directional and does not reflect any forecast of price movement.
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Effect on Profit before Tax (`/crores)
10% 

Increase
10% 

Decrease
10% 

Increase
10% 

Decrease
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Crude/Product Swaps              (16.27)               16.27              (0.21)                       0.21 

40.B.3.4 Price risk

 The Group’s exposure to equity investment price risk arises from investment held by the Group. The Group has designated these 
investment at fair value through other comprehensive income because these investments represent the investments that the 
Group intends to hold for long-term strategic purposes.

 sensitivity

 The table below summarises the impact of increases/decreases in prices on Other comprehensive Income for the period.

(` / Crores)
Equity Instruments through OCI

1% -1% 1% -1%
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Equity Investment in Oil India Ltd. & Scooters India Ltd.  5.76  (5.76)  5.95  (5.95)

40.B.3.5. Offsetting

 The following table presents the recognised financial instruments that are eligible for offset and other similar arrangements but 
are not offset, as at 31.03.2018, 31.03.2017 .  The column ‘net amount’ shows the impact on the Company’s balance sheet if all 
set-off rights are exercised.

(` / Crores)
Effect of offsetting on the balance sheet Related amounts not offset

Gross 
amounts 

Gross 
amounts set 

off in the 
balance sheet 

Net amounts 
presented in 
the balance 

sheet 

Financial 
Instrument 
collateral 

Net Amount 

March 31, 2018
Financial assets 
Trade Receivables  9,273.19  (3,686.17)  5,587.02  (109.30)  5,477.72 
Other Current Financial Assets  5,904.42 –  5,904.42 –  5,904.42 
Financial liabilities 
Trade Payables  19,532.08  (3,686.17)  15,845.91 –  15,845.91 
Other Current Financial Liabilities  14,567.21 –  14,567.21  (109.30)  14,457.91 
March 31, 2017
Financial assets 
Trade Receivables  5,181.87  (1,090.21)  4,091.66  (234.21)  3,857.45 
Other Current Financial Assets  4,317.23 –  4,317.23 –
Financial liabilities 
Trade Payables  13,789.87  (1,090.21)  12,699.66 –  12,699.66 
Other Current Financial Liabilities  15,841.54 –  15,841.54  (234.21)  15,607.33 
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41: Tax expense

(a) Amounts recognised in profit and loss
(` / Crores)

  2017 - 18  2016 - 17 
Current tax expense   

Current year  2,570.98  2,236.24 
Changes in estimates relating to prior years  (82.86)  (285.21)

Deferred tax expense   
Origination and reversal of temporary differences  466.57  777.84 
Changes in estimates relating to prior years  (62.83)  232.73 

Tax expense recognised in the income statement  2,891.86  2,961.60 

(b) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income
(` / Crores)

 

 

2017 - 18 2016 - 17
Before 

tax
Tax 

expense/ 
(benefit)

Net of 
tax

Before 
tax

Tax 
expense/ 
(benefit)

Net of 
tax

Items that will not be reclassified to profit 
or loss

      

Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans  86.59  (29.99)  56.60  (23.65)  8.20  (15.45)

(c) Reconciliation of effective tax rate
 

 

 31.03.2018  31.03.2017 
% ` / Crores % ` / Crores

Profit before tax   10,110.14   11,197.42 

Tax as per Corporate Tax Rate 34.608%  3,498.91 34.608%  3,875.20 
Tax effect of:     
Non-deductible tax expenses 0.566%  57.23 -0.087%  (9.69)
Tax-exempt income -0.530%  (53.56) -0.987%  (110.56)
Interest expense u/s 234B/C not deductible for tax purposes 0.035%  3.53 0.083%  9.25 
Deduction for research and development expenditure -0.629%  (63.62) -0.768%  (85.97)
Investment allowance claim 0.000% – -0.907%  (101.59)
Share in profit/ loss of equity accounted investees -4.524%  (457.42) -7.167%  (802.55)
Losses of Subsidiary not available for set-off in Group profit 0.311%  31.44 0.734%  82.24 
Deferred tax assets on Unrealised profits 0.114%  11.51 0.158%  17.69 
Deferred tax Liability on Undistributed earnings 0.351%  35.50 1.178%  131.87 
Adjustments recognised in current year in relation to the current 
tax of prior years

-1.441%  (145.69) -0.469%  (52.48)

Increase in rate on account of deferred tax 0.040%  4.03   
Amounts directly recognised in OCI -0.297%  (29.99) 0.073%  8.20 

Income Tax Expense 28.604%  2,891.86 26.449%  2,961.60 
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(d) Movement in deferred tax balances
(` / Crores)

Net balance 
01.04.2017

Recognised in 
profit or loss

Recognised 
in OCI

Net balance 
31.03.2018

Deferred Tax Asset
Provision for Employee Benefits  256.05  (104.76)  5.09  156.38 
Current investments  89.38  9.82 –  99.20 
MAT Credit  316.87  (316.87) – –
Provision for Doubtful Debts & Receivables  88.26  18.78 –  107.04 
Disallowance u/s 43B  101.15  121.57 –  222.72 
Others  20.17  5.50 –  25.67 

 871.88  (265.96)  5.09  611.01 
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Property, plant and equipment  6,738.83  424.09 –  7,162.92 
Undistributed earnings  266.53  (29.56) –  236.97 
Others  15.79  0.15 –  15.94 

 7,021.15  394.68 –  7,415.83 
Deferred Tax (Assets) / Liabilities  6,149.27  660.64  (5.09)  6,804.82 

Net balance 
01.04.2016

Recognised in 
profit or loss

Recognised 
in OCI

Net balance 
31.03.2017

Deferred Tax Asset
Provision for Employee Benefits  211.83  41.68  2.54  256.05 
Current investments  166.78  (77.40) –  89.38 
MAT Credit  429.57  (112.70) –  316.87 
Provision for Doubtful Debts & Receivables  87.59  0.67 –  88.26 
Disallowance u/s 43B  102.42  (1.27) –  101.15 
Others  75.93  (55.76) –  20.17 

 1,074.12  (204.78)  2.54  871.88 
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Property, plant and equipment  5,866.68  872.15 –  6,738.83 
Undistributed earnings  145.39  121.14  266.53 
Others  96.25  (80.46) –  15.79 

 6,108.32  912.83 –  7,021.15 
Deferred Tax Assets (Liabilities)  5,034.20  1,117.61  (2.54)  6,149.27 

(e) Current Tax includes MAT Credit utilisation of ` 406.58 Crores (2016-17: ` 327.03 Crores).

(f) The recognition of MAT Credit Entitlements of ` Nil Crores as at March 31, 2018 (` 316.87 Crores as at March 31, 2017) is on 
the basis of convincing evidence that the Group will be able to avail the credit during the period specified in section 115JAA of 
the Act.

(g) Provision for tax for earlier years written back (net) of ` 145.68 Crores (2016-17: ` 52.48 Crores) represents additional provision 
towards current tax of ` 54.71 Crores (2016-17 : ` (216.40)  Crores),  reversal towards deferred Tax of ` 62.83 Crores (2016-17: 
` (232.73) Crores) and recognition of MAT credit Entitlements of ` 137.56 Crores (2016-17: ` 68.81 Crores).
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42 : Leases

Operating Lease

Leases as lessee

The Group enters into cancellable/non-cancellable operating lease arrangements for land, office premises, staff quarters and 
others. Payments made under operating leases are generally recognised in statement of Profit and Loss based on corresponding 
periods contractual terms of the lease, since the Group considers it to be more representative of time pattern of benefits flowing 
to it. The lease rentals paid for the same are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Lease payments for operating 
leases have been charged to Statement of Profit and Loss as per Ind AS 17 'Leases'. For the purpose of determining the 
expected inflationary cost increases, the management has assessed the expected general inflation rate over the lease periods. 
The future minimum lease payments and payment profile of non-cancellable operating leases are as under:

i. Future minimum lease payments

 At March 31, the future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable leases were payable as follows:

(` / Crores)
 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Less than one year  17.36  14.14 
Between one and five years  66.69  57.07 
More than five years  501.60  401.18 

 585.65  472.39 

ii. Amounts recognised in profit or loss
(` / Crores)

 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Lease expense  371.62  338.72 

43 : Earnings per share (EPS)

 Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average 
number of Equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to 
equity holders by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

i. Profit attributable to Equity holders
(` / Crores)

 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Profit attributable to equity holders for basic and diluted earnings per share  7,218.28  8,235.82 

ii. Weighted average number of ordinary shares

 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Issued ordinary shares at April 1  1,01,58,81,750  1,01,58,81,750 
Effect of shares issued as Bonus Shares*  50,79,40,875  50,79,40,875 
Weighted average number of shares for basic and diluted earnings per shares  1,52,38,22,625  1,52,38,22,625 
Basic and Diluted earnings per share (`)  47.37  54.05 

 * During Financial Year 2017-18, the Corporation had issued Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:2 by capitalization of Reserve. The 
EPS for FY 2017-18 and FY 2016-17 has been appropriately adjusted.
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44 : Capital management   

The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future 
development of the business. Management monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

The Group monitors capital using debt equity ratio. The Group’s debt to equity ratio at March 31, 2018 is as follows.

 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Long Term Borrowings (refer note # 21) (` / Crores)  11,072.60  11,215.69 
Total Equity (refer note # 19 and 20) (` / Crores)  25,532.44  21,071.43 
Debt to Equity ratio  0.43  0.53 

45 : Dividends

(` / Crores)
 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
(i) Dividends paid during the year
 Final dividend for the year ended 31.03.2017 of ̀  1.10 (31.03.2016 ̀  16.00) per fully 

paid share. This included Dividend distribution tax of ` 22.75 crores (31.03.2016: 
` 110.30 crores).

 134.50  652.10 

 First Interim dividend for the year ended 31.03.2018 of ̀  14.50 (31.03.2017 ̀  22.50) 
per fully paid share. This included Dividend distribution tax of ` 449.81 crores 
(31.03.2017 ` 465.32 crores)

 2,659.35  2,751.05 

 Second Interim dividend for the year ended 31.03.2018 of Nil (31.03.2017  ` 6.40) 
per fully paid share. This included Dividend distribution tax of  Nil (31.03.2017 
` 132.36 crores)

–  782.53 

(ii) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period
 In addition to the above dividends, since year end the directors have recommended 

the payment of a final dividend of ` 2.50 per fully paid equity share (31.03.2017 – 
` 1.10). This proposed dividend is subject to the approval of shareholders in the 
ensuing annual general meeting.

 380.96  111.75 

 Dividend distribution tax on above  78.31  22.75 

 

46 : (a)  Inter-Oil company transactions are reconciled on a continuous basis. However, year end balances are subject to 
confirmation/reconciliation which is not likely to have a material impact.

 (b) Customers’ accounts are reconciled on an ongoing basis and such reconciliation is not likely to have a material impact on 
the outstanding or classification of the accounts.
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47 : To the extent Micro and Small Enterprises have been identified, the outstanding balance, including interest thereon, if any, as at 
balance sheet date is disclosed on which Auditors have relied upon: 

(` / Crores)
Sr. No. Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

1. Amounts payable to “suppliers” under MSMED Act, as on

31/03/18: -

 - Principal

 - Interest

172.81

–

22.76

–
2. Amounts paid to “suppliers” under MSMED Act, beyond appointed day 

during FY 2017–18 (irrespective of whether it pertains to current year or 
earlier years) –

 - Principal

 - Interest

–

–

–

–

3. Amount of interest due / payable on delayed principal which has already 
been paid during the current year (without interest or with part interest)

– –

4. Amount accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of Accounting Year – –
5. Amount of interest which is due and payable, which is carried forward 

from last year
– –

48. Related party disclosure:

A. Names of and Relationship with Related Parties

 1. Jointly controlled entities

i. HPCL-Mittal Energy Ltd.

ii. Hindustan Colas Pvt. Ltd.

iii. South Asia LPG Company Pvt. Ltd.

iv. Petronet India Ltd.

v. HPCL Shapoorji Energy Pvt. Ltd.

 2.  The Company has not included disclosure in respect of following related parties which are Govt. related entities 
as per Ind AS 24.

  i. Holding Company

  1. Oil & Natural Gas Corporation Ltd. (w.e.f. 31st January 2018)

  ii. Subsidiaries

1. HPCL Biofuels Ltd.

2. Prize Petroleum Company Ltd. (PPCL)

3. Prize Petroleum International Pte. Ltd. (a wholly owned subsidiary of PPCL) 

4. HPCL Middle East FZCO (incorporated on 11th February 2018)
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  iii. Jointly controlled entities 

1. CREDA-HPCL Biofuels Ltd. (dissolved w.e.f. 08th March 2018)

2. HPCL Rajasthan Refinery Ltd.

3. Bhagyanagar Gas Ltd.

4. Petronet MHB Ltd.

5. Mumbai Aviation Fuel Farm Facility Pvt. Ltd.

6. Godavari Gas Pvt. Ltd

7. Aavantika Gas Ltd.

8. Ratnagiri Refinery & Petrochemicals Ltd. (incorporated on 22nd September 2017)

9. Ujjwala plus foundation

  iv. Associates

1. GSPL India Gasnet Ltd.

2. GSPL India Transco Ltd.

3. Mangalore Refinery and Petrochemicals Ltd.

  v. Fellow Subsidiaries

1. ONGC Mangalore Petrochemicals Ltd. 

 3. Key Management Personnel

i. Shri Mukesh Kumar Surana, Chairman and Managing Director

ii. Shri Pushp Kumar Joshi, Director - Human Resources

iii. Shri J Ramaswamy, Director - Finance

iv. Shri S Jeyakrishnan, Director - Marketing 

v. Shri Vinod S Shenoy, Director - Refineries 

vi. Shri Shrikant Madhukar Bhosekar, Company Secretary

 4. Independent Directors

i. Shri Ram Niwas Jain 

ii. Smt. Asifa Khan 

iii. Shri G V Krishna 

iv. Dr. Trilok Nath Singh 

v. Shri Amar Sinha (from 21.09.2017)

vi. Shri Siraj Hussain (from 21.09.2017)

 5. Government Directors

i. Shri Sandeep Poundrik

ii. Smt. Sushma Taishete (from 05.12.2017)

iii. Smt. Urvashi Sadhwani (till 24.11.2017)
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B. Details of transactions with related parties

 1. Transaction with Jointly controlled entities 
(` / Crores)

No. Nature of Transactions 2017-18 2016-17
(i) Sale of goods

HPCL-Mittal Energy Ltd. 59.79 86.61
Hindustan Colas Pvt. Ltd. 324.37 332.48
South Asia LPG Company Pvt. Ltd. 0.09 0.17

384.25 419.26
(ii) Purchase of goods

HPCL-Mittal Energy Ltd. 24,443.26 23,101.18
Hindustan Colas Pvt. Ltd. 71.62 115.34

24,514.88 23,216.52
(iii) Dividend income received

Hindustan Colas Pvt. Ltd. 47.25 16.54
South Asia LPG Company Pvt. Ltd. 72.50 32.50
Petronet India Ltd. 0.72 3.68

120.47 52.72
(iv) Services given (Manpower Supply Service)

HPCL-Mittal Energy Ltd. 0.55 0.42
Hindustan Colas Pvt. Ltd. 2.60 2.03
South Asia LPG Company Pvt. Ltd. 1.18 1.21

4.33 3.66
(v) Lease rental received

HPCL-Mittal Energy Ltd. 1.20 1.20
Hindustan Colas Pvt. Ltd. 0.23 0.23
South Asia LPG Company Pvt. Ltd. 1.05 0.87

2.48 2.30
(vi) Others (Services provided)

HPCL-Mittal Energy Ltd. 18.06 14.25
Hindustan Colas Pvt. Ltd. 3.19 3.02
South Asia LPG Company Pvt. Ltd. – 0.58

21.25 17.85
(vii) Others (Services availed)

HPCL-Mittal Energy Ltd. 12.25 15.60
Hindustan Colas Pvt. Ltd. 1.16 2.36
South Asia LPG Company Pvt. Ltd. 120.19 125.12

133.60 143.08
(viii) Purchases of Equity shares of M/s Petronet MHB Ltd. 

from Petronet India Ltd
– 26.09

(ix) Investment in equity shares / Converted to Equity Shares
HPCL Shapoorji Energy Pvt. Ltd. 7.00 1.50

7.00 1.50
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(` / Crores)
No. Nature of Transactions 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
(x) Receivables as on

HPCL-Mittal Energy Ltd. 9.90 8.28
Hindustan Colas Pvt. Ltd. 6.02 10.82
South Asia LPG Company Pvt. Ltd. 0.21 0.12

16.13 19.22
(xi) Payables as on

HPCL-Mittal Energy Ltd. 1,997.46 1,321.25
Hindustan Colas Pvt. Ltd. 19.51 25.74
South Asia LPG Company Pvt. Ltd. 9.58 13.94

2,026.55 1,360.93

C. Transactions with other government-controlled entities 

 The Group is a Government related entity engaged primarily in the business of refining of crude oil and marketing of petroleum 
products. The Group also deals on regular basis with entities directly or indirectly controlled by the central/state governments 
through its government authorities, agencies, affiliations and other organizations (collectively referred as “Government related 
entities”).

The Group has transactions with other Government related entities, including but not limited to the followings:

• sale and purchase of products;

• rendering and receiving services;

• lease of assets;

• depositing and borrowing money; and

• use of public utilities

 These transactions are conducted in the ordinary course of the Group’s business on terms comparable to those with other 
entities that are not Government related.

D. Remuneration paid to Key Management Personnel*  

(` / Crores)
No. Description 2017-18 2016-17
(i) Short – Term Employee Benefits 4.04 3.66
(ii) Post – Employment Benefits – 0.23

4.04 3.89

 * Remuneration to KMP has been considered from / to the date from which they became KMP.
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E. Amount due from Key Management Personnel 

(` / Crores)

No. Description 31.03.2018 31.03.2017

(i) Shri Mukesh Kumar Surana 0.10 0.11

(ii) Shri Pushp Kumar Joshi 0.05 0.06

(iii) Shri J Ramaswamy – 0.01

(iv) Shri S Jeyakrishnan 0.32 0.26

(v) Shri Vinod S Shenoy 0.08 0.09

(vi) Shri Shrikant Madhukar Bhosekar 0.13 0.04

0.68 0.57

F. Sitting Fee paid to Non-Executive Directors:

(` / Crores)

Details of Meeting
Shri Ram 

Niwas Jain
Smt. Asifa 

Khan
Shri G V 
Krishna

Dr. Trilok 
Nath Singh

Shri Amar
Sinha

Shri Siraj 
Hussain

Board 0.05 0.05 0.04 0.04 0.03 0.02
Audit Committee 0.03 – 0.02 0.00 – –
HR / Remuneration Committee 0.01 – 0.01 0.00 – –
Investor Grievance Committee – 0.01 – 0.01 – –
Investment Committee 0.02 0.02 – 0.02 – –
CSR Committee 0.01 – 0.01 – – –
Corporate presentation 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.01 – –
Independent Directors Meeting 0.00 0.00 – – 0.00 0.01
Total Sitting Fees paid 0.13 0.08 0.08 0.08 0.03 0.03

49 : The Group has entered into production sharing oil & gas exploration contracts in India in consortium with other body corporate. 
These consortia are:

Name of the Block
Participating Interest of HPCL in %
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

In India
Under NELP IV
KK- DWN-2002/2 20 20
KK- DWN-2002/3 20 20
CB- ONN-2002/3 15 15
Under NELP V
AA-ONN-2003/3 15 15
Under NELP VI
CY-DWN-2004/1 10 10
CY-DWN-2004/2 10 10
CY-DWN-2004/3 10 10
CY-DWN-2004/4 10 10
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Name of the Block
Participating Interest of HPCL in %
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

CY-PR-DWN-2004/1 10 10
CY-PR-DWN-2004/2 10 10
KG-DWN-2004/1 10 10
KG-DWN-2004/2 10 10
KG-DWN-2004/3 10 10
KG-DWN-2004/5 10 10
KG-DWN-2004/6 10 10
MB-OSN-2004/1 20 20
MB-OSN-2004/2 20 20
RJ-ONN-2004/1 22.22 22.22
RJ-ONN-2004/3 15 15
Under NELP Ix
MB-OSN-2010/2 30 30
Cluster – 7 60 60
In respect of PPCL
In India
SR ONN 2004/1 10 10
AA ONN 2010/1 20 20
Sanganpur Field 50 50
Outside India
Yolla Field (Australia) Licence T/L-1 11.25 11.25
Trefoil Field (Australia) Permit T/18P 9.75 9.75

 In Respect of HPCL

a) Blocks RJ-ONN-2004/3 and MB-OSN-20010/2 are in the process of relinquishment. The audited financial statements for 
these UJVs have been received upto March 31, 2017. The Blocks RJ-ONN-2004/1, KK-DWN-2002/2, MB-OSN-2004/1 
and MB-OSN-2004/2 are in the process of relinquishment. The audited financial statements for these UJVs have been 
received upto March 31, 2016. Blocks CY-DWN-2004/1,2,3,4, CY-PR-DWN-2004/1&2, KG-DWN-2004/1,2,3,5 and 6 are 
under relinquishment. The audited financial statements for these UJVs have been received upto March 31, 2015. The 
Company has incorporated the share of the assets, liabilities, income and expenditure based on the unaudited financial 
statements / data received from operator as on 31st March, 2018.

b) The Blocks AA-ONN-2003/3 and KK-DWN-2002/3 are in the process of relinquishment. The audited financial statements 
for these UJVs have been received upto March 31, 2011 and March 31, 2012 respectively. The Company has incorporated 
the share of the assets, liabilities, income and expenditure based on the unaudited financial statements / data received 
from operator as on 31st March, 2018.

c) The block CB-ONN-2002/3 was awarded under NELP IV bidding round and the production sharing contract was signed 
on 06.02.2004. The exploration Minimum Work Program has been completed. The block is divided into two areas i.e. 
Miroli and Sanand. Approval of Mining Lease to commence production from Sanand field has been received from 
Govt. of Gujarat. Addendum to Sanand FDP (Field development plan) for additional discovery in Kalol reservoir has 



66th Annual Report 2017-2018

237

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March, 2018

been submitted. Production from SE#3 and SE#4 wells of the Block has been started during the year. Audited financial 
statements of the block has been received upto March 31, 2017. The Company has incorporated the share of the assets, 
liabilities, income and expenditure based on the unaudited financial statements / data received from operator as on 31st 
March, 2018.

d) In respect of Cluster – 7, the matter is under arbitration (refer Note No. 53.1)

 b) In respect of PPCL

  1.1 ONGC Onshore Marginal Fields

 The Company was awarded Service Contracts dated 28th April, 2004, for development of ONGC’s Hirapur, Khambel 
and West Bechraji onshore marginal oil fields.

 The Company executed Agreements for development of Hirapur, Khambel and West Bechraji onshore marginal 
fields with Valdel Oil and Gas Private Limited (VALDEL) with equal share in the Service Contracts. The Service 
Contracts in respect of Khambel and West Bechraji had been terminated in February, 2009 by ONGC and the Service 
Contract with respect to Hirapur field is operating currently. The Company’s share of assets and liabilities as at 31st 
March 2018 and the Income and expenditure for the year in respect of above joint venture is as follows:  

(` / Crores)
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
A Property, Plant & Equipment (Gross) 9.98 9.98
B Intangible asset under development 1.36 1.36
C Other Net Non-Current Assets 0.03 (0.02)
D Net Current Assets (*) 1.58 1.39
E Income 0.91 1.02
F Expenditure 1.22 1.27

  (*) Includes receivable from joint venture amounting to ` 1.06 Crs. (for 2016-17 – ` 0.82 Crs.).

  1.2  Sanganpur Field

 The Company acquired 50% participating interest in Sanganpur field from M/s Hydrocarbon Development 
Company Pvt. Ltd. (HDCPL) effective 1st September, 2004. Accumulated amount prior to acquisition of Sanganpur 
field amounting ` 1,18,17,034/- have been included in Sanganpur field Assets. The Company has accounted its 
proportionate share in the Sanganpur field based on estimated un-Audited accounts as at 31st March, 2017.

 Bombay High Court vide order dated 14th Nov, 2014 in Company Petition 550 of 2013 has passed order for 
appointment of liquidator for assets and business of Company M/s HDCPL. This petition was filed by ETA Star 
Golding limited for non-payment of its invoices by M/s HDCPL. Said order of Bombay High Court was challenged 
before its Division Bench and is still pending before the Court. 

 MoP&NG vide its letter dated June 2, 2017 has terminated the PSC. Accordingly, Company has created a ‘Provision 
for Write-off of Sanganpur Assets’ of ` 6.65 crores. 

 The Company’s share of assets and liabilities as at 31st March 2018 and the Income, expenditure for the year in 
respect of above joint venture is as follows:
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(` / Crores)
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

A Property, Plant & Equipment (Gross) 5.63 5.63
B Other Net Non-Current Assets (0.02) (0.02)
C Net Current Assets (*) (0.10) (0.10)
D Income – 0.09
E Expenditure – 0.09

  (*) Includes payable to joint venture amounting to ` 0.04 Crs. (for 2016-17 – ` 0.04 Crs.)

  1.3 ONGC Offshore Marginal Fields (Cluster-7)

 The Company along with Consortium member, M/s Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited (HPCL) (PI - 60%) and 
M/s M3nergy (PI – 30%) was awarded a Contract vide letter of award dated 31st March, 2006 for the development of 
ONGC’s offshore marginal Oilfields viz. B -192, B - 45 and WO – 24. The Service Contract for Cluster-7 was signed 
on 27th September, 2006 between ONGC and Consortium members. The Company is the Executing Contractor and 
its participating interest (PI) is 10%.

 The said Service Contract was terminated by ONGC. Subsequently, HPCL/PPCL started arbitration proceedings 
against M3nergy which are still in progress, hence the joint bank account has not been closed on the advise of the 
legal department- HPCL.

  1.4 SR – ONN – 2004 / 1 (South Rewa Block):

 The Company along with Consortium member M/s Jaiprakash Associates Limited (PI - 90%) was awarded PSC for 
the SR-ONN-2004/1 block vide letter dated 12th February, 2007 of Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Gas (MOP & 
NG) under NELP – VI round. The Company is the executing contractor and its PI is 10%. The PSC was signed on 2nd 
March, 2007. 

 Consortium has proposed to relinquish the block effective from 23rd October, 2014 and Operating Committee 
Resolution (OCR) for relinquishment of the block has been submitted to Directorate General of Hydrocarbon (DGH). 
DGH vide its letter dated Feb. 5, 2018 has communicated that the Block stands relinquished with effect from 
23.10.2014 subject to the compliance of PSC and the P&NG rules.

 The Company’s share of assets and liabilities as at 31st March, 2018 in respect of above joint venture is as follows: 

(` / Crores)

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

A Property, Plant and Equipment (Gross) 0.00 0.00

B Intangible asset under development – –

C Other Net Non-Current Assets 0.00 0.00

D Net Current Assets (*) 3.21 2.81

E Expenditure 0.04 0.04

   (*) Includes receivables from joint venture amounting to ` 2.82 Crs. (for 2016-17 – ` 2.42 Crs.)
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 2. Estimated Hydrocarbon Proven Reserves as on 31st March, 2018 in the Oil fields as follows:

  a) Domestic Operations (Hirapur and Sanganpur (On-shore Marginal Fields))

Particulars (*)
2017-18 2016-17

MM BBLS MMT MM BBLS MMT
Recoverable Reserves 2.43 0.328 3.01 0.403

  (*) The Company Share is 50% of total

  (+)  MoP&NG vide its letter dated June 2, 2017 has terminated the PSC. Therefore, the above mentioned 
recoverable reserves does not include recoverable reserves of Sanganpur Field. 

  b) International Operations (Yolla Field, Australia – License T/L 1 – Offshore Filed)

Particulars
2017-18 2016-17
MM BoE MM BoE

Recoverable Reserves (*) 1.903 2.049

  (*) For respective share of the company

 3. Quantitative Particulars of Petroleum:

Total Dry Crude Production 
2017-18 

(BoE)
2016-17 

(BoE)
Hirapur Field (*) 33,752 36,503
Sanganpur Field (+) (*) – 555
Yolla Field (T/L1) Australia 4,59,269 4,29,582
Total 4,93,021 4,66,640

  (*) For total share in Field. 

  (+) MoP&NG vide its letter dated June 2, 2017 has terminated the PSC. Therefore, no production of Sanganpur Field 
during the FY 17-18. 

50 : During 2016-17, primarily due to the fall in the international crude oil prices, the assets of PPIPL in the Bass Gas project (License 
T/L1 & Permit T/18P) were tested for impairment. Accordingly, PPIPL has recognized an impairment loss amounting to USD 
22.98 million (` 149.06 Crs.) in 2016-17 and has reduced the carrying amount of these assets. The asset valuation is based on 
recoverable reserve production profit against various estimates and assumptions. The post-tax discount rate of 9.50% for T/L1 
and 9.75% for T/18P has been used to estimate the value in use of these assets. No further impairment is considered for 2017-
18.

51 : Considering the Government policies and modalities of compensating the oil marketing companies towards under-recoveries, 
future cash flows have been worked out based on the desired margins for deciding on impairment of related Cash Generating 
Units. Since there is no indication of impairment of assets as at Balance Sheet date as per the assessment carried out, no 
impairment has been considered. In view of assumptions being technical, peculiar to the industry and Government policy, the 
auditors have relied on the same.

52 : During the year 2017–18, the Group has spent ̀  156.86 Crores (2016-17: ̀  108.11 Crores) towards Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR) as against the budget of ` 126.38 crores (2016-17: ` 107.90 Crores).
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Head wise break up of CSR expenses are given below:
(` / Crores)

S. No. Head of Expenses 2017-18 2016-17
1 Promoting Education 56.50 27.24
2 Promoting Preventive Health Care 15.24 11.76
3 Empowerment of Socially and Economically Backward groups 7.10 4.91
4 Promotion of Nationally recognized and Para-Olympic Sports 1.05 0.99
5 Imparting Employment by Enhancing Vocation Skills 13.38 11.48
6 Swachh Bharat Abhiyaan 37.57 10.15
7 Environment Sustainability 25.27 16.58
8 Others 0.75 25.00

Total 156.86 108.11

 Amount spent during the year 2017-18 on:-
 (` / Crores)

Details In Cash Yet to be paid in Cash Total
(i) Construction / Acquisition of an assets – – –
(ii) On purpose other than (i) above 153.30 3.56 156.86

 Amount spent during the year 2016-17 on:-
     (` / Crores)

Details In Cash Yet to be paid in Cash Total
(i) Construction / Acquisition of an assets – – –
(ii) On purpose other than (i) above 90.37 17.74 108.11

53 : Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

(` / Crores)
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

I. Contingent Liabilities
A. Disputed demands / claims subject to appeals / representations filed by the 

Group
i. Income Tax 119.45 147.49
ii. Sales Tax/Octroi 2,071.18 2,145.28
iii. Excise/Customs 374.81 345.94
iv. Land Rentals & Licence Fees 125.16 155.97
v. Others 48.22 67.80

2,738.82 2,862.48
B. Disputed demands / claims subject to appeals / representations filed against 

the Group
i. Income Tax 16.15 15.29
ii. Sales Tax/Octroi 15.49 20.87
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31.03.2018 31.03.2017
iii. Excise / customs 83.08 93.39
iv. Employee Benefits/Demands (to the extent quantifiable) 220.82 210.11
v. Claims against the Group not acknowledged as Debts(refer note 53.1) 565.28 516.91
vi. Others 165.82 219.82

1,066.64 1,076.39

C. Guarantees given to others 1,419.17 161.25
 (Includes ` 575.67 Crores (31.03.17 : ` 546.27 Crores) towards share of jointly controlled entities and associates)
 (Includes ` 237.97 Crores (31.03.17 : ` 239.77 Crores) towards share of jointly controlled operations)

53.1: The Group with a Participating Interest (PI) of 70% and M/s M3nergy Sdn. Bhd (M/s M3nergy) (PI-30%) were awarded service 
contract in March, 2006 for development of ONGC’s offshore marginal oilfields of cluster-7. Group was the executing contractor. 
Parties provided necessary Bank Guarantees to ONGC. Since M/s M3nergy could not meet their contractual obligations, the 
contract was terminated by ONGC and Bank guarantees were forfeited. The Group demanded the refund of the monies 
forfeited towards encashment of Bank Guarantee along with other claims from M/s M3nergy. A counter claim of 42.60 Million 
USD equivalent to ` 277.67 Crores (42.60 Million USD @ Exchange rate of 1 USD = ` 65.18) was made by M3nergy on 
termination of such service contract. This amount is not included above. The matter was referred to Arbitration. 

 The 1st partial arbitration award was issued in favour of the Group wherein the claim of M3nergy was. disallowed. This 1st Partial 
Award has been challenged by M/s M3nergy before the Bombay High Court and the same is pending hearing and disposal. 
During the year, a 2nd Partial award has been received in favour of the Group. M/s M3nergy has challenged the 2nd Partial 
award before the Bombay High Court. The Group is in process of filing the application for enforcement of the 2nd partial award 
before the Court at Malaysia. The Group’s share of the award amounts to approximate ̀  486.05 (91.30 Million USD @ exchange 
rate of ` 48.68 for a US Dollar prevailing  on January 6, 2009 plus ` 41.6 Crores) and interest thereon. On a conservative basis, 
the Group has decided not to recognize the awards in the Financial Statements.

(` / Crores)

31.03.2018 31.03.2017

II. Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account not 
provided for

22,531.30 3,921.00

 (Includes ` 3,725.93 (31.03.17 : ` 296.48 Crores) towards share of jointly controlled entities and associates)

(` / Crores)
2017 - 18 2016 – 17

54 : Expenditure incurred on Research and Development
- Capital 132.62 209.75
- Revenue 100.16 66.79

55 : Interest on Project borrowings capitalized*
*(weighted average cost borrowing rate used for capitalization of general borrowing (other 
than specific borrowings) is 7.15 % during FY 2017-18 (FY 2016-17 : 7.95%)

92.38 67.26

56 : Exchange Differences adjusted in the carrying amount of Assets during the accounting 
period

5.03 (191.42)
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57 : In compliance of Ind AS – 37 on “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”, the required information is as under:
(` / Crores)

Particulars
Opening Balance 

as on 01.04.17
Additions Utilization Reversals

Closing Balance 
31.03.18

Excise 0.59 – – – 0.59
Sales Tax 324.65 4.39 10.42 5.79 312.83
Service Tax 12.59  – – – 12.59
Others 410.92 71.59 13.07 2.48 466.98
Total 748.75 75.99 23.49 8.26 792.99
Less: Pre Deposit 63.21 – – – 63.21
Net 685.54 75.99 23.49 8.26 729.78

Particulars Opening Balance 
as on 01.04.16

Additions Utilization Reversals Closing Balance 
31.03.17

Excise 0.59 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.59
Sales Tax 323.29 6.31 0.00 4.95 324.65
Service Tax 12.59 0.00 0.00 0.00 12.59
Others 331.22 82.12 1.97 0.45 410.92
Total 667.69 88.43 1.97 5.40 748.75
Less: Pre Deposit – – – – 63.21
Net 667.69 88.43 1.97 5.40 685.54

The above provisions are made based on estimates and expected timing of outflows is not ascertainable at this stage.

58 : Consequent to the deferment of the recovery of the loan given to consumers under the Pradhan Mantri Ujjwala Yojana 
(PMUY) scheme for next 6 refills effective 1st April 2018, the management expects recovery of outstanding loan to take place 
beyond a period of 1 year. These loans are therefore classified as non-current assets and the fair valuation has been computed 
accordingly.

59 : On January 31, 2018, Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Ltd. (ONGC) acquired 51.11% stake in paid up equity capital of Hindustan 
Petroleum Corporation Ltd (HPCL) from Govt. of India. (refer note # 18).

60 : On March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has notified the Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contract with Customers. 
The core principle of the new standard is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods 
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange 
for those goods or services. Further the new standard requires enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount, timing and 
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity’s contracts with customers. 

 The standard permits two possible methods of transition: 

•	 Retrospective approach: Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period 
presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 

•	 Cumulative catch - up approach: Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the 
date of initial application. The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 115 is financial periods beginning on or after April 1, 2018. 

 The Group will adopt the standard on April 1, 2018 by using the cumulative catch-up transition method and accordingly 
comparatives for the year ending or ended March 31, 2018 will not be retrospectively adjusted. The effect on adoption of Ind 
AS 115 is expected to be insignificant.
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61 : Threshold limits adopted in respect of financial statements is given below:

Threshold item unit of 
measurement

Threshold limits

Capitalization of spare parts meeting the definition of property plant and 
equipment.

` Lakhs 10.00

Deprecation at 100% in the year of acquisition except LPG cylinders and 
pressure regulators.

` 5,000.00

Classification as finance lease for land Lease period (years) More than 99
Income / expenditure pertaining to prior year (s) ` Crores 75.00
Prepaid expenses ` Lakhs 5.00
Disclosure of Contingent Liabilities ` Lakhs 5.00
Disclosure of Capital Commitments ` Lakhs 1.00

62 : Segment reporting

 A. Basis for segmentation

 There are no reportable segments other than downstream petroleum, as per para 13 of Ind AS - 108, Operating Segments.
 (i) Downstream Petroleum, engaged in Refining and Marketing of Petroleum products.
 (ii) Others

 The Company’s Chairman, the Chief Operating Decision Maker for the Group , periodically reviews the internal management 
reports and evaluates performance/allocates resources based on the analysis of various performance indicators relating 
to the segments referred to above.

 B. Information about reportable segments
(` / Crores)

For the year ended March 31, 2018 Reportable segments

Particulars Downstream Others
Total  

Segments
Adjustments & 

Eliminations
Consolidated

Revenue
 External Customers  2,44,084.03  178.08  2,44,262.11 –  2,44,262.11 
 Inter-segment  1.09  44.02  45.11  (45.11) –
Total Revenue  2,44,085.12  222.10  2,44,307.22  (45.11)  2,44,262.11 

Segment profit / (loss) [EBIT]  8,978.40  52.00  9,030.40  (408.75)  8,621.65 
Interest Income / (expenses) :
 Interest Income  784.78 
 Interest expense  (617.88)
Profit before tax and share of Profit in equity accounted investees  8,788.55 
  Share of profit of equity accounted investees  1,321.59 
Profit before tax (PBT) 10,110.14 
 Income tax expense  (2,891.86)
Profit after Tax (PAT)  7,218.28 
 Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax)  36.64 
Total Comprehensive Income  7,254.92 
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(` / Crores)
For the year ended March 31, 2018 Reportable segments

Particulars Downstream Others
Total  

Segments
Adjustments & 

Eliminations
Consolidated

Segment Assets  88,497.37  1,174.39  89,671.76  89,671.76 
Segment Liabilities  62,956.63  1,182.69  64,139.32  64,139.32 
Other disclosures:
 Depreciation and amortization  2,752.76  81.64  2,834.40 –  2,834.40 
 Investment in equity accounted investees  7,306.57 
  Material non-cash items other than depreciation and amortisation  191.93 
 Capital expenditure  6,802.28 

(` / Crores)
For the year ended March 31, 2017 Reportable segments

Particulars Downstream Others
Total  

Segments

Adjustments 
& 

Eliminations
Consolidated

Revenue
 External Customers  2,13,869.27  419.38  2,14,288.65 –  2,14,288.65 
 Inter-segment  0.35  44.90  45.25  (45.25) –
Total Revenue  2,13,869.62  464.28  2,14,333.90  (45.25)  2,14,288.65 
Segment profit / (loss) [EBIT]  8,850.72  (166.99)  8,683.73  95.34  8,779.07 
Interest Income / (expenses) :     
Interest Income      708.61 
Interest expense      (609.24)
Profit before tax and share of Profit in equity accounted investees    8,878.44 
Share of profit of equity accounted investees      2,318.98 
Profit before tax (PBT)      11,197.42 
Income tax expense      (2,961.60)
Profit after Tax (PAT)  8,235.82 
Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax)  163.07 
Total Comprehensive Income  8,398.89 
Segment assets  79,195.95  1,123.09  80,319.04  80,319.04 
Segment liabilities  58,232.21  1,015.43  59,247.64  59,247.64 
Other disclosures :
Depreciation and amortization  2,535.28  241.09  2,776.37 –  2,776.37 
Investment in equity accounted investees  6,069.75 
Material non-cash items other than depreciation and amortisation  262.76 
Capital expenditure      5,783.04 
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 C. Geographic information

 The geographic information analyses the Group’s revenue and non-current assets by the country of domicile and other 
countries. In presenting the geographical information, segment revenue has been based on the geographic selling 
location and segment assets were based on the geographic location of the respective non-current assets.

(` / Crores)

Geography
For the year ended  

31st March 2018
For the year ended  

31st March 2017
(i) Revenue
 India  2,42,506.03  2,12,832.71 
 Other Countries  1,756.08  1,455.94 
Total Revenue  2,44,262.11  2,14,288.65 

(ii) Non-Current Assets*
 India  51,293.49  45,996.74 
 Other Countries  216.41  255.22 
Total Non-Current Assets  51,509.90  46,251.96 

 *non-current assets other than financial instruments, deferred tax assets, post-employment benefit assets and rights 
arising from insurance contracts

 D. Information about major customers

 In case of the corporation, approximately 18% of the revenues are derived from customers under common control.

63 : I.  Summarised financial information for Joint ventures and Associates that are material to the reporting entity as 
per Ind AS 112 *:

(` / Crores)

HMEL MRPL
Particulars  31.03.2018  31.03.2017  31.03.2018  31.03.2017 
Assets:

Non-Current Assets  26,242.28  24,610.12  22,801.23  22,804.36 
Current Assets
Cash and Cash equivalents  6.67  72.60  440.37  246.15 
Other Current Assets (excluding cash and cash equivalents)  8,862.25  7,597.07  8,532.56  9,760.58 

Total (A)  35,111.20  32,279.79  31,774.16  32,811.09 
Liabilities:

Non-Current Liabilities

Non-Current Financial Liabilities (excluding Trade / Other 
Payables and Provisions)  16,484.39  16,873.70  4,478.68  8,590.95 
Other Non-Current Liabilities  579.76  671.83  499.15  439.08 
Current Liabilities

Current Financial Liabilities (excluding Trade / Other Payables 
and Provisions)  3,241.62  3,112.20  11,177.37  7,750.07 
Other Current Liabilities  5,585.05  4,107.80  5,408.02  6,557.40 

Total (B)  25,890.82  24,765.53  21,563.22  23,337.50 



Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited

246

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st  March, 2018

(` / Crores)

HMEL MRPL
Particulars  31.03.2018  31.03.2017  31.03.2018  31.03.2017 

Net Assets included in Financial Statement of Joint Venture 
/ Associate  9,220.39  7,514.26  10,210.94  9,473.59 
Ownership Interest 48.99% 48.99% 16.96% 16.96%

Carrying amount of Interest in Joint Venture/Associate  4,517.30  3,681.42  1,731.27  1,606.25 
Quoted Market Value of Shares N.A. N.A.  3,253.83  3,169.14 

 * The information provided above is after considering adjustment due to alignment of accounting policies and inter-company 
eliminations.

(` / Crores)
HMEL MRPL

Other Information: 2017-18  2016-17 2017-18  2016-17 
Revenue  39,943.06  42,488.60  63,688.06  59,989.14 
Dividend Income – –  4.08  26.80 
Interest Income  7.80  12.00  78.64  378.37 
Interest Expenses  1,152.74  1,073.10  912.65  965.92 
Depreciation  1,142.93  1,138.70  966.09  984.12 
Income tax expenses  555.62  1,160.60  1,097.84  1,760.64 
Profit / Loss for the year  1,706.63  3,209.32  1,998.81  3,462.48 
Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax)  -0.44  -1.00  3.38  -4.78 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year  1,706.18  3,208.32  2,002.19  3,457.70 

II. Details of all individually immaterial equity accounted investees :
(` / Crores)

Joint Venture Associates
 2017-18  2016-17  2017-18  2016-17 

Carrying amount of Investment in equity accounted investees  972.03  727.84  85.94  54.24 
Group's Share of Profit or Loss from Continuing Operations  146.33  168.32  0.25  0.22 
Group's share in Other Comprehensive Income  0.11  -0.03 – –
Group's share in Total Comprehensive Income  146.44  168.28  0.25  0.22 

64 : Employee benefit obligations
A: Provident Fund 
 The Group’s contribution to the Provident Fund is remitted to a separate trust established for this purpose based on a fixed 

percentage of the eligible employees salary and charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.
 Shortfall, if any, in the fund assets, based on the Government specified minimum rate of return, will be made good by the Group 

and charged to Statement of Profit and Loss. The actual return earned by the fund has mostly been higher than the Government 
specified minimum rate of return in the past years. There is no shortfall in the fund as on 31st March 2018 and 31st March 2017.

 Present value of benefit obligation at period end is ` 3764.14 crores (31.03.2017 : ` 3,438.00 crores). 
 During the year, the Group has recognised ` 143.29 crore (2016-17 : ` 129.89 crore) as Employer’s contribution to Provident 

Fund in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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B: Superannuation Fund

 The Group has Superannuation Scheme–Defined Contribution Scheme maintained by SBFS trust wherein Group contributes 
a certain percentage every month out of 30% of Basic plus DA (in accordance with DPE guidelines) to the credit of individual 
employee accounts maintained with LIC.

 During the year, the Group has recognised ̀  162.80 crore ( 2016-17 : ̀  152.15 crore) as Employer’s contribution to Superannuation 
Fund in the statement of Profit and Loss.

C:  The amounts recognised in the Balance Sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year 
are as follows:

(` / Crores)

S#  Gratuity PRMBS Pension Ex-Gratia Resettlement 
Allowance

Gratuity 
Unfunded

1 Present value of projected benefit 
obligation

      

 Present value of Benefit Obligation at 
the beginning of the period

 877.76  646.79  59.03  30.35  12.46  0.75 
 495.06  562.61  64.84  32.14  13.57  0.63 

 Interest Cost  63.73  48.19  4.20  2.15  0.90  0.06 
 39.56  45.35  5.05  2.50  1.08  0.05 

 Current Service Cost  17.01  52.17 – –  2.64  0.11 
 4.90  49.08 – –  2.52  0.11 

 Past Service Cost – – – – –  0.04 
  368.44 – – – – –
 Benefit paid  (42.01)  (46.55)  (4.40)  (5.65)  (1.50)  (0.08)

 (46.15)  (40.06)  (3.51)  (5.72)  (1.51) –
 Actuarial (gains)/ losses on obligations – 

due to change in financial assumptions
 (30.65)  (29.37)  (0.91)  (0.52)  (0.51)  (0.06)

 36.91  49.40  2.51  0.71  0.62  0.04 
 Actuarial (gains)/ losses on 

obligations–due to experience
 (37.17)  40.82  (16.81)  0.98  (2.24)  0.14 
 (20.96)  (19.59)  (9.86)  0.72  (3.82)  (0.08)

 Present value of Benefit Obligation 
a the end of the period

 848.67  712.05  41.11  27.31  11.75  0.95 
 877.76  646.79  59.03  30.35  12.46  0.75 

2 Changes in fair value of plan assets       
 Fair value of Plan Assets at the 

beginning of the period
 509.42  560.85  NA  NA  NA  NA 
 512.75  411.81  NA  NA  NA  NA 

 Interest income  36.98  41.78  NA  NA  NA  NA 
 40.97  33.19  NA  NA  NA  NA 

 Contributions by the employer  0.00  132.49  NA  NA  NA  NA 
 0.01  144.21  NA  NA  NA  NA 

 Contributions by the employee –  6.37  NA  NA  NA  NA 
 –  0.59  NA  NA  NA  NA 
 Benefit paid  (42.01)  (46.55)  NA  NA  NA  NA 

 (46.15)  (40.06)  NA  NA  NA  NA 
 Return on plan assets, excluding 

interest income
 1.63  8.68  NA  NA  NA  NA 
 1.84  11.11  NA  NA  NA  NA 

 Fair value of Plan Assets at the end 
of the period

 506.02  703.62  NA  NA  NA  NA 
 509.42  560.85  NA  NA  NA  NA 
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S#  Gratuity PRMBS Pension Ex-Gratia Resettlement 
Allowance

Gratuity 
Unfunded

 3 Included in profit and loss account       
 Current Service Cost  17.01  52.17 – –  2.64  0.11 

 4.90  49.08 – –  2.52  0.11 
 Past Service Cost – – – – –  0.04 
  368.44 – – – – –
 Net interest cost  26.75  6.41  4.20  2.15  0.90  0.06 

 (1.41)  12.16  5.05  2.50  1.08  0.05 
 Contributions by the employee –  (6.37) – – – –

–  (0.59) – – – –
 Total amount recognised in profit 

and loss account
 43.76  52.21  4.20  2.15  3.54  0.20 

 371.93  60.65  5.05  2.50  3.60  0.16 
4 Remeasurements       
 Return on plan assets, excluding 

interest income
 (1.63)  (8.68) – – – –
 (1.84)  (11.11) – – – –

 (Gain)/loss from change in 
demographic assumptions

– – – – – –
– – – – – –

 (Gain)/loss from change in financial 
assumptions

 (30.65)  (29.37)  (0.91)  (0.52)  (0.51)  (0.06)
 36.91  49.40  2.51  0.71  0.62  0.04 

 Experience (gains)/losses  (37.17)  40.82  (16.81)  0.98  (2.24)  0.14 
 (20.96)  (19.59)  (9.86)  0.72  (3.82)  (0.08)

 Change in asset ceiling, excluding 
amounts included in interest expense

– – – – – –
– – – – – –

 Total amount recognised in other 
comprehensive income

 (69.45)  2.77  (17.72)  0.46  (2.75)  0.08 
 14.11  18.70  (7.35)  1.43  (3.20)  (0.04)

D: Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet
(` / Crores)

 Gratuity PRMBS Pension Ex - Gratia Resettlement 
Allowance

Gratuity 
Unfunded

Present value of benefit obligation as on 31.03.2017  877.76  646.79  59.03  30.35  12.46  0.75 
Fair value of plan assets as on 31.03.2017  509.42  560.85 – – – –
Net Liability / (Asset) recognised in Balance Sheet 368.34  85.94  59.03  30.35  12.46  0.75 

 Gratuity PRMBS Pension Ex - Gratia Resettlement 
Allowance

Gratuity 
Unfunded

Present value of benefit obligation as on 31.03.2018  848.67  712.05  41.11  27.31  11.75  0.95 
Fair value of plan assets as on  31.03.2018  506.02  703.62 – – – –
Net Liability / (Asset) recognised in Balance Sheet  342.65  8.43  41.11  27.31  11.75  0.95 

E: Plan assets
(` / Crores)

 
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Gratuity PRMBS Gratuity PRMBS
Plan assets comprise the following:
Insurance fund  506.02  703.62 509.42 560.85

 506.02  703.62  509.42  560.85 
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F: Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions and sensitivity

F(i): The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

31.03.2018 Gratuity PRMBS Pension Ex - Gratia
Resettlement 

Allowance
Expected Return on Plan Assets 7.88% 7.76% NA NA NA
Rate of Discounting 7.88% 7.76% 7.56% 7.68% 7.88%
Rate of Salary Increase 7.00% 7.00% NA NA 7.00%
Medical Cost Inflation NA 3.00% NA NA NA
Rate of Employee Turnover 2.00% 2.00% NA NA 2.00%
Mortality Rate During Employment Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08)
Mortality Rate After Employment Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08)

31.03.2017 Gratuity PRMBS Pension Ex - Gratia
Resettlement 

Allowance
Expected Return on Plan Assets 7.26% 7.45% NA NA NA
Rate of Discounting 7.26% 7.45% 7.12% 7.09% 7.26%
Rate of Salary Increase 7.00% 7.00% NA NA 7.00%
Medical Cost Inflation NA 3.00% NA NA NA
Rate of Employee Turnover 2.00% 2.00% NA NA 2.00%
Mortality Rate During Employment Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08)
Mortality Rate After Employment Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08)

F(ii): Sensitivity analysis
(` / Crores)

31.03.2018 Gratuity PRMBS Pension
Ex - 

Gratia
Resettlement 

Allowance
Delta effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting  (44.79)  (81.98)  (1.91)  (0.84)  (0.72)
Delta effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting  50.67  102.95  2.13  0.90  0.84 
Delta effect of +1% Change in Future Benefit cost inflation –  103.66 – – –
Delta effect of -1% Change in Future Benefit cost inflation –  (82.87) – – –
Delta effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase  15.10 – – – –
Delta effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase  (16.78) – – – –
Delta effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover  15.20 – – –  (0.80)
Delta effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover  (16.92) – – –  0.93 

31.03.2017 Gratuity PRMBS Pension
Ex - 

Gratia
Resettlement 

Allowance
Delta effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting  (49.76)  (77.63)  (2.99)  (1.00)  (0.83)
Delta effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting  56.44  97.93  3.36  1.07  0.95 
Delta effect of +1% Change in Future Benefit cost inflation –  98.50 – – –
Delta effect of -1% Change in Future Benefit cost inflation –  (78.43) – – –
Delta effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase  17.49 – – – –
Delta effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase  (19.61) – – – –
Delta effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover  13.41 – – – –
Delta effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover  (14.87) – – – –
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G: The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted benefits is as follows:

(` / Crores)
Less than 1 

year
1 - 2 year 2 - 5 year 6 - 10 year

31.03.2018
Gratuity  104.45  72.95  327.25  427.52 
PRMBS  33.61  36.82  132.73  234.23 
Pension  5.11  5.08  14.98  23.91 
Ex - Gratia  4.90  4.84  14.07  21.63 
Resettlement Allowance  1.11  0.70  4.22  6.47 
Total  149.18  120.39  493.25  713.76 

Less than 1 
year

1 - 2 year 2 - 5 year 6 - 10 year

31.03.2017
Gratuity  92.85  68.54  308.90  452.75 
PRMBS  28.30  30.89  111.09  199.19 
Pension  6.82  6.78  20.04  32.19 
Ex - Gratia  5.24  5.12  14.95  22.32 
Resettlement Allowance  0.96  0.64  3.89  7.02 
Total  134.17  111.97  458.87  713.47 

H: Notes:

 Gratuity : All employees are entitled to receive gratuity as per the provisions of Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Defined 
Benefit Plan of Gratuity is administered by Gratuity Trust. The Board of Trustees comprises of representatives from the Group 
who are also plan participants in accordance with the plans regulation.

 Pension : The employees covered by the Pension Plan of the Group are entitled to receive monthly pension for life.

 Post Retirement Medical Benefit : The serving and superannuated employees are covered under medical insurance policy taken 
by Group. It provides reimbursement of medical expenses for self and dependents as per the terms of the policy.

 Ex-gratia : The ex-employees of Group covered under the Scheme are entitled to get ex-gratia based on the grade at the time 
of their retirement. The benefit will be paid to eligible employees till their survival, and after that, till the survival of their spouse.

 Resettlement Allowance : At the time of retirement, the employees are allowed to permanently settle down at a place other than 
the location of the last posting.

 The fair value of the assets of Provident Fund Trust as of balance sheet date is greater than the obligation, including interest, and 
also the returns on these plan assets including the amount already provided are sufficient to take care of PF interest obligations, 
over and above the fixed contribution recognized.

 The expected return on plan assets is based on market expectation, at the beginning of the period, for returns over the entire 
life of the related obligation.

 The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and 
other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

 Figures in italics represent last year figures

65 : Previous periods figures are reclassified / regrouped wherever necessary.
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(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the Financial Statement of Subsidiaries / Associate Companies / Joint Ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries
(` / Crores)

Sl. 
No.

Particulars
HPCL Biofuels 

Ltd.
Prize Petroleum 
Company Ltd.#

HPCL Middle 
East FZCO

HPCL 
Rajasthan 

Refinery Ltd.*
1 2 3 4

1. Date since when subsidiary was acquired 16/10/2009 28/10/2098 11/02/2018 18/09/2013
2. Reporting currency Rupees (`) Rupees (`) Arab Emirates 

Dirham
Rupees (`)

3. Exchange rate as on the last date of the 
relevant Financial year in the case of 
foreign subsidiaries.

– –  17.74 –

4. Share capital  205.52  245.00 –  188.74 
5. Reserves & surplus  (244.61)  (451.37)  (0.04)  (15.83)
6. Total assets  797.72  359.97  0.25  300.66 
7. Total Liabilities  836.81  566.34  0.29  127.75 
8. Investments – – – –
9. Turnover  130.53  87.32 – –

10. Profit before taxation  (77.85)  (12.96)  (0.04)  (14.33)
11. Provision for taxation – – – –
12. Profit after taxation  (77.85)  (12.96)  (0.04)  (14.33)
13. Proposed Dividend – – – –
14. % of shareholding 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 74.00%

# Figures based on Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company 
* Represents share of HPCL in the company

Notes:-
1 Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations
 a) HPCL Middle East FZCO
 b) HPCL Rajasthan Refinery Ltd.
2 HPCL Rajasthan Refinery Ltd. is considered as subsidiary as per Sec 2(87) of Companies Act, 2013
3 Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year
 a) CREDA-HPCL Biofuels Ltd.
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Sd/-
Mukesh Kumar Surana
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN - 07464675 

Sd/-
J Ramaswamy
Director-Finance
DIN - 06627920

Sd/-
Shrikant M. Bhosekar
Company Secretary

Date : May 22, 2018
Place : New Delhi 



66th Annual Report 2017-2018

253

Form AOC - 1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the Financial Statement of Subsidiaries / Associate Companies / Joint Ventures
Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures
Part ‘’A” (` / Crores)

Name of Joint Ventures
Hindustan 
Colas Pvt. 

Ltd.

HPCL-Mittal 
Energy Ltd.#

South Asia 
LPG Co. Pvt. 

Ltd.

Petronet 
MHB  Ltd.

Bhagyanagar 
Gas Ltd.

Petronet 
India Ltd.

Godavari 
Gas Pvt Ltd.

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet 
date

31/03/2018 31/03/2018 31/03/2018 31/03/2018 31/03/2018 31/03/2018 31/03/2018

2. Date on which the 
Associates or Joint Ventures 
was associated or acquired

17/07/1995 13/12/2000 16/11/1999 26/05/1997 22/08/2003 26/05/1997 27/09/2016

3. Shares of Joint Ventures 
/ Associate held by the 
Company on the year end
Nos.  47,25,000  3,93,95,55,200  5,00,00,000  17,95,11,032  4,36,50,000  1,60,00,000  26,00,000 
Amount of Investment in Joint 
Venture / Associate

 4.73  3,939.56  50.00  183.93  128.25  0.16  2.60 

Extend of Holding % 50.00% 48.99% 50.00% 32.72% 24.99% 16.00% 26.00%
4. Description of how there is 

significant influence
Shareholding Shareholding Shareholding Shareholding Shareholding Shareholding Shareholding 

5. Reason why the Joint 
Venture / Associate is not 
consolidated

– – – – – – –

6. Networth attributable to 
Shareholding as per latest 
audited Balance Sheet*

 125.17  4,511.98  127.86  223.98  76.66  0.44  2.33 

7. Profit / Loss for the year 
2017-18*
i. Considered in Consolidation  50.08  798.30  59.10  27.30  2.29  0.33  (0.04)

i.  Not Considered in 
Consolidation

– – – – – – –

# Figures based on Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company 
* Represents share of HPCL in Joint Venture / Associates

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Sd/-
Mukesh Kumar Surana
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN - 07464675 

Sd/-
J Ramaswamy
Director-Finance
DIN - 06627920

Sd/-
Shrikant M. Bhosekar
Company Secretary

Date : May 22, 2018
Place : New Delhi 
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Form AOC - 1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the Financial Statement of Subsidiaries / Associate Companies / Joint Ventures
Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures
Part ‘’B” (` Crores)

Name of Joint Ventures Aavantika 
Gas  Ltd.

Mangalore 
Refinery and 

Petrochemicals 
Ltd.#

HPCL 
Shaaporji 

Energy Pvt. 
Ltd.

Mumbai 
Aviation 

Fuel Farm 
Facilities 
Pvt. Ltd.

GSPL India 
Gasnet Ltd.

GSPL India 
Transco 

Ltd.

Ratnagiri 
Refinery & 

Petrochemical 
Ltd.

1. Latest audited Balance 
Sheet date

31/03/2018 31/03/2018 31/03/2018 31/03/2018 31/03/2018 31/03/2018 31/03/2018

2. Date on which the 
Associates or Joint 
Ventures was associated or 
acquired

07/06/2006 07/03/1988 15/10/2013 06/03/2014 13/10/2011 13/10/2011 22/09/2017

3. Shares of Joint Ventures 
/ Associate held by the 
Company on the year end
Nos.  2,95,48,663  29,71,53,556  2,00,00,000  4,18,88,750  4,25,72,128  4,19,10,000  2,50,00,000 
Amount of Investment in 
Joint Venture / Associate

 49.99  471.68  20.00  41.89  42.57  41.91  25.00 

Extend of Holding % 49.98% 16.96% 50.00% 25.00% 11.00% 11.00% 25.00%
4. Description of how there is 

significant influence
Shareholding Shareholding Shareholding Shareholding Shareholding Shareholding Shareholding 

5. Reason why the Joint 
Venture / Associate is not 
consolidated

– – – – – – –

6. Networth attributable to 
Shareholding as per latest 
audited Balance Sheet*

 84.47  1,735.08  18.82  56.80  43.30  42.69  20.30 

7. Profit / Loss for the year 
2017-18*
i. Considered in 
 Consolidation

 12.13  337.85  (0.14)  11.80  0.10  0.15  (4.70)

i.  Not Considered in 
Consolidation

– – – – – – –

# Figures based on Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company
* Represents share of HPCL in Joint Venture / Associates
^  Ujjwala Plus Foundation, was incorporated as not-for-profit joint venture company under Sec. 8 of Companies Act 2013 during 2017-18
1. Names of joint ventures or associates which are yet to commence operations.
 a) GSPL India Gasnet Ltd 
 b) GSPL India Transco Ltd 
 c) HPCL Shapoorji Energy Ltd
 d) Ratnagiri Refinery & Petrochemicals Ltd
2. Names of joint ventures or associates which have been liquidated or sold during the year.-NIL
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Sd/-
Mukesh Kumar Surana
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN - 07464675 
Sd/-
J Ramaswamy
Director-Finance
DIN - 06627920
Sd/-
Shrikant M. Bhosekar
Company Secretary

Date : May 22, 2018
Place : New Delhi 
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COMMENTS OF THE COMTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) READ WITH SECTION 
129(4) OF THE COMPNIES ACT, 2013 ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF HINDUSTAN PETROLEUM 
CORPORATION LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2018

The preparation of consolidated financial statements of Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited for the year ended 31 March, 2018 
in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the 
management of the company. The statutory auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 139(5) 
read with section 129(4) of the Act are responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under section 143 read with 
section 129(4) of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of 
the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 22 May 2018.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary audit under section 143(6)(a) read with 
section 129(4) of the Act of the consolidated financial statements of Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited for the year ended 31 
March 2018. We conducted a supplementary audit of the financial statements of (Annexure-I), but did not conduct supplementary 
audit of the financial statements of (Annexure-II) for the year ended on that date. Further, section 139(5) and 143(6)(b) of the Act are 
not applicable to (Annexure-III) being private entities incorporated in Foreign countries under the respective laws for appointment of 
their Statutory Auditor not for conduct of supplementary audit. Accordingly, C&AG has neither appointed the Statutory Auditors nor 
conducted the supplementary audit of these companies. This supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access 
to the working papers of the statutory auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel 
and a selective examination of some of the accounting records.

On the basis of my audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge which would give rise to any comment upon or supplement 
to statutory auditors’ report. 

For and on behalf of the 
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Sd/- 
Tanuja Mittal 

Principal Director of Commercial Audit & 
ex-officio Member Audit Board-II, Mumbai

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 26 July 2018
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Annexure I
Audit Conducted:

(A) Subsidiaries:
1. HPCL Biofuels Ltd. (HBL)
2. Prize Petroleum Company Ltd. (PPCL)

(B) Joint Ventures
1. Bhagyanagar Gas Ltd. (BGL)

2. Petronet MHB Ltd. (PMHBL)

3. Aavantika Gas Ltd. (AGL)

4. Mumbai Aviation Fuel Farming Facility Pvt. Ltd. (MAFFFL)

5. Petronet India Limited

6. HPCL Rajasthan Refinery Ltd. (HRRL)

7. Godavari Gas Pvt. Ltd. (GGPL)

(C) Associates
1. Mangalore Refinery and Petrochemicals Ltd. (MRPL)

2. GSPL India Gasnet Ltd. (GIGL)

3. GSPL India Transco Ltd. (GITL)

Annexure II
Audit not conducted:

(A) Subsidiaries: 
 Nil

(B) Joint Ventures
1. Ujjwala Plus Foundation

2. Ratnagiri Refinery Petrochemicals Limited (RRPCL)

(C) Associates
 Nil

Annexure III
Audit not applicable

(A) Subsidiaries: 
1. HPCL Middle East FZCO

(B) Joint Ventures
1. HPCL Mittal Energy Ltd. (HMEL)

2. Hindustan Colas Pvt. Ltd. (HINCOL)

3. South Asia LPG Co. Pvt. Ltd. (SALPG)

4. HPCL Shapoorji Energy Pvt. Ltd. (HSEL)

(C) Associates
 Nil
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Human Resource Accounting
HPCL considers human dimension as the key to organization’s success. Several initiatives for development of human resources to 
meet new challenges in the competitive business environment have gained momentum. HPCL recognizes the value of its human 
assets who are committed to achieve excellence in all spheres. The Human Resource Profile given below in table shows that HPCL has 
a mix of energetic youth and experienced seniors who harmonize the efforts to achieve the Corporation’s goals. 

Particulars
Age

Total
21-30 31-40 41-50 Above 50

No. of Employees 2,232 1,686 1,998 4,436 10,352
Management 2,156 1,386 1,013 1,514 6,069
Non- Management 76 300 985 2,922 4,283
Average Age 26 35 47 55 44

Accounting for Human Resource Assets

The Lev & Schwartz model is being used by our Company to compute the value of Human Resource Assets. The evaluation as on 31st 
March 2018 is based on the present value of future earnings of the employees on the following assumptions:

1. Employees’ compensation represented by direct & indirect benefits earned by them on cost to company basis.

2. Earnings up to the age of superannuation are considered on incremental basis taking the Corporation’s policies into 
consideration.

3. Such future earnings are discounted @ 7.88%.

(` / Crores)

Value of Human Resources 2017-18 2016-17

Management Employees 25,393 27,003

Non-management Employees 6,637 7,878

32,030 34,881

Human Assets vis-à-vis Total Assets

Value of Human Assets 32,030 34,881

Net Assets 33,231 40,076

Investments 11,105 10,919

76,366 85,876

Employee Cost 2,859 2,946

Net	Profit	Before	Tax	(PBT)	 9,202 9,021

Ratios (in %) 

Employee Cost to Human Resource 8.92 8.45

Human	Resource	to	Total	Resource 41.94 40.62

PBT	to	Human	Resource 28.73 25.86
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Joint Venture Companies as per Ind AS
Sr. 
No. Name of the Company Date of 

Incorporation
Shareholding  

as on 31st March 2018 Nature of Operations

1. HPCL-Mittal Energy Ltd. 13.12.2000 HPCL 

Mittal Investments

S.A.R.L. 

Indian Financial 

Institutions

48.99%

48.99%

2.02%

Refining of crude oil and manufacturing 
of petroleum products.

2. Hindustan Colas Pvt Ltd. 17.07.1995 HPCL 

Colasie SA

50.00%

50.00%

Manufacture and marketing of Bitumen 
Emulsions & Modified Bitumen.

3. South Asia LPG Company 
Pvt Ltd.

16.11.1999 HPCL 

Total Holding India

50.00%

50.00%

Storage of LPG in underground cavern 
and associated receiving and dispatch 
facilities at Visakhapatnam.

4. Petronet India Ltd. 26.05.1997 HPCL 

BPCL

IOCL

Financial /

Strategic

Investors 

16.00%

16.00%

18.00%

50.00%

To act as nodal agency for developing 
identified and prioritized petroleum 
product pipelines in the country. The 
company is in the process of closure.

5. Petronet MHB Ltd. 31.07.1998 HPCL 

ONGC 

Financial /

Strategic 

Investors 

 32.72%

32.72%

34.56%

Operation and maintenance of 
petroleum product pipeline between 
Mangalore-Hassan-Bangalore.

6. Bhagyanagar Gas Ltd. 22.08.2003 HPCL 

GAIL 

Kakinada Seaports 
Limited

49.97%

49.97%

0.06%

Distribution and marketing of CNG 
and Auto LPG in the state of Andhra 
Pradesh/ Telangana.

7. Aavantika Gas Ltd. 07.06.2006 HPCL 

GAIL 

Financial 

Institutions

49.98%

49.98%

0.04%

Distribution and marketing of CNG in 
the state of Madhya Pradesh.

8. HPCL Shapoorji Energy 
Pvt Ltd.

15.10.2013 HPCL

SP Ports Pvt Limited

50.00%

50.00%

To set up and operate an LNG Re-
gasification Terminal at the greenfield 
port at Chhara (Gujarat)

9. Mumbai Aviation Fuel 
Farm Facility Pvt Ltd.

26.02.2010 HPCL

IOCL

BPCL

Mumbai International 
Airport Pvt Limited

25.00%

25.00%

25.00%

25.00%

To design, develop, construct and 
operate the aviation fuel facility at 
Chhatrapati Shivaji International 
Airport, Mumbai
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Sr. 
No. Name of the Company Date of 

Incorporation
Shareholding  

as on 31st March 2018 Nature of Operations

10. Godavari Gas Pvt Ltd. 27.09.2016 APGDC

HPCL

74.00%

26.00%

Distribution and marketing of CNG 
in East Godavari and West Godavari 
Districts of Andhra Pradesh.

11. Ratnagiri Refinery and 
Petrochemicals Ltd

22.09.2017 IOCL

BPCL

HPCL

50.00%

25.00%

25.00%

To set up a refinery and petrochemical 
complex of 60 MMTPA (Approx..) along 
the west coast of India in the State of 
Maharashtra.

12. HPCL Rajasthan Refinery 
Ltd

18.09.2013 HPCL

Govt. of Rajasthan

74.00%

26.00%

To set up a 9 MMTPA capacity 
Greenfield refinery cum petrochemical 
complex in the State of Rajasthan.

13. CREDA-HPCL Biofuel Ltd

(Dissolved w.e.f. 8th 
March, 2018)

14.10.2008 HPCL

CREDA

74.00%

26.00%

Company dissolved w.e.f. 08.03.2018 
and name has been struck off from 
Register of Companies.

Associate Companies as per Ind AS
Sr. 
No. Name of the Company Date of 

Incorporation
Shareholding  

as on 31st March 2018 Nature of Operations

1. Mangalore Refinery & 
Petrochemicals Ltd.

07.03.1988 ONGC 

HPCL 

PUBLIC 

71.63%

16.96%

11.41%

Refining of crude oil and manufacturing 
of petroleum products.

2. GSPL India Gasnet Ltd. 13.10.2011 GSPL

HPCL

IOCL

BPCL

52.00%

11.00%

26.00%

11.00%

To design, construct, develop, operate 
and maintain cross country Natural 
Gas Pipelines from Mehsana (Gujarat) 
to Bhatinda (Punjab) and Bhatinda 
(Punjab) to Srinagar (Jammu & 
Kashmir).

3. GSPL India Transco Ltd. 13.10.2011 GSPL

HPCL

IOCL

BPCL

52.00%

11.00%

26.00%

11.00%

To design, construct, develop, operate 
and maintain cross country Natural 
Gas Pipelines from Mallavarm (Andhra 
Pradesh) to Bhilwara (Rajasthan).
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Subsidiary Companies as per Ind AS

Sr. 
No. Name of the Company Date of 

Incorporation
Shareholding  

as on 31st March 2018 Nature of Operations

1. Prize Petroleum Co Ltd 28.10.1998 HPCL 100.00% Exploration and Production (E&P) 
of Hydrocarbons and services for 
management of E&P blocks.

2. HPCL Biofuels Ltd 16.10.2009 HPCL 100.00% Operates two integrated sugar-
ethanol-cogen plants at Sugauli and 
Lauriya in East Champaran and West 
Champaran Districts respectively in the 
State of Bihar.

3. HPCL Middle East FZCO 11.02.2018 HPCL 100% Trading in Lubricants & Grease, 
Petrochemicals and Refined Oil 
Products.

Not for Profit Private Company Limited by Guarantee without 
share Capital

Sr. 
No. Name of the Company Date of 

Incorporation
Shareholding  

as on 31st March 2018 Nature of Operations

1. Ujjwala Plus Foundation

(Not for profit, Section 8 
Company)

21.07.2017 IOCL

BPCL

HPCL

(Company Limited by 
Guarantee without 
share capital- 
Represents Fund 
Contribution Ratio)

50.00%

25.00%

25.00%

To provide Liquid Petroleum Gas (LPG) 
connections to the women from the 
poor households and economically 
weaker section of the Society not 
covered under “Pradhan Mantri 
Ujjwala Yojana” (“PMUY”) of the Govt. 
of India and to extend financial support 
for initial cost towards LPG connections 
and such assistance and support as 
may be needed to accomplish this 
noble social cause.
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1. Company’s Philosophy on Code of Governance:

 HPCL believes in good Corporate Governance practices, 
ethics, fairness, professionalism and accountability to 
enhance stakeholder’s value and interest on sustainable 
basis and to build an environment of trust and confidence 
of its stakeholders. At HPCL, Corporate Governance is to 
follow a systematic processes, policies, rules, regulations 
and laws by which companies are directed, controlled 
and administered by the management in meeting the 
stakeholder’s aspirations and societal expectations.

 HPCL lays special emphasis on conducting its affairs 
within the framework of policies, internal and external 
regulations, in a transparent manner. Being a Government 
Company, its activities are subject to review by several 
external authorities like the Comptroller & Auditor General 
of India (CAG), the Central Vigilance Commission (CVC), 
and Parliamentary Committees etc.

 Keeping in view the above philosophy, the Corporate 
Governance at HPCL is based on the following main 
principles & practices.

• Proper composition of the Board of Directors, size, 
varied experience and commitment to discharge 
their responsibilities.

• Well-developed internal control, systems and 
processes, risk management and financial reporting.

• Full adherence and compliances of laws, rules and 
regulations.

• Timely and balanced disclosures of all material 
information on operational and financial matters to 
the Stakeholders.

• Clearly defined management Performance and 
accountability.

• Enhanced accuracy and transparency in business 
operations, performance and financial position.

 In compliance with Regulation 34 (3) & 53 (f ) read with 
Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as mandated by the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) applicable 
on account of Uniform Listing Agreement executed with 
Stock Exchanges as well as notification on Corporate 
Governance for Public Sector Enterprises issued by the 
Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), the Corporate 
Governance Disclosures are as under:

2. disclosures:

 BoARd of dIReCtoRs:

2.1 Composition of Board of Directors as on 31.03.2018

Category & Names of Directors

Whole Time Directors including C & MD
Shri Mukesh Kumar Surana
Shri Pushp Kumar Joshi
Shri J Ramaswamy
Shri S Jeyakrishnan
Shri Vinod S Shenoy

05

Non-Official Government Directors (Ex-Officio) *
Shri Sandeep Poundrik
Ms Sushma Taishete

02

Independent Directors **
Shri Ram Niwas Jain
Smt. Asifa Khan
Shri G V Krishna
Dr. Trilok Nath Singh
Shri Amar Sinha
Shri Siraj Hussain

06

* Ms. Urvashi Sadhwani has ceased to be Government 
Nominee Director of the Corporation effective 
November 24, 2017.

* Ms. Sushma Taishete was appointed as Government 
Nominee Director on the Board our Corporation 
effective December 05, 2017. However, she has 
ceased to be Director of the Corporation effective 
May 07, 2018.

 Shri Subhash Kumar, was nominated as Part Time 
Director by Government of India as representative of 
ONGC, effective May 22, 2018.

** S/Shri Amar Sinha & Siraj Hussain were appointed 
as Independent Directors on the Board of our 
Corporation effective September 21, 2017

2.2 Board Meetings:

 Thirteen Board Meetings were held during the Financial 
Year 2017-2018, on the following dates:

17.04.2017 26.05.2017 23.06.2017
18.07.2017 04.08.2017 08.09.2017
13.10.2017 09.11.2017 11.12.2017
14.12.2017 09.02.2018 16.02.2018
27.03.2018

Corporate governance
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2.3 Particulars of Directors including their attendance at the Board/Shareholder’s Meeting

Names of Directors Academic 
Qualification

No. of 
Board 

Meeting(s) 
held

No of 
Board 

Meeting(s) 
attended

Attendance 
at the last 

AGM

Details of Directorship 
in other companies

Membership held in 
Committees as specified in 
Regulation 26 of the SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015

WHOLE TIME DIRECTORS
Shri Mukesh 
Kumar Surana
(DIN07464675)

B.E. 
(Mechanical), 
Masters in 
Financial 
Management

13 13 Yes Public Limited Companies
1. HPCL Mittal Energy Limited
2. HPCL Rajasthan Refinery 

Limited
3. Prize Petroleum Company 

Limited
Private Limited Companies
1. South Asia LPG Company 

Pvt. Limited

Nil

Shri Pushp 
Kumar Joshi
(DIN05323634)

B.A., LLB, PG 
(PM&IR), XLRI 
Jamshedpur

13 13 Yes Public Limited Companies
1. HPCL Rajasthan Refinery 

Limited
2. HPCL Biofuels Limited
3. Prize Petroleum Co. Limited
Private Limited Companies
1. Hindustan Colas Pvt. Limited
2. HPCL Shapoorji Energy Pvt. 

Limited

Chairman, Audit 
Committee
1. Prize Petroleum 

Company Limited
2. HPCL Biofuels Limited

Shri J 
Ramaswamy
(DIN06627920)

FCA 13 13 Yes Public Limited Companies
1. HPCL Mittal Energy Limited
2. HPCL Rajasthan Refinery 

Limited
3. HPCL Biofuels Limited
4. HPCL Mittal Pipelines Limited
5. Prize Petroleum Company 

Limited
Private Limited Companies
1. South Asia LPG Company 

Pvt. Limited
2. Hindustan Colas Pvt. Limited
3. HPCL Shapoorji Energy Pvt. 

Limited

Member, Audit Committee
1. Hindustan Petroleum 

Corporation Limited
2. HPCL Biofuels Limited
3. HPCL Mittal Energy 

Limited
4. HPCL Mittal Pipelines 

Limited
5. Prize Petroleum 

Company Limited
Member, Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee
1. Hindustan Petroleum 

Corporation Limited

Shri S 
Jeyakrishnan
(DIN07234397)

B.A. 13 12 Yes Private Limited Companies
1. Hindustan Colas Pvt. Limited

Nil

Shri Vinod S 
Shenoy
(DIN07632981)

B.E. (Chemical) 13 13 Yes Public Limited Companies
1. Mangalore Refinery and 

Petrochemicals Limited
2. HPCL Mittal Energy Limited
3. HPCL Rajasthan Refinery 

Limited
4. Prize Petroleum Co Limited
5. Ratnagiri Refinery and 

Petrochemicals Limited

Member, Audit Committee
1. Mangalore Refinery and 

Petrochemicals Limited
2. Prize Petroleum 

Company Limited
Member, Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee
1. Mangalore Refinery and 

Petrochemicals Limited
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Names of Directors Academic 
Qualification

No. of 
Board 

Meeting(s) 
held

No of 
Board 

Meeting(s) 
attended

Attendance 
at the last 

AGM

Details of Directorship 
in other companies

Membership held in 
Committees as specified in 
Regulation 26 of the SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015

NON-EXECUTIVE GOVERNMENT NOMINEE DIRECTORS
Shri Sandeep 
Poundrik 
(DIN01865958)

B.E. (Electrical) 
IAS

13 10 No Public Limited Companies
1. Engineers India Limited

Nil

Ms. Sushma 
Taishete *
(DIN03585278)

M.Sc. in 
Microbiology, 
Diploma in Clinical 
Analysis, IAS

05 05 N.A. Nil Nil

Ms. Urvashi 
Sadhwani ** 
(DIN03487195)

Post Graduate in 
Business Economics, 
M.Phil Indian 
Economic Service

08 08 Yes Nil Nil

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:
Shri Ram Niwas 
Jain
(DIN00671720)

B.E. (Mechanical) 13 12 Yes Public Limited Companies
1. Universal Sompo General 

Insurance Co. Limited
2. Visa Realty Limited
Private Limited Companies
1. B. P. Engineers Pvt. Limited

Chairman, Audit Committee
1. Hindustan Petroleum 

Corporation Limited
2. Visa Realty Limited
Member, Audit Committee
1. Universal Sompo General 

Insurance Company 
Limited

Smt. Asifa Khan
(DIN07730681)

M.A. (English 
Literature)

13 12 No Nil Member, Stakeholders’ 
Relationship Committee
1. Hindustan Petroleum 

Corporation Limited
Shri G V Krishna
(DIN01640784)

B.Com, FCA 13 09 Yes Public Limited Companies
1. Jnana Bharathi Prakashana 

Limited
Private Limited Companies
1. Pushti Refineriers Pvt. Limited
2. Harihara Developers & 

Constructions Pvt. Limited

Member, Audit 
Committee
1. Hindustan Petroleum 

Corporation Limited

Dr. Trilok Nath 
Singh
(DIN07767209)

Ph.D (IIT, BHU) 13 10 Yes Nil Chairman, Stakeholders’ 
Relationship Committee
1. Hindustan Petroleum 

Corporation Limited
Shri Amar Sinha 
***
(DIN07915597)

IFS 07 07 N.A. Public Limited Companies
1. Delhi Gymkhana Club 

Limited

Nil

Shri Siraj Hussain 
***
(DIN05346215)

IAS 07 06 N.A. Public Limited Companies
1. Trinity General Insurance 

Company Limited
2. National E-Repository Limited

Nil

CREDA – HPCL Bio Fuel Limited, a Subsidiary Company dissolved with effect from March 08, 2018 & name was struck off from ROC 
records.  At the time of strike off, S/Shri Pushp Kumar Joshi & J Ramaswamy, were Directors on the Board.
* Appointed as Government Nominee Director on the Board of HPCL effective December 05, 2017
** Ceased to be Government Nominee Director on the Board of HPCL effective November 24, 2017
*** Appointed as Independent Directors on the Board of HPCL effective September 21, 2017



Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited

264

2.4 shareholding of non-executive directors:

 None of the Non-Executive Directors are holding any 
equity shares or Convertible Instruments in the Company.

2.5 Web link where details of familiarization programs 
imparted to Independent Directors:

 http://www.hindustanpetroleum.com/stock_exchange2017

2.6 pRofILe of dIReCtoRs:

 Shri Mukesh Kumar Surana (DIN 07464675)

 Shri Mukesh Kumar Surana is a Chairman & Managing 
Director of the Corporation effective April 01, 2016. 
Prior to this, he served as Chief Executive Officer, Prize 
Petroleum Company Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary 
and upstream arm of HPCL since September 2012.

 A Mechanical Engineer with Master’s Degree in Financial 
Management, Mr. Surana joined HPCL in the year 1982. 
During his career spanning over 36 years in Petroleum 
Industry, Mr. Surana has handled a wide range of 
responsibilities including leadership positions in Refineries, 
Corporate, Information Systems and upstream business 
of HPCL. He has been closely involved in Strategy 
Formulation, Business Process Re-engineering, Major 
Projects Implementation, Refinery Operations, Corporation 
wide ERP Implementation, Acquisition and Management 
of upstream assets etc.

 Mr. Surana has vast experience in domestic and international 
Oil & Gas business and is known for his business acumen, 
innovative ideas and people-centric leadership. In his 
various roles, he has been able to empower teams to 
perform and deliver exceptional results through positive 
engagement and shared vision. He was a Core Team 
Member for Corporate wide ERP Implementation in HPCL 
which now forms the backbone of all business transactions 
at HPCL.

 A certified Competency Assessor and a Project 
Management Professional, Mr. Surana has also been 
actively associated with various important forums in Oil & 
Gas Sector.

 Shri Pushp Kumar Joshi (DIN 05323634)

 Shri Pushp Kumar Joshi is a Director – Human Resources of 
the Corporation effective August 01, 2012. Prior to this, he 
was holding key portfolios in Human Resources functions 
viz. Executive Director – HRD and Head – HR of Marketing 
Division.

 A Bachelor of Law and an alumnus of XLRI, Jamshedpur, 
Shri Pushp Kumar Joshi joined HPCL in 1986. Since then 
he has held various key positions in Human Resources 
and Industrial Relations functions in HQO, Marketing and 
Refineries divisions of HPCL.

 As Director – HR, Shri Joshi is presently responsible for 
overseeing the design and deployment of key Human 
Resource policies and strategies while leading Human 
Resources practices that are employee oriented and aim at 
building high performance culture. He is also responsible 
for providing key outlook to the management on strategic 
HR plans, employee development, labour relations apart 
from others.

 Spearheading HR practices with strong business focus 
and contemporary approaches – few hallmarks of his 
innovation and leadership have been Project Akshay – 
the leadership development programme, Productivity 
Improvement Initiatives, Introduction of Internal Customer 
care by leveraging IT Platform, Conceptualization and 
Rollout of Technical & Behaviour Training Programs, 
Business Process Reengineering exercise, Implementation 
of JDE (HR), Introduction of Health Management System, 
HR Green Credit and also pioneering & driving numerous 
other HR initiatives.

 Shri J Ramaswamy (DIN 06627920)

 Shri J Ramaswamy is a Director – Finance of the Corporation 
effective October 01, 2015. He is also the Chief Financial 
Officer (CFO) of the Company. Prior to his taking over 
as Director – Finance & as CFO, Mr. Ramaswamy was 
Executive Director – Corporate Finance of HPCL for over 2 
years.

 A fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India (ICAI), Mr. Ramaswamy brings with him rich 
experience of over 3 decades in handling various 
challenging assignments in HPCL in the field of Corporate 
Finance, Marketing Finance, SBU Commercial, C & MD’s 
Office, Internal Audit, Vigilance, Systems & Procedure and 
Refinery Finance.

 Mr. Ramaswamy has expertise in Financial Management, 
and is known for strengthening financial discipline, cost 
consciousness and Commercial acumen in the Corporation, 
which is of immense benefit to the organization. He is 
also credited with effective treasury management in 
raising External Commercial Borrowing, Non-Convertible 
Debentures issue and various other types of financial 
instruments at a very competitive interest rate as compared 
with the Oil Industry.
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 He has various academic distinctions to his credit, and 
is a key technical speaker at in-house capability building 
seminars and workshops.

 Shri S Jeyakrishnan – (DIN 07234397)

 Shri S Jeyakrishnan is Director – Marketing of the 
Corporation effective November 01, 2016. Prior to this, he 
was Executive Director – (Retail) of HPCL.

 An alumini of Madras University, Mr. S Jeyakrishnan joined 
HPCL in 1981 and has a rich and varied experience across 
the spectrum of Petroleum Marketing. He is known for 
his participative leadership style and believes in leading 
his teams from the front, consistently delivering high 
performance despite all odd situation.

 During a career spanning over 36 years, he has led large 
teams in the Marketing functions and held Leadership 
positions including General Manager – East Zone, 
Executive Director – Business Development & Corporate 
Affairs, Executive Director – Direct Sales and Executive 
Director – Retail. He also played a Key Role in several 
transformational initiatives undertaken in HPCL.

 During his tenure across the various marketing SBUs, HPCL 
became India’s largest lubricant marketer, augmented 
infrastructure, developed robust process and undertook 
several pioneering customer centric initiatives which 
enhanced productivity and profitability and established 
HPCL as the preferred brand.

 Mr. S Jeyakrishnan has been an active participant in 
various industry forums and conferences both at national 
and international levels. He also attended the Advanced 
Management Program at Cambridge (UK) and the 
Authentic Leadership Programm of the Harvard Business 
School.

 Shri Vinod S Shenoy – (DIN – 07632981)

 Shri Vinod S Shenoy is Director – Refineries of the 
Corporation effective November 01, 2016. Prior to this, 
he was the General Manager – Refinery Coordination of 
HPCL.

 A Bachelor in Chemical Engineering from IIT Bombay, Shri 
Vinod Shenoy started his career with HPCL in June 1985. 
During his career spanning over 33 years, Shri Shenoy 
has held various positions in the Refinery Divisions and 
Corporate Departments of HPCL and has wide exposure 
to the Petroleum Industry.

 Intelligent refinery production strategy to ensure 
profitability, vision from operational excellence and 

capacity expansion of refineries at Mumbai and Visakh 
with bottom up upgradation facilities meeting Euro VI fuel 
specifications are the task ahead.

 Shri Sandeep Poundrik – (DIN 01865958)

 Shri Saneep Poundrik is Part-Time Government Nominee 
Director (Ex-Officio) on the Board of HPCL effective 
October 16, 2014.

 Mr. Sandeep Poundrik, IAS is presently posted as 
Joint Secretary (Refineries), Ministry of Petroleum & 
Natural Gas, Government of India, New Delhi. As Joint 
Secretary (Refineries), Mr. Sandeep Poundrik is looking 
after the matters related to refineries, Auto Fuel Policy, 
Petrochemicals, Import/Export of crude oil and other 
petroleum products; pricing of petroleum products; Bio 
Fuels, Renewable energy and conservation, Integrated 
Energy Policy; Climate Change & National Clean Energy 
Policy.

 Before joining Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Gas, Shri 
Poundrik has served State Government of Bihar at various 
senior level assignments including Secretary - Energy, 
C & MD - Bihar State Power Holding Company, Secretary 
- Road Construction Department, MD - Infrastructure 
Development Authority, MD - Bihar Industrial Area 
Development Authority and Collector & District Magistrate, 
Gaya, Begusarai, Buxar.

 Mr. Poundrik’s academic background includes Rajasthan 
University Gold Metal in B.E. (Electrical) and Masters in 
Public Administration in International Development from 
Harvard University. His publications includes “Group 
Disaster Risk Financing: Case studies” & “Improving the 
resilience of livelihoods to natural disaster” published by 
the World Bank and “Leadership and Institutional Change 
in the Public Provision of Transport Infrastructure” “An 
analysis of India’s Bihar” in the Journal of Development 
Studies.

 Ms. Sushma Taishete (Rath) (DIN – 03585278) – From 
December 05, 2017

 Ms. Sushma Taishete (Rath), was appointed as a 
Government Nominee Director (Ex-Officio) on the HPCL 
Board effective December 05, 2017.

 Ms. Sushma Taishete (Rath) is a Government Nominee 
Director of our Company. She is M. Sc. In Microbiology, 
Haffkine Institute, Mumbai, Diploma in Clinical Analysis, 
Sophia College, Mumbai and Civil Service Batch, 1989. She 
was posted as Joint Secretary in the Ministry of Petroleum 
and Natural Gas, Government of India. She has worked as 
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Director (Marketing), Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Gas, 
Under Secretary in the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare 
and as Principal Administrative officer and Adviser (Gender 
Issues) at National Health Systems Resource Centre. She has 
Published a number of Articles on adverse child-sex ratio 
in the Country & on Health Sector in reputed magazines 
i.e. Economic & Political weekly & Indian Journal of Medical 
Microbiology,etc.

 Ms. Urvashi Sadhwani (DIN 03487195) – Upto 
November 24, 2017

 Ms. Urvashi Sadhwani has ceased to be Government 
Nominee Director (Ex-Officio) on the Board of HPCL 
effective November 24, 2017.

 Ms. Urvashi Sadhwani is a Post Graduate in Business 
Economics and M. Phil from Delhi University. Before 
joining the Petroleum Ministry as Senior Adviser, she was 
Economic Adviser in the Ministry of Railways.

 An alumnus of Lady Shri Ram College, Delhi University, 
Ms. Urvashi Sadhwani began her career with teaching 
Mathematics, Statistics and Indian Economics at same 
college. She is a member of the 1982 batch of the Indian 
Economic Service. During her career trajectory spanning 
over 33 years, she has handled key portfolios involving 
major responsibilities, across various Ministries, including 
inter-alia, Health, Tribal Affairs, Tourism, Industries (in the 
erstwhile Bureau of Industrial Costs and Prices) and 2 stints 
– Transport and Project Appraisal – at the former Planning 
Commission.

 Shri Ram Niwas Jain – (DIN 00671720)

 Shri Ram Niwas Jain is an Independent Director on the 
Board of HPCL effective November 20, 2015.

 Mr. Jain is B.E.(Mechanical) from Motilal Nehru Regional 
Engineering College, Allahabad. He is the Managing 
Director of the M/s.B.P. Engineers Pvt. Ltd., an ancillary to 
Hindustan Aeronautics Ltd., Lucknow Division, Lucknow, 
engaged in manufacturing of aeronautical components 
mainly for fighter aircrafts, indigenization work for Indian 
Airforce and various Divisions of Hindustan Aeronautics 
Ltd. for more than 30 years. M/s. B.P. Engineers Pvt. Ltd., 
has been awarded “Excellence in Aerospace Indigenization” 
from SAITI. He was Independent Director on the Board of 
two nationalized banks, Allahabad Bank and UCO Bank. 
He is an Independent Director in Universal Sompo General 
Insurance Co. Ltd. He is president of Entrepreneurs’ 
Association of Scooters India Ancillary Units, Amausi, 

Lucknow. Mr. Jain is doing a lot of social work in the field of 
Leprosy, welfare and rehabilitation of Tribal children.

 Smt. Asifa Khan – (DIN 07730681)

 Smt. Asifa Khan is an Independent Director on the Board of 
HPCL effective February 13, 2017.

 A graduate in English Literature, Smt. Asifa Khan has a 
vast experience in Print & Electronic media journalism, 
representation and analysis. She holds deep interest in 
social welfare and upliftment of the weaker sections of the 
Society.

 Shri G V Krishna – (DIN 01640784)

 Shri G V Krishna is an Independent Director on the Board 
of HPCL effective February 13, 2017.

 Shri G V Krishna is a Chartered Accountant, apart from 
being a Bachelor of Commerce from Bangalore University. 
He completed his Chartered Accountancy in 1988 and 
has been in practice since then. Shri G V Krishna is advisor 
to major Industrial Group in Karnataka as a Strategic 
and Business Advisor and also counsels other Chartered 
Accountants in technical areas of practice, including in 
Banking, Tax and Regulatory matters. Exposed extensively 
to the Rural and Co-operative Sector, he has also been an 
Independent Director on the Karnataka Apex Cooperative 
Bank. He has experience in Statutory, Internal and Bank 
Audits covering over 3 decades and includes many large 
Private organizations and Public Sector Banking entities. 
Shri G V Krishna is also a Founder Trustee of the Forward 
Foundation which focuses on sustainable environment and 
Solid Waste Management issues. A regular speaker across 
professional forums, Shri G V Krishna also takes special 
interest in Counselling and motivating Rural youth on 
Entrepreneurship and Self-Employment avenues.

 Dr. Trilok Nath Singh – (DIN 07767209)

 Dr. T N Singh is an Independent Director on the Board of 
HPCL effective March 20, 2017

 Dr. T N Singh is presently a Vice Chancellor, Mahatma 
Gandhi Kashi Vidyapith, Varanasi. Prior to this, he was  
Geoscience Chair Professor in IIT, Bombay. He has made 
innovative and substantial contribution in several fields of 
Geosciences. He is well known in the area of Engineering 
Geology, Rock mechanics on account of his pioneer 
work in Rock-Mechanics and Petrophysics, Established of 
Rock Indices, Triaxial and Post Failure Behaviour of Rocks, 
Dynamic and Static Properties of Rocks, CO2 Sinking, 
Natural Hazard and Climate Change etc.
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 Prof. Singh’s noteworthy contribution in the area of ground 
vibration due to blasting and slope stability has earned him 
recognition between the earth scientists and engineers. He 
has made prominent contribution to the design of blast 
for improved fragmentation. He has established Equivalent 
Material Modelling technique for simulating various Geo-
mining problems to resolve some of the outstanding 
problem for optimum resource recovery.

 He has received several recognitions like National 
Geoscience Award, First P N Bose Mineral Award, S Rakshit 
Rock Mechanics Award, Prof. Gopal Rangan Award and 
many more. He has published more than 300 Research 
Papers in various journals and 112 Conference Papers. Dr. 
Singh edited 12 books published by reputed publishers 
from Indian and abroad. He is a Member of various 
Government Committee set up by the Department of 
Science & Technology, BARC, Ministry of Commerce, 
Ministry of Railways etc.

 Shri Amar Sinha – (DIN 07915597) (From September 
21, 2017)

 Shri Amar Sinha has been appointed as Independent 
Director on the Board of HPCL effective September 21, 
2017.

 Shri Amar Sinha joined the Indian Foreign Service in 1982. 
He is an Economics Graduate from Patna University and 
has worked with the State Bank of India for over two years 
before joining the Indian Foreign Service.

 During his diplomatic career, he has served in various 
capacities in Algiers (1983-87), Buenos Aires (1987-90), 
in the Ministry of External Affairs as Private Secretary to 
Minister of State for External Affairs, Chemicals & Fertilizers, 
Parliamentary Affairs and Department of Electronics and 
Ocean Development from July 1991 to May 1996. He then 
served as Director (BSM) in Ministry of External Affairs from 
June 1996 to July 1997 and as OSD to Ministry of State for 
External Affairs from July 1997 to April 1998.

 He also held diplomatic positions in Indian Missions in 
Washington DC (1998-2001) Jakarta (2001-2004) and 
Brussels (2004-2007) before being appointed India’s 
Ambassador to Tajikistan (April 2007 to July 2010).

 During 2010-2013, he was on deputation to the Ministry 
of Commerce and Industry and served as Joint Secretary 
in the Trade Policy Division and the RMTR Division 
handling WTO related matters and issues relating to 
multilateral economic negotiations. He also oversaw 

India’s participation in multilateral such as UNCTAD, APTA, 
BIMSTEC, G20, IBSA, BRICS etc.

 After completion of his assignment in Kabul successfully as 
Ambassador of India to Afganistan (June 2013 to January 
2016), he has assumed the charge of the post of Secretary 
(Economic Relations) in the Ministry of External Affairs, 
New Delhi, on January 15, 2016. His charge included 
Development of Partnership in Africa and countries in the 
Gulf and West Asia.

 Shri Siraj Hussain (DIN 05346215) – (From September 
21, 2017)

 Mr. Siraj Hussain has been appointed as Independent 
Director on the Board of HPCL effective September 21, 
2017.

 Mr. Siraj Hussain joined the IAS in 1979 and was allotted 
Uttar Pradesh Cadre. He served the Government of 
Uttar Pradesh in various capacities including District 
Magistrate, Hardoi; Managing Director, UP State Industrial 
Development Corporation; Managing Director, UP Agro 
Industries Corporation and Registrar of Cooperative 
Societies. He was posted in the State Secretariat in the 
Departments of Energy, Education and Panchayati Raj. He 
was also Secretary to Chief Minister of UP.

 He has served the Government of India in various capacities 
including Deputy Managing Director, National Cooperative 
Development Corporation; Joint Secretary in Department 
of Food and Public Distribution and Chairman-cum-
Managing Director of Food Corporation of India (FCI). 
From 2000 to 2005 he served as Vice-Chancellor of Jamia 
Hamdard University in New Delhi.

 In the Department of Food & Public Distribution, he 
formulated the scheme for attracting investment from 
private sector in warehousing sector, popularly known 
as Private Entrepreneurs Guarantee Scheme (PEG) 2010. 
From May 2013 to February 2015, he served as Secretary 
to Government of India, in the Ministry of Food Processing 
Industries (MoFPI).

 He was posted as Secretary, Agriculture, Co-operation & 
Farmers Welfare in February, 2015. The scheme of for setting 
up of National Agriculture Market by creating an electronic 
platform for e-trading of agricultural commodities was 
formulated under his supervision. The PM Fasal Bima Yojna 
was also prepared under his guidance.

 In January 2016, he was awarded Doctorate in Philosophy 
(honoris causa) by Acharya NG Ranga Agricultural 
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University, Andhra Pradesh in recognition of his 
contributions for advancement of Agriculture.

 He retired from Govt service in January 2016. He is 
presently a Visiting Senior Fellow with ICRIER.

2.7 Independent dIReCtoRs:

 As provided under Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 
2013 and also as per Regulation 25(3) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, separate meeting of Independent Directors was held. 
The Corporation is nominating Independent Directors to 
the Familiarization Program and other Corporate Program 
from time to time. The details of familiarization programs 
provided to the Independent Directors are hosted on the 
website of the Company

 Performance Evaluation criteria for Independent 
Directors

 Being a Government Company, the appointment of 
all Directors including Independent Directors and their 
performance evaluation is being done by the Government 
of India.

3.0 AudIt CommIttee:

 The Audit Committee comprises of Independent Directors 
and Whole Time Director, as follows. The Composition of 
Audit Committee as on 31.03.2018 was as follows:

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Director Designation Type of Director

1. Shri Ram Niwas Jain Chairman Independent Director

2. Shri G V Krishna Member Independent Director

3. Shri J Ramaswamy Member Whole Time Director

 The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as 
provided under the Companies Act, 2013, Regulation 18 (3) 
of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 read with Schedule II of Part C (A) & 
Part C (B) of the said regulation and other applicable DPE 
guidelines on Corporate Governance applicable to Central 
Public Sector Enterprises (CPSE).

 The Committee at the Meeting held on May 22, 2018 
reviewed the Financial Statements for the Financial Year 
2017-2018 before the said Financial Statement were 
adopted by the Board.

 Dates of Audit Committee Meetings held during 
2017-2018:

25.05.2017 26.05.2017 11.07.2017 04.08.2017

07.09.2017 09.11.2017 09.02.2018 28.02.2018

27.03.2018

 Attendance at the Audit Committee Meeting during 
2017-2018:

Name of the Director No. of 
Meetings 

Held

No. of 
Meetings 
attended

% of 
Attendance

Shri Ram Niwas Jain 09 09 100%

Shri G V Krishna 09 08 89%

Shri J Ramaswamy 09 09 100%

Dr T N Singh * 01 01 100%

 *  Appointed as Member of the Audit Committee for the 
meeting held on 09.11.2017

4.0 nomInAtIon And RemuneRAtIon CommIttee:

 The Board has constituted the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee to look into various aspects 
of including Remuneration as well as Compensation and 
Benefits for the employees. The terms of reference of 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as prescribed 
under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 except 
to the extent of exemptions granted to Government 
Companies.

 Since the remuneration of the Whole Time Functional 
Directors and other officers is fixed by the Government of 
India, HPCL did not feel the need for setting up a separate 
Remuneration Committee in view of the fact that the 
Company is a Government Company as per Section 2(45) 
of the Companies Act, 2013.

 The Composition of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee as on 31.03.2018 was as follows:

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Director Designation Type of Director

1. Shri Ram Niwas Jain Chairman Independent Director

2. Shri G V Krishna Member Independent Director

3. Dr. T N Singh Member Independent Director

4. Shri Pushp Kumar 
Joshi

Permanent 
Invitee

Whole Time Director
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 Dates of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
Meeting(s) held during 2017-2018:

26.05.2017 29.08.2017

 Attendance at the Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee Meeting during 2017-2018:

Name of the Director No. of 
Meetings 

Held

No. of 
Meetings 
attended

% of 
Attendance

Shri Ram Niwas Jain 02 02 100%
Shri G V Krishna 02 02 100%
Dr. T N Singh 02 01 50%
Shri Pushp Kumar Joshi 02 02 100%

5.0 RIsK mAnAgement CommIttee:

 The Board has constituted the Risk Management 
Steering Committee, to review the Risk Management and 
minimization procedure in the Corporation.

 The Composition of Risk Management Committee as on 
31.03.2018 was as follows:

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Director Designation Type of Director

1. Shri Mukesh Kumar 
Surana

Chairman Chairman & 
Managing Director

2. Shri Pushp Kumar 
Joshi

Member Whole Time Director

3. Shri J Ramaswamy Member Whole Time Director
4. Shri S Jeyakrishnan Member Whole Time Director
5. Shri Vinod S Shenoy Member Whole Time Director

6.0 stAKehoLdeRs’ ReLAtIonshIp CommIttee:

 The Board has constituted a Stakeholders’ Relationship 
Committee comprising of Independent Directors and 
Whole Time Director to specifically look into the redressal 
of grievances of shareholders, debenture holders and 
other security holders. The Composition of Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee as on 31.03.2018 was as follows:

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Director Designation Type of Director

1. Dr. T N Singh Chairman Independent Director
2. Smt. Asifa Khan Member Independent Director
3. Shri J.Ramaswamy Member Whole Time Director

 The Committee reviews the status of Investors’ Grievances 
and other important matters of investors’ interest.

 Dates of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee 
Meeting(s) held during 2017-2018:

26.05.2017 08.11.2017

 Attendance at the Stakeholders’ Relationship 
Committee Meeting during 2017-2018:

Name of the Director No. of 
Meetings 

Held

No. of 
Meetings 
attended

% of 
Attendance

Dr. T N Singh 02 02 100%

Smt. Asifa Khan 02 02 100%
Shri J.Ramaswamy 02 02 100%

7.0 CsR & sustAInABILIty deveLopment CommIttee:

 The Board has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility 
& Sustainability Development Committee (CSR & SD) in 
line with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
DPE Guidelines, comprising of Independent Directors and 
Whole Time Directors to carry out functions as provided 
in Section 135 (3) of the Companies Act and in the DPE 
Guidelines.

 The Composition of CSR & SD Committee as on 31.03.2018 
was as follows:

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Director Designation Type of Director

1. Shri Ram Niwas Jain Chairman Independent Director
2. Shri G V Krishna Member Independent Director
3. Shri Pushp Kumar Joshi Member Whole Time Director
4. Shri S Jeyakrishnan Member Whole Time Director
5. Shri Vinod S Shenoy Member Whole Time Director

 Dates of CSR & SD Committee Meeting(s) held during 
2017-2018:

25.05.2017 03.08.2017 09.11.2017 09.02.2018
27.03.2018

 Attendance at the CSR & SD Committee Meeting(s) 
during 2017-2018:

Name of the Director No. of 
Meetings 

Held

No. of 
Meetings 
attended

% of 
Attendance

Shri Ram Niwas Jain 05 05 100%

Shri G V Krishna 05 04 80%
Shri Pushp Kumar Joshi 05 05 100%
Shri S Jeyakrishnan 05 04 80%
Shri Vinod S Shenoy 05 05 100%
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8.0 Investment CommIttee:

 The Board has constituted an Investment Committee 
comprising of Independent Directors and Whole Time 
Director to review the investment in the projects of higher 
value before seeking approval of the Board.

 The Composition of Investment Committee as on 
31.03.2018 was as follows:

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Director Designation Type of Director

1. Shri Ram Niwas Jain Chairman Independent Director
2. Smt. Asifa Khan Member Independent Director
3. Dr. T N Singh Member Independent Director
4. Shri J Ramaswamy Member Whole Time Director

 Dates of Investment Committee Meeting(s) held 
during 2017-2018:

17.04.2017 26.05.2017 18.07.2017 03.08.2017
07.09.2017 08.11.2017 08.02.2018

 Attendance at the Investment Committee Meeting(s) 
held during 2017-2018:

Name of the Director No. of 
Meetings 

Held

No. of 
Meetings 
attended

% of 
Attendance

Shri Ram Niwas Jain 07 07 100%
Smt. Asifa Khan 07 06 86%
Dr. T N Singh 07 07 100%
Shri J Ramaswamy 07 07 100%

 The aforesaid Board Sub-Committees have been 
reconstituted effective April 01, 2018 keeping in view 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015, DPE Guidelines on Corporate 
Governance.

9.0 RemuneRAtIon of dIReCtoRs:
â HPCL being a Government Company, the 

remuneration payable to its Whole-Time Directors 
is approved by the Government and advices thereof 
are received through the Administrative Ministry i.e. 
Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Gas.

â The Independent Directors are paid sitting fees for 
Board Meetings and Sub-Committee Meetings of 
the Board attended by them. HPCL does not have a 
policy of paying commission on profits to any of the 
Directors of the Company.

â The remuneration payable to officers below the 
Below level is also approved by the Government of 
India.

 The details of Remuneration paid to all Functional Directors 
are given below:
• The remuneration of the Whole Time Directors 

includes Basic Salary, allowances and perquisites 
as determined by the Government of India. 
Moreover, they are entitled to Provident Fund and 
Superannuation Contributions as per the Rules of 
the Company.

• The Gross Value of the fixed component of the 
remuneration paid to Whole Time Functional 
Directors, during the Financial Year 2017-2018 is 
given below:

(In ` Lakh)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Chairman & Managing Director / Whole Time Directors Total
Mukesh Kumar 

Surana
Pushp Kumar 

Joshi
J 

Ramaswamy
S 

Jeyakrishnan
Vinod S 
Shenoy

1 Gross Salary 69.88 64.93 62.13 54.65 49.10 300.70
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 
Sec. 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

60.37 56.04 53.74 46.46 48.67 265.29

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961

9.51 8.89 8.39 8.19 0.43 35.41

2 Stock Option 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3 Sweat Equity 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
4 Commission

– as % of profit
– Others, specify

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

5 Others: (PF, DCS, House Perks tax etc.) 9.02 8.75 8.57 7.60 5.99 39.93
Total 78.90 73.68 70.70 62.25 55.09 340.63
Ceiling as per the Act N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
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10.0 sIttIng fees foR the yeAR 2017-2018:

 The details of Sitting Fees paid to Independent Directors for the year 2017-2018 for attending the Board / Sub-Committee 
Meetings are given below:

(In ` Lakh)

Ram Niwas Jain Asifa Khan G V Krishna T N Singh Amar Sinha* Siraj Hussain*

Details of Meeting

Board 4.80 4.80 3.60 4.00 2.80 2.40

Audit Committee 2.70 0.00 2.40 0.30 0.00 0.00

Nomination & Remuneration Committee 0.60 0.00 0.60 0.30 0.00 0.00

Stakeholders Relationship Committee 0.00 0.60 0.00 0.60 0.00 0.00

Investment Committee 2.10 1.80 0.00 2.10 0.00 0.00

CSR & SD Committee 1.50 0.00 1.20 0.00 0.00 0.00

Independent Directors Meeting 0.30 0.30 0.00 0.00 0.30 0.30

Meetings on Corporate Presentation 0.60 0.30 0.60 0.60 0.00 0.00

Total Sitting Fees Paid 12.60 7.80 8.40 7.90 3.10 2.70

 * Appointed as an Independent Directors effective September 21, 2017.

11.0 RefeRenCes & InvestoRs CompLAInts ReCeIved And RepLIed duRIng 2017-2018

Sr.No. Nature of Correspondence References Complaints Total

  1. No. of Shareholders References/Complaints Received 3332 31 3363

  2. Number Not solved to the satisfaction of shareholders 0 0 0

  3. No. of Pending References / Complaints as on March 31, 2018 85 0 85

 References are the requests received from the shareholders like request for updation of bank details, change of address, request 
for transmission / nomination of shares, request for issue of duplicate share certificates etc.

12.0 Code of ConduCt:

 In compliance with the terms of Regulation 17 (5) (a) of 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, with Stock Exchanges, “Code of conduct 
for Board Members and Senior Management Personnel 
of Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited” has been 
devised by the Corporation which also incorporates the 
duties of Independent Directors as envisaged in Regulation 
17 (5) (b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

 The purpose of this Code is to enhance further ethical 
and transparent process in managing the affairs of the 
company. This Code has been made applicable to

a) All Whole-Time Directors

b) All Non-Whole Time Directors including Independent 
Director and

c) Senior Management Personnel.

 This code would be read in conjunction with the Conduct, 
Discipline & Appeal Rules for Officers applicable to Whole 
Time Directors and Senior Management Personnel.

 All the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel 
have provided the Annual Compliance Certificate duly 
signed by them as on March 31, 2018.

13.0 RIght to InfoRmAtIon ACt, 2005:

 The Right to Information Act, 2005 (RTI) which became 
effective 12th October, 2005, is being complied with by 
HPCL. HPCL has hosted detailed information on its website 
www.hindustanpetroleum.com and updates the same from 
time to time. Officers across the country, representing 
different departments, have been appointed as Public 
Information Officers and Appellate Authorities to deal with 
the queries received from the Indian Citizens under RTI.
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14.0 IntegRIty pACt:

 The Corporation has introduced “Integrity Pact” (IP) to 
enhance ethics / transparency in the process of awarding 
contracts. An MoU has been signed with “Transparency 
International” on July 13, 2007. This was made applicable in 
the Corporation effective September 01, 2007 for contracts 
above `1 Crore. The Integrity Pact has now become a part 
of tender documents to be signed by the Company and by 
the vendor(s) / bidder (s).

15.0 shARes depARtment ACtIvItIes:

 HPCL Shares Department monitors the activities of R&T 
Agents M/s. Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd., and coordinates 
approval for Share Transfers, Demat, Remat, Duplicate, 
Transmission and other important matters which are 
approved by the Share Transfer Committee. The Share 
Department carries various activities in-house like; 
Transmission, Dividend Reconciliation, Dividend Audits, 
Filing On-line Statutory Compliances with BSE/NSE, 
responding to grievances of shareholders through 
Statutory authorities, a compliances under IEPF etc.

 HPCL has 2,07,303 shareholders as on 31.03.2018. The 
Corporation regularly interacts with the shareholders 
through e-mails, letters, during AGM, Investors’ Meets, etc., 
wherein the activities of the Corporation, its performance 
and its future plans are shared with the Shareholders.

 The Company has been taking appropriate steps to ensure 
that Shareholder queries are given top priority and all 
references / representations are resolved at the earliest.

 The Company Secretary of the Corporation is the 
Compliance Officer in terms of the requirements of Stock 
Exchanges. The quarterly results and Annual Financial 
Results are published in English and local regional 
newspapers. The Financial and other details are also posted 
on the Company’s website viz. www.hindustanpetroleum.
com

16.0 geneRAL Body meetIngs:

16.1 Location and time of the last three Meetings held:

Year Location Date Time

2016-
2017

Y.B. Chavan Auditorium, 
Yashwantrao Chavan Pratisthan, 
Gen. Jagannatharao Bhosale Marg, 
Mumbai – 400 021

15.09.2017 11.00 
a.m.

Year Location Date Time

2015-
2016

Y.B. Chavan Auditorium, 
Yashwantrao Chavan Pratisthan, 
Gen. Jagannatharao Bhosale Marg, 
Mumbai – 400 021

08.09.2016 11.00 
a.m.

2014-
2015

Y.B. Chavan Auditorium, 
Yashwantrao Chavan Pratisthan, 
Gen. Jagannatharao Bhosale 
Marg, Mumbai – 400 021

10.09.2015 11.00 
a.m.

16.2 Whether any Special Resolutions passed in the 
previous 3 AGM ?

 At the 63th Annual General Meeting which was held on 
September 10, 2015, one Special Resolution was passed 
approving the Material Related Party Transactions.

 At the 64th Annual General Meeting which was held on 
September 08, 2016, two resolutions viz. to amend the 
Article 109 of Articles of Association of the Company and to 
amend Capital Clause (V) of Memorandum of Association 
and Article 3(1) of Articles of Association of Company 
for increase in Authorised Capital of the Company, were 
approved.

 At the 65th Annual General Meeting which was held on 
September 15, 2017, one Special Resolution was passed 
approving Borrowing of Funds upto ̀  6000 Crores through 
Issue of Debentures / Bonds etc.

16.3 Whether any Special Resolutions passed last year through 
Postal Ballot – No Special Resolution was passed however, 
Ordinary Resolution was passed for issue of Bonus Equity 
Shares

16.4 Person who conducted the Postal Ballot Exercise:

 Shri Upendra Shukla, Practising Company Secretary

16.5 Whether any special resolution is proposed to be 
conducted through Postal Ballot:

 For the year 2018-2019, Special Resolution through Postal 
Ballot if any, will be proposed on need basis as and when 
required.

16.6 Procedure for Postal Ballot:

 Procedure as prescribed under Sec. 110 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rule 22 of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014, will be adhered to.
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17.0 meAns of CommunICAton

 Timely disclosure of consistent, relevant and reliable 
information on corporate financial performance is at the 
core of good governance. Towards this end, major steps 
taken are as under:

 i) Quarterly Financial Results.

 The quarterly unaudited financial / yearly audited 
financial results of the Company are announced 
within the time limits prescribed by the SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015. The results are published in 
leading business/regional newspapers and were also 
sent to the Shareholders through E-Mails who have 
registered their e-mails for e-communication.

 ii) Website

 The Company’s Corporate Website www.
hindustanpetroleum.com provides separate 
Section for investors where relevant information 
for shareholders is kept available. It also provides 
comprehensive information on HPCL’s Portfolio 
of businesses, including sustainability initiatives 
comprising CSR activities, HSE performance etc.

 iii) News Releases

 Official News Releases, are hosted on Company’s 
website: www.hindustanpetroleum.com

 iv) Annual Report

 Annual Report for 2017-18 is circulated to 
shareholders and other members entitled thereto. 
The Management Discussion & Analysis Report is 
part of the Annual Report.

 v) Investor Education & Protection Fund (Form IEPF- 1)

 As per Section 124 (5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Clause (5),unclaimed dividend in 
“Unpaid Dividend Account”, has to be transferred 
to “Investor Education & Protection Fund” (IEPF) 
on completion of 7 years. During 2017-2018, the 
unpaid dividend of 2009-10 was transferred to IEPF. 
As a Good Corporate Governance, Shares Dept. sent 
communications well in advance to shareholders to 
claim their unpaid dividends before transferring to 
IEPF.

 vi) Statement of Unclaimed and unpaid amount 
uploaded to MCA Website (Form IEPF- 2)

 In pursuance of Investor Education and Protection 
Fund (uploading of information, regarding unpaid 

and unclaimed amounts lying with Companies) Rules, 
2016, the companies are required to upload Form 
IEPF- 2 each year on MCA website. The information 
is also hosted on the website of the Company.

 Shareholders can seek refund of their unclaimed 
dividends from IEPF by referring details on the 
HPCL’s website.

 vii) Transfer of Shares to IEPF Authority (Form IEPF- 4)

 Pursuant to Section 124 (6) of Companies Act, 2013 
read with the Investor Education and Protection Fund 
Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) 
Rules 2016 as amended, the shares in respect of 
which dividend is unclaimed for a period of seven 
consecutive years are required to be transferred 
by the Company to IEPF Authority. Subsequently 
various amendments were given by MCA through 
Notifications. MCA vide Notification dated October 
13, 2017, October 16, 2017 and also dated October 
17, 2017 finally notified that in cases where the 
period of seven years provided u/s 124(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 has been completed or being 
completed during the period from 7th September 
2016 to 31st October, 2017, the due date of transfer 
of such shares shall be October 31st, 2017.

 Accordingly, as prescribed under MCA Notifications, 
all the required formalities and Corporate Actions 
were completed and the shares were transferred to 
IEPF as summarized below: -

Category No of Records No. of Shares 
transferred

NSDL Account 116 13697

CDSL Account 23 1103

Physical Account 688 107506

Total 827 122306

 viii) Claim for Refund of Shares from IEPF Authority 
(IEPF - 5)

 Consequent to transfer of shares in December, 2017, 
two claims for refund of shares were received. The 
documents were verified and forwarded to IEPF 
Authority.

 ix) E-Communications

 Audited Financial Results for the year 2017-18 
were sent to shareholders thru Emails after the 
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Board Meeting, held on May 22, 2018 intimating 
shareholders about the Financial Results of the 
Corporation and recommendation of the Final 
dividend for the year 2017-18 by the Board.

 In the above communication, the shareholders were 
also advised to update their bank details to receive 
dividend through e-payment as per directives of 
SEBI.

 Unaudited Financial Results for all quarters of the 
year 2017-18 were sent to shareholders through 
their registered emails.

 Emails were sent to the shareholders intimating 
about the credit of Interim Dividend 2017-18 
electronically.

 x) Correspondences with Shareholders
  • Physical letters were sent to shareholders for 

updation of bank details during the year.

  • Inland letters on intimation of dividend credited 
electronically for the Interim Dividend 2017-18 were 
sent.

  • Inland letters intimating allotment & credit of Bonus 
Shares 2017 into their Demat account were sent to 
Demat Shareholders and allotment advice along 
with original Bonus Shares Certificates 2017 were 
sent to Physical shareholders.

 xi) Green Initiative of MCA:
 In order to ensure timely and quick receipt of 

information and the benefits associated with 
electronic receipt of Corporate Benefits and in line 
with Green Initiative measures introduced by the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs in 2011 and also in line 
with the provisions contained in the New Companies 
Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, HPCL 
has been sending thru e-mail all the shareholders 
related documents or Corporate Benefits including 
dividend in electronic mode. However, an option is 
also given to the shareholders to receive documents 
in physical form.

 Shareholders, who have not presently registered 
their E-Mails address and have not provided their 
banks details for E-Payment, but wish to receive 
documents in Electronic Mode and E-Payment of 
Corporate Benefits, were/are advised to register 
their E-Mail addresses and Bank Details either with 
the Depository Participants or with HPCL’s R&T 
Agents depending upon their type of holding.

18.0 geneRAL shARehoLdeR InfoRmAtIon:

18.1 66th Annual General Meeting:
 Date and Time : August 30, 2018 at 11.00 A.M.

 Venue : Y. B. Chavan Auditorium, 
Yashwantrao Chavan Pratishthan, 
Gen. Jagannathrao Bhosale Marg, 
Mumbai – 400 021.

18.2 Financial Calendar:

Financial Reporting for Quarter ending 30.06.2018 
- End July / Mid-August 2018
Financial Reporting for Quarter ending 30.09.2018 
- End October / Mid November 2018
Financial Reporting for Quarter ending 31.12.2018 
- End January / Mid February 2019
Financial Reporting for Quarter ending 31.03.2019 
- End May 2019
Annual General Meeting for year ending 31.03.2018 
- August / September 2019

18.3 Book Closure Date(s) for Final Equity Dividend : 
July 02, 2018 to July 06, 2018 (Both days inclusive)

18.4 Dividend Payment Date : 
On or  before September 07, 2018

18.5 Listing on Stock Exchanges as of 31.03.2018 :

The BSE Limited,
Phroze Jeejeebhoy 
Towers, Dalal Street, 
Mumbai – 400 001

The National Stock Exchange of 
India Limited,
Exchange Plaza, 5th Floor, 
Plot No. C/1, G Block, 
Bandra Kurla Complex, 
Bandra East, Mumbai – 400 051

18.6 Listing Fees: Listing Fees for Financial Year 2018-2019 have 
been paid to Stock Exchanges.

18.7 Stock Codes BSE: 500104 NSE: HINDPETRO ISIN (for 
trading in Demat Form): INE094A01015

18.8 Stock Market Data:
 HPCL SHARE PRICE (In `)

YEAR BSE NSE
HIGH LOW HIGH LOW

2017-18 575.30 323.50 574.80 323.50
2016-17 1328.95 390.00 1328.00 389.50
2015-16 991.00 556.65 990.95 556.05
2014-15 669.70 294.00 669.95 294.25
2013-14 324.80 158.45 325.00 158.00
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 Performance in Comparison to Broad Based Indices

AS ON HPCL Share (`) BSE SENSEx NSE NIFTY

31.03.2018 344.15 32968.68 10113.70
31.03.2017 525.45 29620.50 9173.75
31.03.2016 785.55 25341.86 7738.40
31.03.2015 650.10 27957.49 8491.00
31.03.2014 309.75 22386.27 6704.20

 HPCL Share Price Monthly Data

BOMBAY STOCK ExCHANGE NATIONAL STOCK ExCHANGE

Month High (`) Low (`) Close (`) Volume (Qty) Month High (`) Low (`) Close (`) Volume (Qty)

Apr-17 568.95 515.50 535.75 2,973,573 Apr-17 569.00 515.50 536.15 48,491,453

May-17 575.30 493.00 550.15 7,437,890 May-17 574.80 492.05 554.20 61,594,019

Jun-17 553.00 491.00 509.55 4,313,101 Jun-17 554.00 490.60 510.35 48,882,462

Jul-17 524.90 336.00 383.30 9,302,146 Jul-17 529.80 336.00 383.20 89,003,604

Aug-17 492.45 381.30 487.95 11,909,476 Aug-17 492.80 381.05 488.35 136,556,243

Sep-17 493.00 397.00 426.50 7,863,764 Sep-17 491.40 396.65 426.80 98,730,158

Oct-17 483.75 421.85 447.35 5,781,941 Oct-17 484.35 421.75 447.15 77,606,281

Nov-17 452.00 406.50 416.85 6,437,063 Nov-17 452.00 406.25 416.70 90,093,351

Dec-17 447.00 400.40 416.30 6,517,339 Dec-17 446.65 400.00 418.60 64,533,294

Jan-18 434.90 372.00 396.50 5,464,429 Jan-18 435.00 372.10 397.70 109,484,739

Feb-18 409.10 365.15 380.10 5,116,375 Feb-18 409.80 365.20 380.15 83,425,744

Mar-18 385.35 323.50 344.15 3,046,119 Mar-18 385.50 323.50 344.85 59,886,234

 Per Share and Related Data:

2017-18 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15 2013-14

Per Share Data Unit

EPS (Note 1) ` 41.72 40.74 24.45 17.94 11.38

CEPS (Note 1) ` 62.54 61.51 46.70 33.71 26.51

Dividend ` 15.60 44.90 43.00 24.50 15.50

Book Value ` 157.16 200.29 530.66 473.14 443.32

Share Related Data Unit

Dividend Payout % 36.52 56.01 39.08 36.53 35.42

Price to Earning * Multiple 8.25 12.90 32.13 8.05 6.05

Price to Cash Earning * Multiple 5.50 8.54 16.82 4.29 2.60

Price to Book Value Multiple 2.19 2.62 1.48 1.37 0.70

•  Based on March 31, closing price (BSE) ` 344.15 525.45 785.55 650.10 309.75

 Note 1: EPS for earlier periods presented have been recalculated in accordance with AS 33

  The Figure for the year 2017-2018, 2016-2017 & 2015-2016 are as per Financial Statements prepared under Ind AS.
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18.9 Registrar and Transfer Agents:

 M/s. Link Intime India Pvt.Ltd., 
Unit : Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited, 
C 101, 247 Park, Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg, 
Vikhroli West, Mumbai – 400 083.

 Contact No. (022) 49186000 Fax No. (022) 49186060 
Email : mt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

18.10 Share Transfer System

 Activities relating to Share Transfers are carried out by M/s. Link Intime India Pvt.Ltd., who are the Registrar and Transfer Agents 
of the Company and who have arrangements with the Depositories viz. National Securities Depository Limited and Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited. The Transfers are approved by the Share Transfer Committee. If the documents are correct 
and valid in all respects, share transfers are registered and Share Certificates are dispatched within stipulated period from the 
date of receipt.

 The Number of shares transferred during the last two financial years:

 2017-2018 : 1,88,881 Shares

 2016-2017 : 33,000 Shares

18.11 Dematerialization of shares and liquidity:

 The total number of shares dematerialized as on 31.03.2018 is 151,70,38,207 representing 99.55% of paid up equity share 
capital. Trading in Equity Shares of the Company is permitted only in dematerialized form, w.e.f. February 15, 1999 as per the 
notification issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India.

18.12 Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity.

 There are no outstanding warrants to be converted into Equity Shares

 Detachable Tradeable Warrants along with Public Issue shares in April 1995 were converted into Equity Shares during the period 
February 1997 – April 1997 and hence, as on March 31, 2018 there are no outstanding warrants. 

18.13 Plant Locations:

 The Corporation has 02 Refineries located at Mumbai and Visakhapatnam. It has 156 Regional Offices, 41 Terminals/Tap Off 
Points,41 Depots, 48 LPG Bottling Plants, 06 Lube Blending Plants, 15062 Retail Outlets, 41 ASFs, 1638 SKO/LOD Dealers, 4849 
LPG Distributors located all over the country.

18.14 Address for Correspondence:

Registrar and Transfer Agents

M/s. Link Intime India Pvt.Ltd., 
Unit: Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Ltd. 
C 101, 247 Park, Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg, 
Vikhroli West, Mumbai – 400 083

Tel. No. (022) 49186000 
Fax No. (022) 49186060 
E-mail: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

Company’s Shares Department

Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Ltd. 
Shares Department, 
2nd Floor, Petroleum House, 
17, Jamshedji Tata Road, Mumbai – 400 020

Tel. Nos. (022) 22863204 / 3201 / 3208 
Fax No.: (022) 22874552/22841573 
E-mail: hpclinvestors@mail.hpcl.co.in



66th Annual Report 2017-2018

277

18.15 Distribution Schedule as on 31.03.2018

No. of Shares Physical Holding Dematerialised Holding Total Shareholding Percentage

No. of 
Shareholders

No. of 
Shares

No. of 
Shareholders

No. of 
Shares

No. of 
Shareholders

No. of 
Shares

Shareholders Holding

1-500 1618 445142 163399 21260595 165017 21705737 79.60 1.42

501-1000 4216 2817241 17420 12697126 21636 15514367 10.44 1.02

1001-5000 1777 3027646 15171 31063354 16948 34091000 8.18 2.24

5001-10000 21 137400 1601 11348309 1622 11485709 0.78 0.75

10001 & above 6 356989 2074 1440668823 2080 1441025812 1.00 94.57

TOTAL: 7638 6784418 199665 1517038207 207303 1523822625 100.00 100.00

18.16 Shareholding Pattern:

CATEGORY As on 31.03.2018 As on 31.03.2017

No. of 
Holders

Shares held % of total 
issued shares

No. of 
Holders

Shares held % of total 
issued shares

Presidend of India* 0 0 0 1 519230250 51.11

Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Ltd.* 1 778845375 51.11 0 0 0

Financial Institutions 34 47380974 3.11 27 32881096 3.24

FII/OCBS 740 356470910 23.39 323 171463476 16.88

Banks 14 2564416 0.17 14 903473 0.09

Mutual Funds 
(Includes Alternate Investment Funds)

202 147545465 9.68 161 63521351 6.25

Foreign Nationals 
(NRI, NRI-Repat, Individuals)

5513 5189805 0.34 4017 3438539 0.34

Employees (Physical) 444 806445 0.05 476 590550 0.06

Others 200355 185019235 12.14 149728 223853015 22.04

TOTAL 207303 1523822625 100.00 154747 1015881750 100.00

 * On January 31, 2018, 51.11% Equity Shares held by President of India were transferred to ONGC.

19.0 dIsCLosuRes:

19.1 There are no shares lying unclaimed pertaining to the Public Issue and Warrant Conversion made by the Corporation during 
the year 1995 and 1997 respectively.

19.2 During the year 2017-2018, there were no material transactions with Directors or their relatives having potential conflict with the 
interest of the Company. Being a Government Company, all the Directors of HPCL are appointed by the Government of India. 
There is no relationship inter se between Directors.

19.3 As required under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Corporation has formulated a 
Policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions and the same is hosted on the website of the Company and can be accessed 
with the following link http://www.hindustanpetroleum.com/Policies.. All the related party transactions entered into during 
Financial Year 2017-2018 were approved by the Audit Committee/Board.

19.4 There have no instance of non-compliance by the Company or penalties or strictures imposed on the Company by any Stock 
Exchange or SEBI or any Statutory Authority, on any matter relating to Capital Markets during the last 3 years.
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19.5 The Corporation has a Whistle-Blower Policy in place and no person have been denied access to the Audit Committee. This 
policy is hosted on the website of the Company www.hindustanpetroleum.com

19.6 The Corporation is complying with the various mandatory and non-mandatory Corporate Governance Requirements envisaged 
under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance 
including the suggested list of items to the extent applicable. With regard to appointment of required number of Independent 
Directors on the Board of HPCL, the Corporation has taken up the matter with its Administrative Ministry i.e. Ministry of 
Petroleum & Natural Gas.

19.7 Web link for accessing Policy for Determining Material Subsidiaries is http://www.hindustanpetroleum.com/Policies

19.8 Web link for accessing Policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions http://www.hindustanpetroleum.com/Policies

19.9 The Corporation has framed a “The Code of Internal Procedure and Conduct for Prohibition of Insider Trading in dealing with 
Securities of HPCL” and the same is hosted on the website of our Corporation. The link for accessing this Code is http://www.
hindustanpetroleum.com/Policies

19.10 The Corporation’s Profitability is exposed to the risk of fluctuation in prices of Crude Oil and Petroleum products in international 
markets. Corporation monitors and reduces the impact of the volatility in International Oil prices based on approved Oil Price 
Risk Management Policy by entering into derivative contracts in the OTC market.

 The Corporation also has Oil Price Risk Management Committee (OPRMC) which actively reviews and monitors risk management 
principles, policies and risk management activities.

19.11 CEO / CFO Certification:

 Chairman & Managing Director and Director (Finance) of the Corporation have given “CEO/CFO Certification” to the Board in 
compliance of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

20.0 The Corporation has complied with the applicable conditions of Corporate Governance requirements as specified in Regulations 
17 to 27 to the extent applicable and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulations (2) of Regulation 46 except to the extent of appointments 
of requirement of number of Independent Directors on the Board. Being a Government Company, all the Directors on the Board 
are appointed by the Government of India. The link for accessing the details as prescribed under Regulation 46 of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is given below:

 http://www.hindustanpetroleum.com/stock_exchange

21.0 The discretionary requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule II of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, have been adopted to the 
extent practicable.

deCLARAtIon of the ChAIRmAn & mAnAgIng dIReCtoR

This is to certify that the Company has laid down Code of Conduct for all Board Members and Senior Management of the Company 
and the same is uploaded on the website of the Company www.hindustanpetroleum.com

Further certified that the Members of the Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed and having complied 
with Code as applicable to them during the Financial Year ended March 31, 2018.

Mukesh Kumar Surana 
Chairman & Managing Director
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Corporate governance
AudItoRs CeRtIfICAte on CoRpoRAte goveRnAnCe

To,

The Members of Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited

1. This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement with Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limited (the 
Company/ HPCL).

2. The Corporate Governance Report prepared by the Company contains details as required by the provisions of Chapter IV 
of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended 
(‘Listing Regulations’) (‘Applicable criteria’) for the year ended March 31, 2018.

3. This report is required by the Company to be annexed with the Directors’ Report, in terms of Para E of schedule V to the 
aforesaid Listing Regulations, for further being sent to the Shareholders of the Company.

4. We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by the Company for the year ended on March 31, 
2018, as stipulated in 

• Regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46 (2) and paragraphs C,D and E of Schedule V to the SEBI Listing 
Regulations

• And the Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises (Guidelines) as issued by the 
Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) of Ministry of Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises, Government of India.

Management’s Responsibility

5. The preparation of the Corporate Governance Report is the responsibility of the Management of the Company including the 
preparation and maintenance of all relevant supporting records and documents. This responsibility also includes the design, 
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Corporate Governance 
Report.

6. The Management along with the Board of Directors are also responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with the 
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations, issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India.

Auditor’s Responsibility

7. Our responsibility is to express a reasonable assurance in the form of an opinion whether the Company has complied with the 
specific requirements of the Listing Regulations referred to in paragraph 6 above. 

8. We have carried out an examination of the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”), the Standards 
on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013, in so far as applicable for the purpose of this certificate 
and as per the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the ICAI which requires that we comply 
with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI.

9. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks associated in compliance of 
the Corporate Governance Report with the applicable criteria. Summary of key procedures performed include:

i. Reading and understanding of the information prepared by the Company and included in its Corporate Governance 
Report;

ii. Obtained and verified that the composition of the Board of Directors w.r.t. executive and non- executive directors has 
been met throughout the reporting period;.

iii. Obtained and read the minutes of the following meetings held in the Financial Year 2017-18:

Corporate governance
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  (a) Board of Directors meetings;

  (b) Audit Committee meetings;

  (c) Stakeholder Relationship Committee meetings;

  (d) Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings;

  (e) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee meetings

  (f ) Independent directors meeting;

iv. Obtained necessary representations and declarations from directors of the Company including the independent directors 
; and

v. Performed necessary inquiries with the Management and also obtained necessary specific representations from 
Management.

10. The above-mentioned procedures include examining evidence supporting the particulars in the Corporate Governance Report 
on a test basis. Further, our scope of work under this report did not involve us performing audit tests for the purposes of 
expressing an opinion on the fairness or accuracy of any of the financial information or the financial statements of the Company 
taken as a whole.

11. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control 
for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services 
Engagements.

Opinion

12. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company, 
has in all material respects, complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and 
clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and Paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V to the SEBI Listing Regulations for the year ended 
March 31, 2018 as well the Guidelines issued by the DPE subject to  

a. The number of Independent Directors on the Board of the Company is less than the required number prescribed under 
the Regulation and clause 3.1.4 of the DPE Guidelines 

Other matters and Restriction on Use

13. We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

14. This report is addressed to and provided to the members of the Company solely for the purpose of enabling it to comply with its 
obligations under the Listing Regulations with reference to compliance with the relevant regulations of Corporate Governance 
and should not be used by any other person or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or 
any duty of care or for any other purpose or to any other party to whom it is shown or into whose hands it may come without 
our prior consent in writing. We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the 
date of this report.

For M. P. Chitale & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 101851W

For G. M. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.:104767W

Sd/-
Anagha Thatte
Partner
Membership No.: 105525

Sd/-
Rajen Ashar
Partner
Membership No. 048243

Place : Mumbai
Dated : July 26, 2018
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